
 
 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  Contact: Jane Creer 

Committee Secretary 
Wednesday, 8 May 2019 at 9.30 am  Direct : 020-8379-4093 
Council Chamber, Civic Centre, Silver Street, 
Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 4093 
 E-mail: jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors :  George Savva MBE (Chair), Derek Levy and Chris Dey 
 
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3. THE OCCASIONAL HALF, 66 - 77 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4TD  
(REPORT NO. 226) - TO COMMENCE AT 09:30  (Pages 1 - 62) 

 
 Application for variation of a Premises Licence. 

 
4. BROADWICK VENUES LTD, MERIDIAN WATER, UNIT 4-6B ORBITAL 

BUSINESS PARK, & LAND TO THE SOUTH OF UNITS 4-6B, ORBITAL 
BUSINESS PARK, 5 ARGON ROAD, EDMONTON, N18 3BW  (REPORT 
NO. 227) - TO COMMENCE AT 11:00  (Pages 63 - 466) 

 
 Application for a new Premises Licence. 

 
5. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS  (Pages 467 - 474) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 13 

March 2019. 
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 If necessary, to consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for any items of business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
(There is no part 2 agenda) 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk


 
 
 

 



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 REPORT NO.  
 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE: 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
8 May 2019 
 
REPORT OF : 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT: 
Application for a Variation of a Premises 
Licence  
 
PREMISES: 
The Occasional Half, 66 – 77 Green Lanes, 
N13 4TD 
 
WARD: 
Bowes 

 
 
 
1 LICENSING HISTORY: 

 
1.1 On 10 February 2006, an application by Bramwell Pubs and Bars Limited to 

convert an existing Justices On Licence to a Premises Licence, which was not 
subject to any representations, was granted by the Licensing Authority 
(LN/200502147). 

 

1.2 On 29 November 2013, a transfer application was made naming Stonegate Pub 
Company Limited as the new Premises Licence Holder. 

 
1.3 Susan Smyth has been the Designated Premises Supervisor at the premises 

since 13 January 2012. 
 

1.4 In 2018, the following Temporary Event Notices (TENs) were granted at The 
Occasional Half: 18 and 25 March; 1 and 2 April; 6 and 27 May; 10 June; 15 and 
15 July; 14 and 28 October; 16, 22 and 23 December. 

 
1.5 This year (2019), Susan Smyth has applied for and been granted the following 

TENs at The Occasional Half: 
18 March: 00:01 to 02:00 
6 and 7 April: 2359 to 02:00 
21 April: 00:01 to 02:00 
5 May: 00:01 to 02:00 

 
1.6 The Occasional Half has not been subject to any licence review. 

 

1.7 A number of nearby bars/restaurants have been identified as holding a premises 
licence.  For information purposes, the licensing details for each premises are as 
follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 Address 3 Opening Hours 4 Alcohol Hours 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



(latest closing 
time) 

(latest sale of 
alcohol) 

5 Alba Vita Restaurant, 12 Green 
Lanes 

6 00:00 7 00:00 

8 The Truth, 30 – 32 Green Lanes 9 23:00 10 23:00 

11 Tirana 2, 47 Green Lanes 12 04:00 13 03:00 

14 Bujani, 89 Green Lanes 15 23:00 16 22:30 

17 Piazza, 111 Green Lanes 18 22:00 19 21:30 

20 Dom’s Café, 117 Green Lanes 21 22:30 22 22:00 

 
 

1.8  A map of the area is attached as Annex 1. 
 

1.9 A copy of the existing premises licence is attached as Annex 2. 
 

 

2.0 THIS APPLICATION: 
 

2.1 On 15 March 2019 an application was made by Stonegate Pub Company 
Limited, Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green, Luton, LU1 3LS to vary the 
premises licence.  
 
2.2 The application seeks: 
 

Page 2



Licensable 
Activities 

Existing 
Licensing Hours 

Hours sought 
by this 
application 

Amendments to 
Non-Standard 
Timing 

Opening Hours 07:00 to 00:30 
daily 

07:00 to 00:30 
Sunday to 
Thursday 

 
07:00 to 01:30 
Friday and 
Saturday 

An additional hour 
to the standard 
and non-standard 
times on the say 
when British 
Summertime 
commences. 

Alcohol Sales 
(On and Off 
Supplies) 

10:00 to 00:00 
daily 

10:00 to 00:00 
Sunday to 
Thursday 

 

10:00 to 01:00 
Friday and 
Saturday 

Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

Live music 
(indoor) 

10:00 to 00:00 
daily 

No change Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

Recorded music 
(indoor) 

10:00 to 00:00 
daily 

10:00 to 00:00 
Sunday to 
Thursday 

 

10:00 to 01:00 
Friday and 
Saturday 

Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

  

Page 3



Licensable 
Activities 

Existing 
Licensing Hours 

Hours sought 
by this 
application 

Amendments to 
Non-Standard 
Timing 

Performance of 
dance (indoor 
and outdoor) 

10:00 to 00:00 
daily 

No change Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

Indoor sporting 
events 

10:00 to 00:00 
daily 

No change Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

Films (indoor) 10:00 to 00:00 
daily 

10:00 to 00:00 
Sunday to 
Thursday 

 

10:00 to 01:00 
Friday and 
Saturday 

Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

Late Night 
Refreshment 

23:00 to 00:00 
daily 

23:00 to 00:00 
Sunday to 
Thursday 

 

23:00 to 01:00 
Friday and 
Saturday 

Remove non-
standard timing 
condition relating 
to Christmas Day. 

Retain existing 
New Year’s 
Eve/New Year’s 
Day timing 
condition. 

 
 
2.3 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 

application. 
 

Page 4



2.4 A copy of the application is attached as Annex 3. 
 

 
3.0 RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
3.1 Other Persons: Representations have been made, against the application, 

by three local residents, all of Kelvin Avenue. They are supported by their 
ward councillor, Cllr Alessandro Georgiou, who will also be representing the 
residents at the hearing. The residents are referred to as IP1 to IP3. The 
grounds of representation include the prevention of crime & disorder and the 
prevention of public nuisance.  

 

3.2 Copies of these IP representations are attached in Annex 4. 
 

3.3 None of the Responsible Authorities made a representation to this 
application.  

 

 

4.0 PROPOSED LICENCE CONDITIONS: 
 
4.1 No modification of conditions has arisen from this application; therefore, the 

existing conditions can be found within Annex 2 (Part 2, Annex 1 of the 
premises licence). 

 
 
 
5.0 RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
5.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either: 
5.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 
5.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of April 

2017 (‘Guid’); or 
5.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 2015 

(‘Pol’). 
 
 

General Principles: 
5.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 
 
5.3 The licensing objectives are: 
5.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 
5.3.2 public safety; 
5.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 
5.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 
 
5.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to: 
5.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 
5.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 5



Hours: 
5.5 The Sub-Committee decides licensed opening hours as part of the 

implementation of the licensing policy statement and is best placed to make 
decisions about appropriate opening hours in their area based on their local 
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities [Guid 10.13]. 

 
5.6 Stricter conditions with regard to licensing hours may be required for licensed 

premises situated in or immediately adjacent to residential areas to ensure 
that disturbance to local residents is avoided. This will particularly apply in 
circumstances where, having regard to the location, size and nature of the 
premises, it is likely that disturbance will be caused to residents in the vicinity 
of the premises by concentrations of people leaving, particularly during 
normal night-time sleeping periods [Pol s.8.4]. 

 
 
Decision: 
 
7.1  As a matter of practice, the Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing 

on the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing 
objective or objectives that have given rise to the specific representation and 
avoid straying into undisputed areas [Guid 9.37].  

 
7.2 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing 

objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the Sub-Committee 
must give appropriate weight to: 

7.2.1 the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  
7.2.2 the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 

parties;  
7.2.3 the guidance; and  
7.2.4 its own statement of licensing policy [Guid 9.38]. 
 
7.3 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Sub-Committee 

must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The steps are:  

7.3.1 to grant the application subject to the mandatory conditions and such 
conditions as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; 

7.3.2 to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates; 

7.3.3 to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
7.3.4 to reject the application [Act s.18]. 
 
 
 

Background Papers:  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 6



  Appendix 1 
 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Act 2003 

PART A – PREMISES LICENCE 

Granted by the London Borough of Enfield as Licensing Authority 

Premises Licence Number : LN/200502147 

Part 1 – Premises Details 

Postal address of premises : 
Premises name : 

Telephone number : 

Address : 

The Occasional Half 

020 8881 5444 

Public House 67-77 Green Lanes LONDON N13 4TD   

Where the licence is time-limited, the 
dates : 

Not time limited 

The opening hours of the premises, the licensable activities authorised by the 
licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of those 
activities : 

(1) Open to the Public - Whole premises 
Sunday : 07:00 - 00:30 
Monday : 07:00 - 00:30 

Tuesday : 07:00 - 00:30 
Wednesday : 07:00 - 00:30 

Thursday : 07:00 - 00:30 
Friday : 07:00 - 00:30 

Saturday : 07:00 - 00:30 
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

(2) Supply of Alcohol - On and Off Supplies 
Sunday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Monday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Tuesday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Wednesday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Thursday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Friday : 10:00 - 00:00 

Saturday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Christmas Day : 11.00 - 23.00 
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

(3) Films - Indoors 
Sunday : 07:00 - 00:00 

Annex 2Page 9



 Monday : 07:00 - 00:00  
 Tuesday : 07:00 - 00:00  
 Wednesday : 07:00 - 00:00  
 Thursday : 07:00 - 00:00  
 Friday : 07:00 - 00:00  
 Saturday :  07:00 - 00:00  
 Christmas Day : 11.00 - 23.00 

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

 
(4) Indoor Sporting Events - Indoors 

 Sunday :       10:00 - 00:00  
 Monday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Tuesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Wednesday :  10:00 - 00:00  
 Thursday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Friday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Saturday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Christmas Day : 11.00 - 23.00 

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

 
(5) Live Music - Indoors 

 Sunday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Monday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Tuesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Wednesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Thursday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Friday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Saturday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Christmas Day : 11.00 - 23.00 

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

 
(6) Recorded Music - Indoors 

 Sunday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Monday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Tuesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Wednesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Thursday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Friday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Saturday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Christmas Day : 11.00 - 23.00 

New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

 
(7) Performance of Dance - Indoors 

 Sunday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Monday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Tuesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Wednesday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Thursday : 10:00 - 00:00  
 Friday : 10:00 - 00:00  

Page 10



Saturday : 10:00 - 00:00 
Christmas Day : 11.00 - 23.00 
New Year's Eve : from the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to 
the start of permitted hours on New Years Day 

(8) Late Night Refreshment - Indoors 
Sunday : 23:00 - 00:00 
Monday : 23:00 - 00:00 

Tuesday : 23:00 - 00:00 
Wednesday : 23:00 - 00:00 

Thursday : 23:00 - 00:00 
Friday : 23:00 - 00:00 

Saturday : 23:00 - 00:00 
New Year's Eve : 23:00 - 05:00 

Page 11



Part 2 
 
Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence : 

Name : 
 

Telephone number : 
 

e-mail : 
 

Address : 

Stonegate Pub Company Limited 
 
020 7399 4200  
 

 

 

 
Registered number of holder (where 
applicable) : 

FC029833 
 
03997571 

 
Name and (registered) address of second holder of premises licence (where 
applicable) : 

Name : 
 

Telephone number : 
 

Address : 

Not applicable 
 
 

 
Name and address of designated premises supervisor (where the licence 
authorises the supply of alcohol) : 

Name : 
 

Telephone number : 
 

e-mail : 
 

Address : 

Miss Susan Mary Smyth 
 
020 8881 5444 
 
 
The Occasional Half, Public House, 67-77 Green Lanes, 
LONDON, N13 4TD 

 
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by 
designated premises supervisor (where the licence authorises the supply of 
alcohol) : 
Personal Licence Number : 

 
Issuing Authority : 

LN/200500961 
 
London Borough of Enfield 

 
Premises Licence LN/200502147 was first granted on 5 September 2005.  
 

Signed :        Date : 11th January 2016                         
 
for and on behalf of the 
London Borough of Enfield 
Licensing Unit, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield EN1 3XH 
Telephone : 020 8379 3578 
 

Page 12



Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions 

The Mandatory Conditions are attached and form part of the Operating 
Schedule of your licence/certificate. You must ensure that the operation of the 
licensed premises complies with the attached Mandatory Conditions as well 
as the Conditions in Annex 2 and Annex 3 (if applicable). Failure to do this 
can lead to prosecution or review of the licence. 

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

1. A CCTV system shall be installed at the premises and maintained in
good working order and used at all times when the premises are open for
licensable activities.

2. Any CCTV footage shall be held for at least 31 days and shall be made
available to an officer of the Licensing Authority or Police on reasonable
request.

3. Cameras shall be sited so as to ensure coverage of entrances, exits
and effective coverage of internal and external customer areas.

4. The CCTV system shall be of sufficient quality to capture any person
entering the premises in any light condition and operate under existing light
levels within and outside the premises.

5. Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an
overview of the premises.

6. Cameras shall provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any
image.

7. The recording device for the CCTV system shall be located in a secure
area or locked cabinet.

8. The CCTV system shall have a monitor to review images and recorded
picture quality.

9. An incident log book (which may be electronic)  shall be kept on the
premises and made available on request to an authorised officer of the
Council or Police which will record the following:-
a. Any incidents of disorder
b. Any seizures of drugs or offensive weapons
c. Any ejections of patrons

10. Alcoholic and other drinks shall not be removed from the premises in
open containers save for consumption in the external areas provided for that
purpose.

11. All staff shall receive induction and refresher training (at least every
three months) relating to the sale of alcohol and the terms and conditions of
this licence. Training shall be documented and records shall be kept for 12

Page 13



months and made available to an authorised officer of the police and / or local 
authority on request.  

12. Reasonable steps will be taken to recognise the rights of local
residents and notices will be displayed at the premises exits requesting
customers to leave quietly and reminding them that they are in a residential
area.

13. All doors and windows shall be kept closed when regulated
entertainment in the form of live or recorded music is taking place, except for
access and egress.

14. A sound limiting device shall be fitted to the musical amplification
system which is set and maintained at a level which ensures no noise shall
emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure
of the premises which gives rise to a public nuisance.

15. The premises must operate the Local Authority or similar proof of age
scheme and display the relevant material. Only passport, photographic
driving licences or ID with the P.A.S.S. logo (Proof of Age Standards Scheme)
may be accepted.

16. A log (which may be electronic) shall be kept detailing all refused sales
of alcohol. The log shall include the date and time of the refusal and the name
of the member of staff who refused the sale.  A copy of the log or electronic
report shall be made available upon reasonable request.

17. Signs shall be prominently displayed on the exit doors and immediately
outside the premises in the outside seating area advising customers that the
premises is in a 'Designated Public Place Order'  and that alcohol should not
be should not be taken off the outside seating area and consumed in the
street.  These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in a location where
those leaving the premises can read them.

18. At least 4 prominent, clear and legible notices shall be displayed
throughout the premises warning customers that drug use will not be
tolerated.

19. Children under the age of 18 shall not be permitted on the premises
after 23:00.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority 

Not applicable 

Page 14



Annex 4 - Plan
P

age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



\C\c*\\a-ñP
o.cb

London Borcugh qf Enflcld

Appllc¡tlon to vrry r pnrnhc lloncr undrtfic Llcrnrlng Ast 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWNG INSTRUCTIOì{S FIRST

pefora complctfng_ thi¡ form plcarc r¡ad the guidance notcc at the cnd of the form.
lf you are complcting thia form by hand plea¡c nfrte lcglbly in block cepitaü. iñ a¡lca¡cc
cn¡ure lhat your enswlll ere ln¡idc the boxçs anC wrlttcn ln black lnk. Uee addltional
ehæ6 if ncocsaary.
You may wish to keep a copy of thc completed form fur your recodr.

¡ac{lon t¡l

Ptrmbc llccncc nunbcr
LNaAA502147

PrrtI-Plunhc¡Drtrllr

Tclephonc numberat premiscc (if any) 0208 8815444
Non-domcgtic ratcable vak¡c of

€25,000,00

Plrt2-Applicentdcürllt

1

Poethm

prunrbo or, lf nonc, oldntncc ¡utvry mrp rrfrrrnce ordccrlpüon

London

Polttl rddrur¡ of

Occa¡ionalHalf
67-77 Grpen Lanes

Po¡tcod¡ N134TD

Deytimc contrct
blrphonc numbcr
Ern¡ll rddn¡r
Gunrnt n¡ldcnüd
¡ddtrl¡ lf dl{bru¡t fionr
pnmiro rddlu¡

PorterTun Houcr
500 Capabilig Grccn

Port
Town

Poetcodc LUl 3LS

I { unn zop

LONÐON BOROUGH Ç ENF'ELD
RECEIVED

STBEEl SCEÀE, '

ENVIRONMENT&

Annex 3 Page 17



Püt3 -Vrdflon

Do you went the propoced verietion to haw effec't as toon ¡! po¡slble?

N/A

Plc¡sc tiok yæ

tr

Year
lf not, from what deb do you want the variatlon to take €fr€ct?

Do you want the popored variation to heve qfiec't in relatlon t9 the introductlon of thE late

ñùñt-u"yltpl"aås Ëãóuiàãnóã notc tl EYeg ExNo

PLrrc dðcrlbc brleflY tln nrü¡n of tñr PrcPccd vdrtton (Pleare read guidanoe note

z',)

1. To cxtend the permíttcd hour¡ for ¡ale of ¡lcohol and regulated entertainment

in thc form of dm¡, recordsd music and late night refreshment to 01:00 hou¡¡

the following day on Frilay¡ and Saturdayr'

2. To extend the perrnitted opening hour¡ to allou the premircc to dorE rt
0l:30 hours ttrc followlng dey on Fddays and $durdayr'

3. To remove, rst¡in ¡nd add non ¡tandard timlngc ec det¡iled in the

application.

lf your propoaed vafiation would.mean that 5,000 or more people

ãtå ¡*¡iEdsd to ¡ttend the premises. at any one tims, please

statc the number cxpeoted to attend

PrÉ{Opontlng 9chclul¡

pL.Be completc tho¡e parb of the Operatlng Schedule below which would be rubJec't to

change lf thi's ¡pplioation to vary lc ruccessful.

Provl¡ion of nEulrbd enbñrlnmrnt (Please raad guidance note 3) :ffi 
tlck ¡ll th

a) playe (if tlcking yes,llll in boxA)

b) filme (if ticking yes, fillin box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yce, fill in box C)

d) boxlng or wrestling entertainment (lf tldcing yet, flll in box D)

e) live music (fiticking yec, llll ln box E)

f) rccoded music (if tlcking yer, frllin box F) '

g) performance¡ of danoe (if ticking yes, fill In box G)

L\ anything sf a Eimil¡r descrlption to that falling withln (e), (f) or (g)

,,"u(l1lif,i;Tläl'Jl'"",(rrtickins ver, rir in box r)

Srlrbrr rctlil of rlcohol (if tickirE yes, fill in box J)

ln dl cær¡ cornPbb bore¡ K, Lrnd I

tr
tr
tr
E
tr
tr
x
tr

a

2

". . ÌÌ',1 i' ì 
'

ri 1., ' ;

1 I

Page 18



B
Fllmr
Stendard dayt and
timings (please æad
guidanoe nots 8)

Wlll tlre exhibitlon of filmr trke glacq 
_

lndooÈ or ouEoon or both: ol¡¡ro tlck
(phase read guidance note 4)

lndoons

Outdoor¡

Both

tr
trDay Start Fini¡h

Mon

Tue

No No
Ghanp

No l{o

'No No

No No
Ghenge

No 01:00

l,lo 01:00

No No

Pb¡Çc sive furthsr dctril¡ h¡n (please

No Change

read guidancE note 5)

Wed

Thur

(please reed guidanoc note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

(please raad note

n
1. To ¡emove üe existing non etandard timing fur Christmas

Day
2. to-retain tha cxisting non ståndard timlng for Neur Yea/s

Evs, ao follows: New Yeal"s Eve'ftom the end ú
permltted hourson New Yea/s Evetothø startof
permlüed hours on Nøw Yeafs DaY.

4

Page 19



c
lndoor rportlng
cvcntr
Standard days and
timings (please read
guHance note 8)

Plenc slvc fuíñcr dcû¡lh (please raad guldance note 5)

No Change

Day Stert Finish

Mon No
Changa

No
Chmqp

Tue No

9!trygr
NO
Chcngc

St¡te rnv rclrond vrrlflonr for lndoor¡ooñlno cvr4!
(please read guidancc notc 6)

Wed No
Changc

No
Changc

Thur lto
Chengc

No
Changc

No
Ghengc

Changc

Non rtrndrd tlmlnqù Wl|ero vou Inbnd to ur tñq oFml¡¡¡
lor lndoor¡poÉlno evente at dlllbnnttlme btfice lhüed ln
füc column on füc l¡úL olcr¡c llrt (please ruad guklanoe nots
7)

1. To rcmove thc exirtlng non st¡andard timing fur Christmas
Day

2. To nfraln the existing non ¡tandard tlmlng for New Ycar's
Eva, ar follovræ: New Yeals Ew - f¡on the end of
permltted houre on New Yeals Eve to fåe sfarf of
permllted houß on New Yeals Day.

Sat No
Chenge

No
Change

Sun NO
Changc

No
Changc

5

Page 20



D
Borlng orwp¡tling
cnbrt¡lnmcntt
Standard daye and
timinga (pleare nad
guidance note 8)

Will tlr¡ boxina or wrc¡tllna-enterbinment
t¡k¡ oleco Indoor¡ or outdoon or both,-
o¡cuo tlct (plaase raad guldance note 4)

lndoors

Both

'4-1IJ

tr
EfDay Start Fini¡h

Mon

Tue

Wed

Plcr¡rglve furthsr drtrilr heP read guldance note 5)

read guidancç note 6)

Thur

Fri

Sat

y=

(plearc read
guidance note 7)

6

Page 21



F
Rrcodod m¡¡¡lc
Standard days and
timlnge (please read
guidanca notc 8)

Wlll thr Elavina of ncordcd mu¡lc t¡lo
phce lndoorr or outdoon or bofü - ole*+e

!!¡! (pleaee read guidance note 4)

lndoors

Outdoor¡

Both

tr
tr

Day Stert Finish tr
Mon No

Chanç

NL
Ch¡ngc

No
Change

No
Change

Pler¡¡ qlve furü¡er d.üilr h¡¡e (please read guidance notc 5)

No Change
Tue

Wcd No
Changc

No
Ghanqþ

No

Change

01:00

01:00

No

Sffi ¡nv rcuonrl v¡rlrtlonr for the phvlnq of recqrded
murlc (please read guktance note 6)

Thur

FN

Sat

No
Clnngc

No

li¡t¡d ln the column on lñe left please list (please read
guidance ncÉe 7)

1. To removc the existing non ¡tandard timing for Ghrlstmae
Day

2. To retain thc existing non standard timing for NsilYea/s
Evs, as follor¡: New Yea¡'s Eve - from the end of
permllted hours on New Yøals Eve to the úut of
prmitted howa on New Yeafs DaY.

Sun No

Qsrsl

E

Page 22



G
Pcrlonntnco of
dmcc
Stendard days and
timings (pleasc rcad
guidance note 8)

Wlll tlrc ocrfomrrnco of drFce t¡ke phcc
lndoorr or outdoor¡ or both - olcr¡e tlolr
(pleasc rcad guidanca notc 4)

lndoor¡ tr

Outdooru E
BothDav Start Finich

Mon No
Chenge

No
Changc

Ple¡¡o qlvo furtlpr d¡41.1Ç hen (plcacc read guldance note 5)

No Change
Tr¡c No

Chrncc
i¡o

_cjg!99

Wed

Thur

Fri

No luo
Chrngc: Changc| '--

i
1-, 

-

No i ¡lo
Changc i Chems

I

f

8túc rnv !pa¡,gn¡! vrrl¡tlon¡ fbr tfic ocrfgnnrnce of d¡ncc
(please read guldanoc notc 6)

No
Chrnge

No
Chengc

l,lo
Chengc

No
Chrngc

1. To rsmorc the existing non standard timing forChristmas
Day

2. To retein thc existing non standard timing for Nevv Yea/s
Eve, as follows: New Year's Eve - fiom the end of
permltted houra on New Yeals Eve to the etart of
pemÍtted houß on New Yeals Day.

Sat NO
Changc

No
clyngg

Sun

I

Page 23



lrtc nlght trf¡rhm¡nt
Standard day: and
tlmlngs (plce¡e read
guidancs note 8)

Indoorc

(plærc rcad OuHoon

Day Strrt Finish

Mon No No
Chmgc

Tuc No
Changc

No
Ghenge

wbd No No

Thur No No
Chengc

Fri No 0l:00

Sat No 0l:ü)

Sun No No
Change

Plc?tl alvc ll¡rür¡r dctrll¡ h?ru (pleare rcad guidance nob 5)

No Changa

rrtr.hrnfil (plcarc nob

nob
7l

l. To refialn the cxlcting non standerd timing for New Ycar'E
Evc, a8 follows: Âlew Yeals Eva - fiom the êtú oî
permltted hows on New Yeafs Eve to the staft of
permiltcd houts on New Yeals Day.

11

Page 24



J
Eupply of rlcohol
Standard days and
timings (please rcad
guidance note 8)

Wll th¡ ruppty of rlcohol bc for conrumpÉlon
(Plol¡c tlok bor) (pleaea read guldance note 9)

BIley Stsrt Finish

Mon

Tue

W¡d

No

No

No
Ghango

tlo
Ch¡nge

No
Chenge

No
Change*

No
Chanç

No
Changc

(pleaee ræd
note 6)

No
Change

01:00

01:00

ìlo
Changc

guidanoe nob

1. To rcmorrc the exirtlng non stenderd timing for Chri¡tmas
Day

2. To retain the existing non standard timing for Neìrv Yeafa
Eve, aB followa: New Yeal's Eve-frmt the end of
permllted ho.trc on New Yeals Eve to thø staft of
parmltred houtson NawYear's DaY.

K
Pl¡rr hlghlþht eny rdult
encllhry to the urc of th.
read guidance note 8)

cni¡Érlnmrnt or ttrvlcc, rctlvltbt, other cnbrtrlnment or nrrü¡¡
pnmbc ürlt mry glvc rbc to concarn ln lupcct of chlËnn (pleas€

l{on¡

12

Page 25



L
llou¡r pnmb¡rn
oprn to tfir publlc
Shndard day¡ and
ümlngr (plce¡c ruad
guldanoc notc 8)

@ (plcasa ruad guldancc nob 6)

Day Stert Flnieh

Mon No
Ghangc

No
Chrngc

No
Changc

Tuq

Wed

No
Ghango

No
Chengc

No

-9trrge

No
Chrngc

Ghengc

0l:30

lgad guldanca note

2. To rstaln thc cxirtlng non stendard timing for NwYeads
Evs, aE follovrË: New Yeals Eve = lrom the eN of
pemlltêd houtson NewYeals Eva tothe startaf
pam¡ttad houts w, New Yeafs DaY.

3. To add thcÍolloring non ct¡ndard timlngr: Nt adclitional
hourto the denda¡d and nomúanda¡d tÎmes on the day
when Brttlsh Summeûimê æmmanoeq.

Thur

Frl No
Chrngp

Sat

Sun

No

_c¡llg?-
0l:30

No
chqgq

No
ClûrEr

Plcasc identify thogs cond¡tions curruntly imposed on the liccncc whidt you belÞrc could be
Ëmorcd a! e conlcqutnor of ttrs proposcd variation you ars rceking

None

Plcacc tick yes

ø
g

lf you have not ticked onc of theee boxes pleasc fill ln reasone for not including the licence,
or of below

¡ I havc enclosêd thc prumircc llcence

o I have enclosed thc rshvant part of thc prumlsæ licence

Reasons why I havc failed to enclo¡c thc prumlres licence or relcvant part of pæmisca

licence
N/A

13

Page 26



tl Oeoø¡e any additional steps you intend to takc to promote the four Iiccnsing objec{ives
as a re¡ult of the proposed variation:

r) Goner¡l - rlt four llcrnring oblectlvo (b,c,d,r) (pleare read guidance note 11)

lThe infarmation prcvlded in this ôox is sdely for information only and not lntended to be
convefted ínto ænditions on fåe licancel.

We have consider€d the impad of thc proposed variation which sccks to axtend the
terminel operating houre for ¡ale of alcohol and certain regulatcd cntertainment on Fridaya

and Saturdays by one hour, from midnþhtto 1am, wlth cloce at l.30am. As pad of the
appticatlon, the applicant ls aleo secklrq to amend and add non rtand¡d tlmings for notable
days. There ie no proposed change to thE erdrtlng permlssions for lhre mulic, performance

of danoe or indoor spoding events, cave for tlrc rumoval of the cunent Chridmas Day

timinge.

Given the changes propoæd, the appllcant hae carefully cong¡deñÐd the application, the
efiec{ upon theliccnsing objec,üve¡, and the London Bororryh of Enfield'¡ Licenrlng Policy.
Although thc prcmiser does ncÉ fallwithln a dcrlgnatcd cumul¡tive lmpad arua, the
appllcant has glven the ceme con¡ldc¡ation to thcir proposal to eruup that it conünue¡ to
opc¡ab to the high standards and promotcs the llcsn¡ing objecliver

Thc cilstlng condttlons on ttre premircr licence vrure put in place in 2015 ln congultaton
wlth thc Police and other rerponsible ¡uthoritþs and it i¡ concider€d that these conditions
rcmeln approprlab to promote the licensing objcc'tives. As such, no.changer e€ propo!€d
to tha condltlons at this time.

Prior to submisslon of the application, pre-consultation took place with the Lioenging and
Policc Teams. ln particular, it wa! ndcd lhat there ar€ no ol¡tstending complaints against
the prcmises and no further measures were ruquested prior to submiseion.

The applicant believes the hourc sought, coupted with the existing conditlons in ths
opereting schedule, along with tha internal me€tur€s end pollclee in plaoe will not
urdarminc thc liccnring objestivcû rnd fuÉher will sllow the premises to oontinue to operate
to hþh ctandards ¡nd be of boneftt to the erea.

Tha applicant bds the extenslon of the terminal hour for lioensable astivitiee and opening
hour¡ will ensure customers cen etay in a lnell-managed, controlled and supervised
environment premisee for longer, if thoy wish, and that the later hours will allow a lorger
wind dorn period and a mote gradual dirperral of customErs frpm the prêmÊes, whloh can
be managed and contalned, rcduoing impact on the ana and licencing objgctiyec by a mass
dispenal at any onc timc. This ís also recognised by the Councll's Policy which identif¡es the
bensf¡ls of flexible lioenaing houp on the concentratlon of cuetomers leavlng prumises.

The premlsee hae operated with tamporary event notioeE to hourE sought, and later, without
any iseuee of note and which haw not had a negative impac't on the liænsing objectives or
received complaints.

Stonegate are an expericncrd licensed operator and have in place an cxtensive licensing
manual containing policÍee and procadur€s ecrcss the whole eetate, which aro adapted at
site levelto ensure the premises operates to a high standard and promotes the Llcenslng
Ogectives. These include policiec regadirg social resporsibility, training, underage sales
and challenge policies, incÍdent logs, queuing pol¡cy, drugo and dicpertal pollcy, and nolse
manegement and the managcment of out¡ide âreaa policies as twll as procedures to
prcvent crime and di¡order and publio nuisancå. These robust policier and procedurue that
alrcdy in.place will continue to opErate lf application and extended hour¡ arc granted.

14

Page 27



Gonsllcring thc abovu, vr¡c balieræ that thc Varidion Application will not havc an adrcrse
lmpac't on thc liocnring obJcctivec. Thc appllcant bclþvee that the cxieting opcnatitq
¡chedulc along wlth thc cxicting intemal mÇelurus and robust polidcc in plaoc, end
cxpericnoc sf the operetor (lnduding opcrating to the houra sought without is¡uss of n@),
wlll ensure thc prumircs continuc to promote thc licenging obiedivcc and furüer conditione
are not rcquirud.

Please eee box a) and cxirting premises liccnca.

th¡

Publlc

Th¡

Th¡

of crlmc end dlroÉ¡r

sf lc nul¡rno

of chlldnn ftqn hrnn

Pleuc tlck yre

'ø

a

a

I have made or sncloacd payment of the fec or

I have not made or cnclo¡cd payment of the fee becauec thls appllcatlon has
been made in rslation to tfie lntroduction of ths lab night lctry

I havc scnt copics of this application and thc plan to rcsponsible authoritþ¡ and
otñsrc wherc applicablc

I undcrutand thet I must no¡v adrrurtire my applicatlon

I havc cndæsd the premiacc llcancc or rulcwnt paft of it or cxplanation

I undcctand thet if I do not complywittr thc above reguirementr my applicatlon
willbc rcjcc'ted

¡T tg Ar{ oFFENCE, UNDER SECltOt{ ltE OF Tt{E LlCENSll{G ACT 2003, TO IAKE A
FALSE STATETENT IN OR IN CONNECNOil WTH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO
NAKE A FALEE SIATETEI{T TAY BE LIABLE OI{ SUTTARY CONVICTION TO A
FIÌ{E OF AI{Y ATOUT{T.

P¡rt 6 - Slgnfurur (plcaec rcad guidancê noþ 12)

tr

ø
a

a

a
ø

Please sec box a) and orirting prcmisee liæncc.

Pleacc crc box a) and axisting pramirco liccncc.

Plcasc see box a) and exisüng premisæ licence.

r5

Page 28



Elgnrtun of rppllcrnt (tho currrnt pruniret llc¡ncc ltoldrr) or tppllcrlrt'l lollcltor or
otlrrr duly eutlrorbrd rgcnt (plcaac rcad guidanc¡ nott 13). lf dgnlng on b¡hrlf of tñe
rpplicrnt pleu ¡trb in whrt crpeclty.

Slgnature \ t- rf'
-x {-u t\. .- "/{.j--o,^---

Drte lQ ¡..¿ar-e"¿,* f--\\
Gapacity Poppleeton Allen - Solidtors for & on behalf of the applicant

When tñr prumire llcence lr jointly hcld dgnfun of Znd rppllcrnt (thr cumnt
prrmbc liccnæ holdrr) or 2nd eppllcent'r ¡ollclþr or otlrr tuthorlrrd rgent (plcase
read guilance notrl4). lf rlgnlng on brhrlf of thr rppllcrnt plrrr¡trb ln whrt
ceplclty.

Signature

D¡Ig

Gepaoity

NoÛ¡l forGuldence

Thi¡ ¡pplicrtlon crnnot be r¡¡rd !o vrry tte llcence.o t ûo crbnd tho perlod for
wtrlch thr lic¡nco hrr eilf¡ct or to vtry ¡ub¡trntblly the prmlrr to wñlch lt nhb¡. lf
you wirh to m¡ke thetspc ol chrnç to tñe plunln llcrncr you rhould mrl¡r ¡ n.w
pqmirc llc¡ncc eppllcetion undil r¡ctlon 17 of th. Licrnring Act 2003.

1. You do not havc to pay a fee if the onf purposo of the variation for wtrlch you eru
applyirlg i¡ to avoi'd becomlng liable forthe lab night lary

2. Desoribe thc prcmlses. For example thc type of premises, iF gcncral sltuaüon and
layout and any other irrformdon whlch could be rslevant to the llcensing objec{ivee.
WhErs your àpplication includer off+uppllca of alcohol and you intand to provide a
plaoe for consumption of these oflaupplhe you muet inolude a deccriptlon of where
the place will be and ib proximity to thc prumises.

3. ln þm¡ of cpeclñc rcgulabd Entertainments please noþ that:
r Plays: no licerco is rcquired lbr perfuimances bèhæen 08.00 and 23.00 on any day,

provHed that the audlence doco not e¡ceed 500.
r Film¡: no lioenca is nquilrd br'not-br-prollt film exhibition held in communþ

prcmises bohy€en 08.00 end 23.00 on any day prwidcd that the ¡udlence docc not
exceEd 500 and the oryaniser (a) gets coneont b the scr€enlng from e person who is
rerponslblc br.the pnmhec: and (b) onourus that each such ccrucning abidea by
agc classilcalion ¡atingc. 

16

Gontrct ntmo (wtrep not plwiourly glven| rnd rddn¡r for conolpondoncc
r¡¡ocirbd wllh thlr epplicrtion (pþase ruad guidance note 15)
Hcþn Ward
Popplerton Allen Sollcltop

ll you would prrfer ur to corn¡pond wlth you by rmrll your rmdl rddn¡¡ (optiondl

NlC 4AGLondonPo¡t town

0203 859 7751numb¡¡

h oo.uk

The Building
7 Pancras

Po¡t
codr

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



IP1 Representation 

Dear Councillor Georgiou, 
Could you please pass this letter to the Licencing Officer. With reference to the 
extended hour by the Stonegate Co. regarding the Occasional Half Pub, N13 4TD, 
my objections are 01.30am is over the top as we have enough problems in the area 
where we live in Kelvin Avenue. 
The pub is in the corner of Kelvin Avenue and Green Lanes. We have anti social 
behaviour, drugs, prostitutions and endless coffee shops that 
are opened till very late. This extension will only make things worse. We have 
informed all our Councillors. We have an alleyway which runs between  
Kelvin to Melbourne Avenues behind the pub which is frequently for other things _ _ 
_ _? 

___________________________________ 

Thank you for your email. I would like to inform you that Councillor A.Georgiou is 
representing us in this matter. 
many residents in Kelvin Avenue had sent their objections by post. Would you 
please check if you had received them as you do not have a Licencing Objection 
Page on your council website. 

     Some of the anti social behaviour is spitting which is green, yellow and red. 
This could be TB.The pub has good toilets yet  the punters leave the pub and go in 
the alleyway behind the pub to pee also the other poo or vomit. Banging car doors 
in Kelvin  Avenue and also knee deep dog ends.  

     We also have flower bed steel containers on Green Lanes near the pub which 
the Council provided because people were driving in the pavement. These 
containers are used as rubbish tips like used condoms, cigarette dog ends, empty 
drink cans and plastic bottles. Also in Kelvin Avenue, leaving beer and small spirits 
bottles, empty or half full and take away food containers. 

 Could you please look in this matter as soon as possible. 

Annex 4Page 31



IP2 Representation 

 

I am writing to you about the above application to vary the hours for the sale of 
alcohol and provision of entertainment until 1am  and for closing time to be extended 
to 1.30am on Fridays and Saturdays. 

The pub is separated from my mother's house at xxx Kelvin Avenue by the 
alleyway.  Kelvin Avenue is primarily a residential road and my mother is xxxxxx and 
xxxxx.  I know that it is now history but the hardware shop (Legge & Co) was turned 
into a pub in contravention of restrictive covenants which were in place.  So over the 
years the noise, rubbish and disturbances caused by people visiting/leaving the pub, 
or large lorries making deliveries and parking problems have been a constant.  The 
extended hours will further encroach on the residents' quiet enjoyment of their 
homes and add to the existing problems. 

 

For these reasons I urge you to object to the proposed variation on behalf of the 
residents and in particular my mother. 

 

There have been numerous incidents in recent months of anti social behaviour in the 
vicinity and particularly in the alley way and in its surrounding areas.  The police 
should be well aware of these incidents. I am happy for Councillor Georgiou to 
represent my mother's interests in respect of this application. 

Page 32



IP3 Representation 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 REPORT NO.  
 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE: 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
8 May 2019 
 
REPORT OF : 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION : 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT: 
Application for a Variation of a Premises 
Licence  
 
PREMISES: 
The Occasional Half, 66 – 77 Green Lanes, 
N13 4TD 
 
WARD: 
Bowes 

 
 
 
1 SUPPLEMENTARY REPORT: 
 
1.1 The applicant has provided an Evidence Bundle for the Licensing Sub-

Committee and objectors to consider and is attached in Annex 5. 
 

 
 

Background Papers:  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer :  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 5Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/19 REPORT NO.  
 

 
Agenda - Part 

 
Item 

 

COMMITTEE: 
Licensing Sub-Committee 
8 May 2019 
 
REPORT OF: 
Principal Licensing Officer 
 
LEGISLATION: 
Licensing Act 2003 

SUBJECT: 
Application for a New Premises Licence – 
Broadwick Venues Ltd, Festival Application 
 
PREMISES: 
Meridian Water, Unit 4-6B Orbital Business 
Park, &  
Land to the south of Units 4-6B, Orbital 
Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, 
N18 3BW    
 
WARD: 
Upper Edmonton 
 

 
 

1. LICENSING HISTORY: 
 

1.1 The premises are situated in the area known as Meridian Water and consists 
of warehouses in the Orbital Business Park and also land, referred to as the 
IKEA clear site.  

 
1.2 The warehouses and land have not been subject to a licence application 

previously. 
 

1.3 The Council’s Socio-Economic Lead Meridian Water Team has provided an 
overview of the Meridian Water project which is produced in Annex 1. 

 
1.4 Local area maps are produced in Annex 2. The entrance to the land backs on 

to Leeside Road, the north side of the road is in Enfield, the south side is 
Haringey. 

 
 

2. THIS APPLICATION: 
 

2.1 On 15 March 2019 two applications were made by Broadwick Venues Limited, 
for two new Premises Licence as follows: 

 
A. The Festival Application (reference numbers WK/218074578 and 

WK/218074598) for Meridian Water, Unit 4-6B Orbital Business Park, and 
Land to the south of Units 4-6B, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, 
Edmonton, N18 3BW.  
 

B. The Events Application (reference number WK/218074640) for Meridian 
Water, Unit 4-6B Orbital Business Park, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon 
Road, Edmonton, N18 3BW.  
 

 
2.2 This report relates to the ‘Festival Application only’. 

 

Page 63 Agenda Item 4



2.3 The hearing for the ‘Events Application’ has been adjourned to a later date, 
which will be confirmed to all parties. 

 
2.4 An explanation has been provided by the Property Information Team in Annex 

3 for the two reference numbers given to the Festival Application. The online 
register information relating to each reference number is identical as it relates 
to the same Festival Application. 

  
2.5 According to Companies House (check carried out on 29/04/2019), the 

Company Directors of Broadwick Venues Limited are listed as: Simon Tracey, 
Simeon Aldred, Ian Buckley, Ian Hanson, Darren Singer and Bradley 
Thompson. 
 

2.6 The proposed Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Mr Simeon Aldred.  
 

2.7 The application seeks: 
 

2.7.1 The premises licence to be unlimited. 
 

2.7.2 The maximum capacity will not exceed 22,261. 
 

2.7.3 For the licence to be in force annually for the ‘Field Day Festival’ which is two 
event days only.  

 
2.7.4 The application seeks the following licensable activities (amended 

30/4/2019): 
 

Licensable Activity Timings (daily) Indoors Outdoors Both 

Plays 12:00 to 03:00 X   

Plays 12:00 to 22:30  X  

Films 12:00 to 03:00 X   

Films 12:00 to 22:30  X  

Live music 12:00 to 03:00 X   

Live music 12:00 to 22:30  X  

Recorded music 12:00 to 03:00 X   

Recorded music 12:00 to 22:30  X  

Performance of dance 12:00 to 03:00 X   

Performance of dance 12:00 to 22:30  X  

Anything else of a similar 
description 

12:00 to 03:00 X   

Anything else of a similar 
description 

12:00 to 22:30  X  

Late night refreshment 23:00 to 03:00   X 

Supply of Alcohol 12:00 to 02:30 X   

Supply of Alcohol 12:00 to 22:00  X  

Hours premises are open to 
the public 

12:00 to 03:00    

 
 

2.8 Each of the Responsible Authorities were consulted in respect of the 
application. 

 
2.9 A copy of the application and the original plan is attached as Annex 4 and 

Annex 5 respectively. NB. Significant amendments have been made to the 

Page 64



application and most up to date details are referred to in this report and 
provided in the additional information provided - see section 4.1 below. 

 
2.10 As with all large-scale events in the borough, the applicant has attended 

meetings with Enfield’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG). The Chair of the SAG 
has provided a summary of the Event Management Plan (EMP) for the 
Licensing Sub-Committee and is attached as Annex 6.  

 
2.11 Field Day Festival has taken place on previous years within other London 

parks, such as Victoria Park (London Borough of Tower Hamlets) and 
Brockwell Park (London Borough of Lambeth). The premises licence holder 
for these events were Waxarch Limited. 

 
2.12 Broadwick Venues Limited is linked to The Printworks London, Surrey Quays 

Road, London, SE16 7PJ (London Borough of Southwark), and the premises 
licence holder is Xcite Campaign Management Limited. 

 
2.13 The licensing authorities, for the venues stated above, have reported that no 

review action or other enforcement action has been taken against the 
premises licence holders for breaches of licensing or health and safety law.  

 
 
 
3. RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS: 
 

3.1 Responsible Authorities: 
 

3.1.1 The Metropolitan Police made representation against the application on the 
grounds of prevention of crime and disorder; prevention of public nuisance 
and public safety. This representation will be referred to as IP2 and 
produced in Annex 7. 

 
3.1.2 The London Fire Brigade made representation against the application on 

the grounds of public safety. This representation will be referred to as IP4 
and produced in Annex 8. 

 
 

3.2 Other Persons: Representations have been made, against the application, 
by six parties. The representations will be produced as and referred to as 
follows: 
IP1 – Resident A, Chingford – Annex 9 
IP3 - Tottenham Hotspur Football & Athletic Co Ltd – Annex 10a to 10f (this 
includes the representation from the previous application) 
IP5 – Resident B, Edmonton – Annex 11 
IP6 - Enfield’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) – Annex 12 

 IP7 – London Borough of Haringey Licensing Authority – Annex 13 
 IP8 – Resident C, Chingford – Annex 14 
 

3.3 The grounds of these representations include the prevention of crime & 
disorder; the prevention of public nuisance, public safety and protection of 
children from harm. 

 
 
 

Page 65



 
 
4. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PRODUCED BY THE APPLICANT: 
 
4.1 The applicant has provided additional information to support the application, 

which has also been circulated to the objectors, as follows: 
 

4.1.1 Letter to the council, dated 26 April 2019. Attached as Annex 15. 
4.1.2 Planning Committee Report for Site. Attached as Annex 16. 
4.1.3 Covering letter, dated 30 April 2019. Attached as Annex 17. 
4.1.4 Index for hearing bundle. Attached as Annex 18. 
4.1.5 Hearing bundle. Attached as Annex 19. 

 

4.2 Conditions arising from this application and representations are presented in 
Tab 2, Annex 19. 
 

4.3 An updated site plan for the Field Day Festival 2019 is presented in Tab 4, 
Annex 19. 
 

 
5. ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS FROM OBJECTORS 
 

5.1 Tottenham Hotspur Football & Athletic Co Ltd (IP3) has provided additional 
representations and are attached as Annex 20a to 20d. 
 
 

6. SITE VISIT 
 

6.1 The SAG Chair recommended that Members of the licensing sub-committee 
carry out a site visit, as it would be beneficial to view the actual site and area, 
due to the unusual layout of the site, event type and also the large capacity 
being sought in the application.   
 

6.2 The site visit took place on Friday 26 April 2019, with the Members and 
Principal Licensing Officer only, and in accordance with the Site Visit 
Protocol.  

 
 
 
7. RELEVANT LAW, GUIDANCE & POLICIES: 
 
7.1 The paragraphs below are extracted from either: 
7.1.1 the Licensing Act 2003 (‘Act’); or 
7.1.2 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State to the Home Office of April 

2017 (‘Guid’); or 
7.1.3 the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing Policy Statement of January 2015 

(‘Pol’). 
 
 

General Principles: 
7.2 The Licensing Sub-Committee must carry out its functions with a view to 

promoting the licensing objectives [Act s.4(1)]. 
 

Page 66



7.3 The licensing objectives are: 
7.3.1 the prevention of crime and disorder; 
7.3.2 public safety; 
7.3.3 the prevention of public nuisance; & 
7.3.4 the protection of children from harm [Act s.4(2)]. 
 
7.4 In carrying out its functions, the Sub-Committee must also have regard to: 
7.4.1 the Council’s licensing policy statement; & 
7.4.2 guidance issued by the Secretary of State [Act s.4(3)]. 
 
 
 

Significant Events: 
 
7.5 The Council recommends that for significant events, a comprehensive risk 

assessment is undertaken by premises licence holders to ensure that matters 
related to the licensing objectives are identified and addressed. [Pol 14.1] 

 
 

Hours: 
 
7.6 The Sub-Committee decides licensed opening hours as part of the 

implementation of the licensing policy statement and is best placed to make 
decisions about appropriate opening hours in their area based on their local 
knowledge and in consultation with responsible authorities [Guid 10.13]. 

 
7.7 Stricter conditions with regard to licensing hours may be required for licensed 

premises situated in or immediately adjacent to residential areas to ensure 
that disturbance to local residents is avoided. This will particularly apply in 
circumstances where, having regard to the location, size and nature of the 
premises, it is likely that disturbance will be caused to residents in the vicinity 
of the premises by concentrations of people leaving, particularly during 
normal night-time sleeping periods [Pol s.8.4]. 

 
 
 

Cumulative Impact Policy 
 

7.8 The premises is not situated in any of Enfield’s Cumulative Impact Policy  
areas [Pol 9.20]. 
 
 
Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) 

 

7.9 Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOs) allow the council to work with the 
police to control antisocial behaviour in public places. A PSPO imposes 
prohibitions or restrictions in a public place to stop people committing 
antisocial behaviour.Breaking a PSPO is a criminal offence which can result in 
a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN) of £100, or a fine of up to £1,000 if 
prosecuted. Since March 2018, several PSPOs were issued across Enfield, 
including control of alcohol consumption. The order relating to the control of 
alcohol consumption designates the whole borough of Enfield as the area to 
which it applies and states: 
 

Page 67



1. Person(s) within the designated area shall not consume alcohol, or anything which 
the authorised person reasonably believes to be alcohol, if requested to stop by 
an authorised person. 
 

2. Exemptions shall apply in cases where the consumption of alcohol is on premises 

or public space licensed under the Licensing Act 2003, or where the consumption 

of alcohol is authorised by virtue of Part III of the London Local Authorities Act 

1990 (tables and chairs licences). 

 

3. Person(s) who breach this prohibition shall (with the exemption of the matters 

referred to in above) immediately surrender if requested in accordance with the 

requirements under section 63(2), alcohol, or anything which the authorised 

person reasonably believes to be alcohol, in his/her possession to an authorised 

person and the authorised person is thereafter authorised to dispose of any item 

under section 63(5) of the Act. 

 

 
Advertisement of applications 

 
 

7.10 The Licensing Authority is satisfied that the application was advertised in 
accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.  

 
 
 Decision: 
 
7.11  As a matter of practice, the Sub-Committee should seek to focus the hearing 

on the steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing 
objective or objectives that have given rise to the specific representation and 
avoid straying into undisputed areas [Guid 9.37].  

 
7.12 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing 

objectives in the overall interests of the local community, the Sub-Committee 
must give appropriate weight to: 

7.12.1 the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  
7.12.2 the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the 

parties;  
7.12.3 the guidance; and  
7.12.4 its own statement of licensing policy [Guid 9.38]. 
 
7.13 Having heard all of the representations (from all parties) the Sub-Committee 

must take such steps as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. The steps are:  

7.13.1 to grant the application subject to the mandatory conditions and such 
conditions as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; 

7.13.2 to exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates; 

7.13.3 to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
7.13.4 to reject the application [Act s.18]. 
 
 
 

Page 68



Background Papers:  
None other than any identified within the 
report.  
 
Contact Officer:  
Ellie Green on 020 8379 8543 

 

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1 
 

Meridian Water Project Overview 
 
 
Meridian Water is a 20 year project which will bring 10,000 new homes and 6,000 
new jobs to Enfield across an 85ha site including 55ha of developable land. 
 
As with any scheme of this scale, one of the greatest challenges is to establish an 
approach to development which creates a sense of place from day one and doesn’t 
leave residents and businesses who invest in the early phases of development from 
feeling like they are living or working on a building site for decades. 
 
Part of that process is to bring forward meanwhile uses which animate the scheme 
by creating jobs and visitors onto sites which will almost certainly evolve in terms of 
their final use. These meanwhile uses are also important for a number of other 
reasons: 
 

 They bring visitors to the area which is vital both in terms of raising the profile 
of Meridian Water but also in justifying early investment in transports 
infrastructure – the new Meridian Water station being a notable example in 
this instance.  
 

 They keep sites secure from, for example, fly tipping. Meridian Water has 
suffered significantly from illegal fly tipping which is both expensive to remove 
and creates a negative image of the area for potential investors.  
 

 They create opportunities, including jobs, for residents in surrounding areas, 
an essential part of realising integration between existing and new 
communities.  
 

 They realise income to improve overall viability of the development. 
 
The Council has identified the empty Orbital Business park sheds and IKEA clear 
site as a part of its meanwhile strategy. The site, at approximately 4 ha,  and is one 
of the larger meanwhile opportunities across the development and could provide 
meanwhile uses that could benefit from both the cleared land and a number of large 
sheds with excellent ceiling heights.  
 
The Council’s decision to enter into discussion with Vibration Group was on the basis 
that their proposals meet all of the key aspirations set out above.  
 
Cabinet supported the principle of progressing a proposal with Vibration Group in 
July 2018. In making its decision Cabinet considered that the industrial sheds would 
be converted into a major cultural and music venue in London celebrating music, 
film, art performance and theatre, complemented by music festivals and other 
outdoor content during the summer months – establishing Meridian Water as an 
exciting cultural destination.  It was noted that this would make a major contribution 
to the borough’s cultural offer, establish a night time economy offer and significantly 
raise the profile of Meridian Water.  

Page 71



 
Cabinet also considered the track record of the operator – noting that the provider 
had demonstrated that carefully curated culture attracts footfall to an area, generates 
considerable PR and changes the perception of an area, all of which are key 
aspirations for Meridian Water.  
 
Simon Gardner  
Socio- Economic Lead Meridian Water Team  
 

Page 72



Annex 2 
Local Area Maps 

Key for all three maps: 

A – Broadwick Ltd 

B – Tottenham Hotspurs, White Hart Lane Stadium 

C – Meridian Water new station (overground) 

D – Tottenham Hale station (overground and underground) 

Map 1: 

 A

B

C

P
age 73



Map 2: 
A

B

D

P
age 74



Map 3: 

A

B

C

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex 3 
 

Property Information Explanation 
 
The Council’s Property Information Team had to create two separate addresses for 
the below: 
 
Meridian Water  
4-6b Orbital Business Park 
5 Argon Road 
Edmonton 
N18 3BW 
 
And  
 
Meridian Water 
Land to south of 4-6b Obital Business Park 
5 Argon Road 
Edmonton 
N18 3BW 
 
The system would not allow the team to enter this as one address. 
 
The Property Information Team also have standards that they have to adhere to. 
BS7666 is a British standard that they have to follow and detailed in this is how 
addresses are to be entered. 
 
BS7666 is a British Standard that sets out the guidelines upon which the Local Land 
and Property Gazetteers (LLPGs) and Local Street Gazetteers (LSGs) are built. It 
set out standards by which to record Basic Land and Property Units (BLPUs), which 
include within them a Unique Property Reference Number (UPRN), grid co-ordinates 
and one or more Land Property Identifiers (LPIs). 
 
BS7666 defines the essential components of a gazetteer of geographic locations and 
provides a general model of spatial references based upon named spatial units in 
the UK. It defines the attributes of each geographic location to be recorded in a 
gazetteer, and the metadata associated with the gazetteer. It provides the basis for 
the other parts of BS7666 by defining general structures to enable gazetteers of a 
range of classes of geographic locations to be created in a consistent way. Specific 
gazetteers of particular classes of locations are defined in the other parts of BS 
7666. 
 
Because of the standardised way that BS7666 enforces the recording of street and 
land and property information, each LLPG or LSG is able to be amalgamated into 
their corresponding national datasets i.e. the National Land and Property Gazetteer 
and the National Street Gazetteer. If addresses are entered incorrectly the national 
hub will exclude the address from the database until it meets BS7666 standards.  
 
Creating two separate addresses was the only way to create land and 4-6b Orbital 
Business Park. 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



'Ðq a s'rtrs1 y.
'ã

urkl aKolçsqf,
London Borough of Enfield

ApplicatÍon for a premises licence to be granted
under the Llcensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE F'OLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end ofthe form. If you are completing
this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases €nsure that your answers are inside the
boxes and written in black ink, Use additional sheets if necessa¡y.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/We Venues Limited
(nsert name(s) of øpplicant)

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the LicensÍng Act 2003 for the premises described in
Part 1 below (the premises) and l/we are making this application to you as the relevant llcensing
authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 - Premises DetaÍls

Telephone number at prerrises (if any)

Non-domestic rateable value of premises Not rated

Part2 - Applicant Details

Please state whether you are applymg for a pre,mises licence as

Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * tr please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual {'

i. as a limited company

ii. as apartnershþ

iii. as an unincorporated association or

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation)

E please complete section (B)

f] please complete section (B)

n please complete section (B)

¡ please complete section (B)

Postal address ofpremises or, ifnone, ordnance survey map reference or description

Meridian Water
Units4,5,6,6a&b .1.

Orbital Business Park
5 ArgonRoad
and
Land to the south of Units 4,5,6,6a&b
Orbital Business Park
5 Argon Road
Edmonton

Post tswn London Postcode Nr8 3BW

Annex 4Page 79



c)

d)

e)

Ð

c)

a rocognised club

a charity

the proprietor of an educational establishment

a health service body

a person who is registered under Part 2 ofthe Care
Standards Act 2000 (cl4) in respecf ofan independent
hospital in Wales

Ca) a persûn who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of tr please complete section (B)
the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the
meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

h) the chief officer ofpolice of a police force in England n please complete section (B)
and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

Please tick yes

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises for
licensable activities; or

I:am making the application pursuant to a

rt"tút ty fijnction or :

.a funotio¡r discharged by virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative
,,..,. ' , .

(A) INDMDUAL APPLICA¡ITS (fill in as applicable)
¡! ' :' I 

": 
'

n please complete section (B)

n please complete section @)

Ü please complete section @)

I please complete section @)

n please complete section @)

x¡

tr
tr

Miss ¡ Ms¡ OtherTitle (for
example, Rev)

Surname tr'lrst names

I am 18 years old or over n Please tick yes

Current postal address if
different from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-m¡il ¡ddress
(optional)

,'

Page 80



Mr tr lurs ! Miss n Ms Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Surname First names

I am l8 yearsold orover Please tick yes

Current postal address if
differcnt from premises
address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contâct telephone number

E-mail address
(opftonal)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)

(B) OTHERAPPLTCATYTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please $ve any
registered number. In the case of a parhrership or other Joint venture (other th¡n a body corporate),
please give the name and ¡ddress ofench party concerned.

Name
Broadwick Venues Limited

Address
30 Læicester Square
Londbn
WC2HTLA

Registered number (where applicable)
10884920

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, cornpany, unincorporated association etc.)
Company

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

3

Page 81



Part 3 Operating Schedule

When do you want the premises licence to start?

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do you
want it to end?

DD MM YYYY

DD MM YYYY

Please give a general description of the premises þlease read guidance note l)

A festival licence for warehouses and external space. The premises are situated at Meridian Water, Units 4,
5,6,6a&b, Orbital Business Parlc 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London" Nl8 3BW and Land to the South of
Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Oúital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London, Nl8 3BW.

The capacity for events will be capped at 25,0fi). The capacity will rernain 25,000 until infrastructure is in
pface.

The cap¿city will only be increased whe,n adequate means of escape to meet the capacity for any eve,nt,

including any required infrastructure, for exarnple bridges, emergency exits are agreed with the safety
advisory group and are in place prior to the premises being open.

A detailed layout plan showing ppsitions of temporary structures such as stages, bars, food concessions,
ternporary toilet blocks and other infrastructure for the event will be provided and agreed through the SAG
process.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time,
please state the number expected to attend.

39,999

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

@lease see sections I and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedules I and.2 to the Lioensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertarnment

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

Ð recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

Ð performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h\ anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)\'' (if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Please tick any that
apply

a

E

E

X

E

4

Page 82



ñ
ProvisÍon of late nisht refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)

Supplv of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes Il L and M

A

Plays
"Ståndard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

lVill the oerformance of a nlav take nlace iudoors
or outdoors or both - nlease tick þlease read
guidance note 2)

lndoors tr

Outdoors u
Day Start Finish Both x
Mon 08:00 06:00 Please sive further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 06:00

rWed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal variations for performing olavs þlease read guidance
note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non st¡ndard timins¡. lYhere vou intend to use the nremlses for the
performance of nlavs at different times to those listed in the column on
the lefL olease list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the temrinal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start ofthe hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

5

Page 83



B

Films
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

YViII ihe exhibition of lilms take olace indoors or
outdoors or both - olease tick þlease read guidance
note 2)

Indoors tr

Outdoors tr
Day Start Finish Both

Mon 08:00 06;00 Please sive further details here (please read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08i00 06:00 State anv season¡l iariations for the exhibition of films þlease reäd
guidance note 4)

Thur 08:00 0ó:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non standard timlnss. Where vou intend to use the nremises for the
exhibltion of films at different times to those listed in the column on the
lèft" please lisf þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terrninal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of,the hours permitted for licensable activities onNew Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

6

Page 84



c

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Ple¡se dve frrrther details þlease read guidance note 3)

Day Start Finish

Mon 08:00 06:00

Tue 08:00 06:00 St¡te lnv seasonal variations for indoor soortins events þlease read
guidance note 4)

Wed 08:00 06:00

Thw 08:00 06:00 Non standard fiminps. \ilhere vou intend to use tùe nremises for ¡ndoor
sportinp ev,epts at difïerent times to those l¡sted in the column on the left
please list (please read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the te,rrrinal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be pennitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New year's Day.

Fri 08:00 0ó:00

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

7

Page 85



D

Boxing or wresfling
entertainments
Standård days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Will tle boxils or wrestlinq entertainment take
place indoors oroutdoors or both - ple¡se tick
þlease read guidance note 2)

Indoors

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 08:00 06:00 Pleasê sive further details here þlease read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal varlations for boxins or wrestlinq entertalnment
(please read guidance note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non st¡ndard timinqs. Where vou intend to use the orem¡ses for boxlns
or wrestlinq enterta¡nment at dlfferent t¡mes to those licted in the column
on the left. please list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable aclivities shall also be permitted betwe€n
the end ofthe hours permiued for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

I

Page 86



E

Live music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Will the ¡erformance of live music t¡ke olace
indoors or outdoors or both - olease t¡ck þlease
read guidance note 2)

Times in bold are for outdoors.

Indoors tr

Outdoore

Day Stårt Finish Both E
Mon 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:30

Tue 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal varistions for the performance of live music (please
read guidance note 4)

09:00 22230

Thur 08:00 0ó:00

09:00 22:30

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non ct¡ndard timines. lVhere vou ¡ntend to use the oremises for the
oerformance of live muslc at dÍfferent times to those listed in the column
on the left. olease list (please read guidance not€ 5)

That at the start of British Surnmertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New year's Eve to
th" rtq{qfdre hours pennitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

09:00 2223O

Sat 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

Sr¡n 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:30

9

Page 87



F

Recorded music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Will the plavine of recorded music t¡ke ol¡ce
lndoors or outdoors or both - olease tick þlease
read guidance note 2)

Times in bold a¡e for outdoors.

Indoors tr

Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both X
Mon 08:00 06:00 Please s¡ve furfàer details here (please read guidance note 3)

09:00 22230

Tue 08:00 06:00

09:00 22:30

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv seasonal vari¡t¡ons for the rlayinp of recorded muslc þlease
read guidance note 4)

09:00 22:30

Thur 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

Fd 08:00 06:00 Non standard timines. Where vou Íntend to use tle oremises for the
olavinq of recorded music at different timcs to those listed in the column
on the left. ¡lèase list (please read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be exte¡rded by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

09:00 22230

Sat 08:00 06:00

09:00 22230

Sun 08:00 06:00

09:00 22t30

t0

Page 88



G

Performances of dance
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Will the oerformance of dance take nlace indoors
or outdoors or both - olease tick þlease read
guidance note 2)

Indoors n

Outdoors

Day Stårt Finish Both E
Mon 08:00 06:00 Please sive further details here þlease read guidance note 3)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00 State anv sessonal variations for the oerformance ofdsnce (please read
guidance note 4)

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00 Non stand¡rd timinss. Where vou intend to use the premises for tle
performance of dsnce at differeit times to those llsted ln the column on
the left rlease list (please read guidance note 5)

That at the start of Brilish Summertime the terminal hor¡r for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted betwee,n
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

1t

Page 89



H

Anything of a slmilar
description to that falling
wÍthtn (e), (Ð or (g)
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
6)

Please give a description of the t¡pe of entertainment you will be providing

Day Start Finish \Yill thls entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both - please tick þlease read guidance
note 2)

Indoors tr
Mon 08:00 06:00 Outdoors u

Both EI
Tue 08:00 06:00 Please s¡ve further detail¡ here (please read guidance note 3)

Wed 08:00 06:00

Thur 08:00 06:00 State anv seàsonal variations for entertoinment of a similar description to
that f¡lnnq wlthln le). (O or ls) (please read guidance note 4)

Fri 08:00 06:00

Sat 08:00
06:00

Non st¡4d¡rd timines. Where vou ¡ntend to use the oremises for the
entertainment of a similar descrintion to t}¡t fallinq within le). (fl or fgl
at dlfferent times to those listed in the column on the left. rlease list
þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licerisable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be perrnitted between
the end of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on Nelv Year's Day.

Sun 08:00
06:00

L2

Page 90



J

Suppty ofalcohol
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

lVill the suoplv of ¡lcohol be for consumotion -
please tlck (please read guidance note 7)

On the
premises

Offthe
premises

Day Stârt Finish Both EX

Mon 08:00 06:00 Sfate anv sensonal variations for the suoolv of alcohol þlease read
guidance note 4)

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 06:00

Thur 08:00 0ó:00 Non standard timinqs. Where vou intend to use the oremises for the
susolv of elcohol al different times to those listed in tùe column on the
Ieft. please list þlease read guidance note 5)

That at the start of British Sr¡mmertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end ofthe hours permitted for.licensable activities onNew Year's Eve to
the start of the hours perrnitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Fri 08:00 06:00

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 0E:00 06:00

State the name and details of the individusl whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated
premises supervisor:

Name
SimeonAldred

Date ofBirth  

Address

 

Postcode

Porsonal liceirce number (if known) 

Iszuing licensing authority (if known) Broxtowe Borough Council

t4

Page 91



I

Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance note
6)

Will the provÍsion of late night refreshment take
place indoors or outdoors or both - please tick
þlease read guidance note 2)

Indoors

Outdoors tr
Day Start Finish Both

Mon 23:00 05;00 Please sive further details here þlease read guidance note 3)

Tue 23:00 05:00

rWed
23:OO 05:00 Statg anv seasonal vari¡tions for the provision oflate nfsht refreshment

(please read guidance note 4)

Thr¡r 23:00 05:00

Fri 23:00 05:00 Non standard timinqs. TVhere vou intend to use the oremlses for the
provision of late nipht refreshment at different times. to those listed in
the column on the left olease list þlease read guidance nore 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terrrinal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by'one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end of the hor¡rs permitted for licensable activities on New Yearis Eve to
the start of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Sat 23:00 05:00

Sun 23:00 05:00

13

Page 92



K

Please highlght any adult entertainment or servíces, activitles, other enterfainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children þlease read
guidance note 8).

N/A

L

Ilours premises are open
to the public
Standard days and timings
þlease read guidance riote
6)

State anv seasonal variations þlease read guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish

Mon 08:00 06:00

Tue 08:00 06:00

Wed 08:00 0ó:00

[g¡! (please read note 5)

That at the start of British Summertime the terminal hour for all licensable
activities shall be extended by one hour.

That on New Year's Eve licensable activities shall also be permitted between
the end ofthe hours permitted for licensable activities onNew Year's Eve to
the staf of the hours permitted for licensable activities on New Year's Day.

Thur 08:00 06:00

Fri 08:00 06:00

Sat 08:00 06:00

Sun 08:00 06:00

15

Page 93



M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives;

General - all four d and read note

The crime and disorder

The running of the festival and/or large scale events and licensing requirements
formal SAG process. This process will have an event mànagement and safety plan
agreed through the SAG process. This will create additional operational conditions
to the premises licence as a result of the SAG process.

A detailed layout plan showing positions of temporary structures such as stages, bars, food concessions,
temporaqr toilet blocks and other infrastructure for the event will be provided and agreed through the SAG
process.

will be approved by a
(EMSP) which will be
which will be attached

l. For all events, the premises licence holder shall submit the following completed documentation
bespoke to that eve,nt that meets the requirements of the Licensing Authority and the Enfield Safety
Advisory Group:

(a) Events Management and Safety Plan;
(b), Traffic Management Plan;
(c) Security/Crowd Management Plan;
(d) Noise Management Plan;
(e) Risk Assessment(s);
(f) Drugs Policy;
(g) Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy;
(h) Medical Management Plan;
(Ð AnV other associated documentation.

2. The eventwill be subject to the full Enñeld Safety Advisory Group process.

3. All documentation, monitoring procedures, registers and records required by the conditions of this
licence must be made available at the premises to the police and authorised officers of the council and
shouldbe kept for at least one year.

4. Requirements to or affecting any of the Licensing Objectives set out in the Licensing Act 2003
contained within all the documentation set out in Conditions I and 2 creating the Event Management
and Safety Plan will form additional conditions on the premises licence which will be obserr¡ed and
complied with.

5. That all staffwill be giveir training in relation to the Licensing Act 2003 and the following specific
areas; Licensing Act 2003 objectives and awareness, management systems and.processes to enforce the
premises licence conditions, Challenge 25 and the responsible retail of alcohol, warning and eviction
(guidelines and procedures), conflict management and maintaining all required records and registers.

6. That clearly legible signage shall be prominently displayed where it can easily be seen and read by
customers at all exits / entrances at the premises and in all external areas of the premises requesting to
the effect that customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner with respeci for lõcal
residents.

7 . "fhat a register will be maintained at the main entrance to the premises showing' the names, addresses
and up to date contact details including mobile phone contact numbers for the Lice,nsee and other
members of the management team who are on duty

L That no alcohol will be brought in to the prernises by any customsrs at any time.

16

Page 94



9. That any event held at the premises will be risk assessed and a suitable and sufficient number of male
and fern'ale door supervisors will be employed at the premises in accordance with the risk assessment. A
search policy will be implemented in line with the risk assessmernt.

10. The Licensee will only permit the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises where the
alcohol is a specialist product, or a gift in part of a corporate event. For events which are promotional
events, sealed bottles of alcohol may be part of a gift for people attending the event and customers will
be allowed to leave with those sealed containers. This will be enforced by security confiscating open
vessels on exit points.

11. The Crowd Management Plan dealing with the dispersal and egress of guests will be in operation
for every event held at the premise.

I2.Thatpromotional literature and tickets will contain information regarding trarisport options and shall
request that persons leave the area quietly.

13. That SIA secwity staffand/or stewards to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons where necessary
to leave the site quietly

14. The incident and event log shall be kept on the premises and completed on each occasion an
incide¡t or event as listed in a-g below occurs:

(a) All crimes reported to the site;
(b) All ejections of pafions;
(c) Any complaints received;
(d) Any incidents of disorder;
(e) Any faults in the CCTV system;
(Ð AnV visit by a relevant authority or emergency senrice.
(g) AnV other incident or event that impacts upon the promotion of the Licensing Objectives within the
Licensing Act 2003.

15. The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and description
of each incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the incident and any action taken
in respect of the incident. The incident book / incident recording system shall be available / be
accessible at the premises at all times that the premises are in use in accordance with this licence and
shall be made available to ofEcers of the council, police or fue brigade on request.

16. That a written record is kept of all staff authorised to sell alcohol; this staff record is to contain the
full name, home address, date of birth and national insurance number of each person so authorised. The
staff record is to be kept on the licensed premises and made available for inspection by the Licensing
Authority, Trading Standards or the Police ¡!s soon as reasonably practicable.

lT.ThatSIA security staffand./or stewards to be briefed to monitor and renrind patrons where necessary
to leave the area quietly.

18. A digiøl CCTV systÊm must be installed in the premises complying with the following criteria:

- Cameras must be sited to observe customer eirtrance and exit doors both inside and outside, the
ba¡s and floor areas.

Where practical be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed.

Provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any image.

Provide good quality images during opening times.

Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet.

I7

Page 95



Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality.

Be regularly maint¿ined to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention.

Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation.

Digital images must be kept for 31 days.

The police and authorised officers of the council will have access to images upon request

The equipment must have a suit¿ble export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the police or
authorised officers of the council can make an evidential copy ofthe data when they require.

- All cameras shall record constantly during all hours the premises are open to the public or to a
section ofthe public permitted access for corporate or private events.

- There must be a member of staff on site who can operate the CCTV when requested

19. That all information contained in the transport statement submitted to Enfield Council on
application for this licence will be implemented by the premises licence holder, A copy of the transport
stâtement shall be kept at the premises and be made available to council or police officers on request.

20. A last enûry policy will be in place stopping guests from entering the site past l:00am

21. The sale of alcohol will cease one hour prior to the site closing for events with a run-time to
06:00am. This will allow a one hour wind down unless agreed in advance with the responsible
authorities.

22. Pnor to the organisation of any festival even! the premises licence holder shall have regard to the
close proximity of the White Hart Lane Stadium and shatl consult with Tottenham Hotspur Limited
þremises licence holder) to collabo¡ativeþ manage events that take place on any day a Football
Association, Premier League oT UEFA football match takes place at \ühite Hart Lane Stadium and any
other large-scale simultaneous ev€nts.

23. The Crowd Management Plan shall detail action to be taken by staffon the discovery of drugs on a
person within the premises and will be in line with the premises Dnrgs Policy.

24. A personal licence holder shall be present on the premises and supervise the sale of alcohol,
throughout the perrritted hours for the sale of alcohol.

18

Page 96



c) Public safety

25. Ttløit unless otherwise agred in writing with the Licensing Authority, details of any proposed use
and storage of lasers, special effects, fireworks or pyrotechnics shall be detailed in ãdvance and
¡eflected in the Event Management and Safety Plan.

16-That a medical plan shall be devised in respect of the prønises and a copy of the medical plan shall
be available / be accessible at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. Thá medical
plan shall be made immediately available to council or police offi.or on requesì. First aid cover and
facilities appropriate to any event must be provided in accordance with the medical plan.

27, T\e Licensee will ensure adequate means of escape to meet the capacity for any event, including
any required infrastructure, for example, bridges, em€rgency exits are agreed with the Safety Advisory
Group and are in place prior to the premises being open.

28. The security/crowd management plan will define the procedure and process for managi¡g g1s
numbers of people in each area to ensure that capacity is not exceded

29. The Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy shall detail actions to be taken by staff upon
identification of customer vulnerability and shall include but not be limited to:

(a) Customer intoxication through drink and or drugs;
ft) Ejection of vulnerable persons;
(c) Refusat of entry to wlnerable p€n¡ons;
(d) The use of advertising materials directing customers who feel wlnerable a member of st¿ff.
30. All staff shall receive training that will assist them in identiffing customer vulnerability and shall
make interventions in accordance with the written Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy.

31. The incident and event log shall be kept on the premises and completed on each occasion an
inciderit or event as listed below occws:

(a) All crimes reported to the event;
(b) All ejections ofpatrons;
(c) Any complaints received;
(d) Any incidents of disorder;
(e) Any faults in the CCTV system;
(Ð AnV visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
(g) Any other incident or event that impacts upon the promotion of the.Licensing Objectives within ttre
Licensing Act 2003.

32. That any substantial queues formed within and outside the premises shall be supervised by event
staffwhere appropriate. Such supervision shall be aimed at preventing disorder and àiscouraging anti-
social behaviour.

33' That in the event of an emergency, music will cease and safety announcements will be relayed to
attendees to a suitable non-powered back-up system will be in place.

t9

Page 97



d) The of nulsance

e) The protection ofchildren from harm

39. That a challenge 25 scheme shall be maintained at the premises requiring that staff selling alcohol
request that any customer who looks under 25 years old, and who is atte,rnpting to purchase alcohol,
provides valid photographic identification proving that the customer is at least 18 years old.

40. Clearly legible signs shall be prominently displayed statihg to the effect that a challenge 25 policy is
in operation at the premises, that customers may be asked to provide proof of, age and stating what the
acceptable forms ofproof of age are.

41. That suitable recoräs are kept of all refi¡sed sales of age restricted products.

42.Tlrcoperational procedure of all bars will adhere to the Event Management and Safety Plan.

Checklist:

Plesse tick to indicate agreement

o I have made or enclosed palmrent ofthe fee.

I I have enclosed the plan of the premises.

¡ I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others where
applicable.

¡ I have enclosed the consent forrn completed by the individual I wish to be designated premises

E
tr

34. That a comprehensive Noise Management Plan shall be devised and reflected as an Appendix to the
Event Management and Safety Plan in respect of the premises and a copy of the Noise Management
Plan shall be accessible at the premises at all times that the premises are in operation. The Noise
Management Plan shall be made immsdi¿1"1t available to council or police officers on request. That the
licensee will ensure that thepremises Noise Management Plan is adhered to at all times.

35. That all relevant staff working at the premises shall be trained in the content of the Noise
Management Plan and be aware of their responsibilities and duties under it. Records of relevant faining
shall be kept with the Noise Management Plan.

36. That a telephone number and/or email addre.ss should be made available on relevant websites for
any noise complaints. Any noise complaints should be logged and investigated with written records of
the details available to view by the Local Authority. Should any noise complaints be received, and if
noise levels are above those specified in the licence conditions, action should be taken to reduce the
levels at the noise source.

37.T\ît permitted sound levels shall be specified in the contact conditions with hirers of the premises
to ensure sound levels are maintained within the'limits in order to reduce the risk of disturbance.
Further, during a funotion in the premiseso sample noise measurements shall be made by a designated
petrson with an approved sound level meter to eru¡ure that the levels are not being breached. Immediate
action will be taken to reduce levels if this should arise.

38. Sþs shall be prominentþ displayed on the exit doors advising customers that the premises are in a
Public Space Protection Order Area (or similar) and that alcohol should not be taken offthe premises
and consumed in the sheet. These notices shall be positioned at eye level and in a location where they
can be read by those leaving the premises

20

Page 98



supervisor, if applicable.

I understand that I must now advertise my application.

I undersønd that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected.

[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in aparhrership which is not a limited
liability parnrership, but not companies or limited liability partrershipsl I have included
documents demonstrating my entitlerne,nt to work in the United Kingdom þlease read note l5).

IT IS AI\ OFFENCE, I]NDER SECTION 158 OF TEE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A
T.ALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN COI\NECTION IVTTH THIS APPLICATION. TEOSE }VHO
MAKE A F'ALSE STATTMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON STIMMÄRY CO]YVICTION TO A FII\¡:E OF
A¡TY AMO[]NT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE T]NDER SECTION 248 OF TIIE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON
TO IVORr(WIIEN TmY KNOIV, ORHAVE REASONA.BLE CAUSETO BELTEVE,TITAT TIrEy
ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF TITEIR IMIVtrGRATION STATUS.
TIIOSE WHO EMPLOY ATt ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR }YHO IS SUBJECT TO
COIIITTIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY T]IIDDR
SECTION 15 OF TIrE TMMIGRATION, ASYLITM AFID NATIONALmY ACT 2006 A¡ID
PI]RSUAI\TT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, \ryILL BE COM1VtrTTING AI\I OFFENCE
WHERE TIIEY rlo SO IN THE KNOIVLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE,
THATTHE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 - Signatures þlease read guidance note l0)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note I l). If
signing on behalf of the appticanq please state in what capacity.

For joint applications, signature of 2"d applicant or 2od applicant's solicitor or other authorised agent
þlease read guidance note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, pleese state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

a

o

o

E
EI

E

Declaration

a [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a parhership which
is not a limited liabilþ parürerstripl I understand I am not entitled to be issued
with a licence if I do not have the e¡rtitlement to live and work in the uK (or if I
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating io the
carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I
cease to be entitled to live and work in the uK þlease read guidance note 15)
The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the IJK (and is not
subject to conditions prwenting him or her from doing work relating to a
licesable activity) and I have sfip a copy of his or her proof of entitlernent to
worþ if appropriate þlease se{nþte tS)

Signature i l,rfùq,[ "|.u*Date ti, ûf\û ,t 2.Õ r\
Capacity Woods lVhur 2014 Limited - Solicitors for the Applicant

2L

Page 99



Contact name (where not previously giveÐ and postal address for correspondence associated with this
application þlease read guidance note 13)
Paddy Whur
Woods Whur2014Limited
Devonshi¡e House
38 York Place

Fost town Iæeds Fostcode LSl 2ED
Telephone number (if any) 0ll3 234 3055

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)
carole@woodswhur. co.uk

Capacity

22

Page 100



Annex 5 

 

 

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
Version 2 3000419 

Annex 6 

 

Report by  

Esther Hughes  

Team Leader – Consumer Protection   

Chair of the Safety Advisory Group  

30th April 2019 

 

 

Report for 

Licensing Sub Committee 

 

Regarding Premises Licence Applications by  

Broadwick Venues Limited  

for 

 

Drumsheds AND Land to the South (Festival Licence) 

Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, 

Edmonton, London, N18 3BW And Land to the south of Units 4, 5, 6, 

6a&b,Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



2 
Version 2 3000419 

Content 

1. Introduction and Background 

2. Enfield Safety Advisory Group 

3. Licence Application Background 

4. Field Day Event Documentation Summary 

5. Tottenham Hotspurs Stadium (THS) 

6. Planning Permission 

7. Independent Review of the Event Documentation 

8. Recommendations 

9. Conclusions 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix 1: Site Plan – proposed licenced area 

Appendix 2: List of Meridian Water SAG members by Organisation 

Appendix 3: Field Day – ESMP V1.4 (Headings Only) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



3 
Version 2 3000419 

 

1.0 Introduction and Background 

 

1.1 This is a report of the Chair of the Enfield Safety Advisory Group (SAG) 

to the Licensing Committee following an application, in accordance with 

the Licensing Act 2003, by Broadwick Venues Limited for a premise 

license for a two day annual event (Field Day) at; 

 

1.1.1  Drumsheds AND Land to the South (Festival Application Ref: 

WK218074598 and WK218074578, for  25,000) 

Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 

Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW  

 

And 

 

Land to the south of Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b,Orbital Business Park, 5 

Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW 

 

1.2 The proposed site was formerly industrial so has not previously been used for 

the purposes regulated entertainment. 

 

1.3 See Appendix 1 for site plan. 

 

 

2.   Enfield’s Safety Advisory Group (SAG) 

 

2.1  Due to the scale of the event the proposed event was subject to a 

SAG. 

2.2 SAGs provide a forum for discussing and advising on public safety at 

events. The SAG will review event documentation and assist in 

providing any additional recommendations to improve on any safety 

matters. The SAG process facilitates cooperation and coordination 

between all relevant agencies. SAGs are non-statutory bodies and so 

do not have legal powers or responsibilities.  

2.3 However, the members of the SAG have their own statutory 

responsibilities outside of the group and certain members are defined 

as Responsible Authorities under the Licencing Act 2003 and have in 

relation to this application submitted their own representations. 

 

2.4 The SAG is not responsible for the safe planning and management of 

the event. Event organisers and others involved in the running of an 

Page 105



4 
Version 2 3000419 

event, retain the principal legal duties for ensuring public safety and 

adherence to the licencing objectives.  

 

2.5 The role of the SAG is different to that of the Licensing Authority who 

are responsible for determining licence applications. However, 

consultation with the SAG regarding event documentation should 

provide some additional assurance to the Licensing Authority regarding 

the suitability of plans submitted by the applicant for the safe running of 

their event.   

 

2.6  The Enfield SAG routinely meet every third Tuesday of the month or 

more frequently if required. The group have specific terms of reference 

and a core membership. However, for the proposed use of this event 

location the membership was extended to include stakeholders not 

usually part of the regular Enfield SAG. For example, Enfield’s 

Regeneration Team; Haringey Council; Waltham Forest Council; Lee 

Valley Regional Parks Authority and Greater Anglia. This is referred to 

as the Meridian Water SAG. 

 

2.7 The Meridian Water SAG have met regularly since September 2018 and 

carried out various site visits to discuss the use of the site for a two-day 

music festival; Field Day.  

 

2.8 A list of Meridian Water SAG members by organisation and dates of 

SAG meetings for Field Day, are detailed in Appendix 2. 

 

2.9 In consideration of the suitability of event documentation the SAG has 

referred to industry recognised events guidance “the Purple Guide – to 

Health, Safety and Welfare at Music and Other Events;” “Guide to Safety 

at Sports Grounds “Green Guide”” and “The UK Good Practice Guide to 

Working in Safety Advisory Groups.” 

 

3. License Application – Background  

3.1 Historically, Field Day has been held at Brockwell Park, Lambeth in 

2018, following ten years at Victoria Park, Tower Hamlets 

 Field Day is a two-day music festival hosted by Broadwick Live. It is 

planned for an attendee level of 25,000 on both the 7th and 8th June 

2019; including outdoor music 12:00-22:30 and indoor music 

(recorded) until 03:00.  

Page 106



5 
Version 2 3000419 

 

3.2 For the later finish from 22:30 to 03:00, attendees will be in the 

Drumsheds and not on the open field. The attendee level for this latter 

part of the festival is 7,000 on both days. There is a last entry of 

20:00. 

 

3.3 In March 2019, Broadwick Live provided draft event documentation to 

the SAG for consultation. Following feedback from the SAG and review 

by Eric Stuart, Gentain Events (see para 9.), these documents were 

updated.  

 

3.4 However due to ongoing work and development of the site, the 

following documentation was not submitted in the March draft.  

 3.3.1 Appendix F - Risk Assessments  

3.3.2 Appendix R - Emergency Evacuation 

3.3.3 Venue capacity assessment for the Drumsheds  
 

3.4 The last working day for representations was Friday 12th April 2019. In 

the absence of the above documents it would have been remiss of the 

SAG not to make a representation until it had had the opportunity to 

review these.    

3.5 Appendix F – Risk Assessments was provided to the SAG Chair by 

email on the 29th April 2019 and Appendix R – Emergency Evacuation 

plan was provided by email on the 30th April.  

 

Unfortunately, this does not give enough time for a review of the 

documents before the deadline for submission of this report. The Chair 

of the SAG will consult with the group and provide an update in 

advance of the 8th May Licensing Committee Hearing, should there be 

any concerns over these documents.  

3.6        The event documents are not appended to this report; some of them 

will be exempt under Freedom of Information. The purpose of this 

report is to provide an overview and summary to the Licensing Sub 

Committee. 

4. Field Day Event Documentation Summary 

  4.1     The suite of event documentation comprises the following;  

 

Page 107



6 
Version 2 3000419 

 

     

 

  4.2 3 ESMP V1.4  

4.2.1 This document has been prepared by James Dutton 
(Operations Manager, Broadwick Live - Promoter) and 
Rob Dudley (Health and Safety Consultant, The Fair)  

 
4.2.2 This is an overarching document which details more 

specifically certain aspects; as detailed in Appendix 3. 
 
4.2.3 The event site is flanked by two waterways: Pymmes 

Brook (managed by the Environment Agency), and the 
River Lee Navigation (managed by the Canal & River 
Trust). Within the event site there will be a dedicated 
Water Safety team provided by Event Fire Solutions 

 
   

 4.3 Appendix H Medical Plan V1.0 

4.3.1 EMC Medical Services Ltd is registered, and therefore 

licensed to provide services, by the Care Quality 

Commission (Provider ID: 1-191582984). This is the 

medical provider for this event.  

Page 108



7 
Version 2 3000419 

  

 

  4.4 Appendix I Crowd Management Plan V3.1. 

 

             4.4.1 Both the Metropolitan and British Transport Police will be 

providing a uniformed presence for Field Day, however in the 

first instance security is very much the responsibility of the 

licence holder and event organiser.   

 

4.4.2   Showsec are the appointed Crowd/Security Management        

Company for Field Day. This company have provided this 

service for previous Filed Day events. They are a recognised 

event crowd management and security company.  

    

4.4.3 The Crowd Management Plan details the use of SIA (Security 

Industry Authority) staff and stewards. SIA staff are considered 

to be “fit and proper” persons who are properly trained and 

qualified to do their job. They have undergone assessment by 

the SIA who are the organisation responsible for the regulating 

the private security industry. Showsec also have experience of 

managing  crowds at festivals which is critical as the 

environment is very different to a “night club or pub.” 

 

               4.4.4    The exact number of SIA staff is yet to be finalised 

 

 4.4.5 Stewards will also be provided, trained and suitably assessed by 

Showsec and they will be assigned roles for example as “way 

finding” rather than specific crowd management tasks.  

 

 4.4.5 On entry all attendees will be subject to a search procedure. In 

agreement with the police, provisions have been made for the 

arrest and removal of any persons from the site should this be 

required. 

 

 SIA security staff will be wearing body cams to record any 

incidents. These will be retained and made available to the 

Police if required.  

 

4.5 Appendix M Transport & Pedestrian Management Plan V7.0 

               4.5.1 CarPark At (CPA) are the nominated contractor for the provision of the 

transport and pedestrian management plan. Whilst the licensed 

Page 109



8 
Version 2 3000419 

premises are in Enfield, Haringey will be affected as the main ingress 

and egress is via Tottenham Hale Station. 

       

 4.5.2 The two public transport hubs for ingress will be Meridian Water Station 

and Tottenham Hale Station.  Those attendees arriving via Tottenham 

Hale Station will be routed north via Watermead Way.  

             4.5.3     The safety of attendees egressing the site is of paramount importance, 

especially having regard to the high speeds on Watermead Way.  At 

the request of the SAG, a diversion route has been agreed to permit a 

managed closure of Watermead Way, south of Glover Drive (Ikea) to 

Burdock Road (Haringey) This road closure will be in effect for peak 

egress periods between 20:00 and 05:00.  

4.5.4 Egress phase 1 will commence at 22:30 when the main outdoor stage 
finishes; egress phase 2 will commence at 03:00 when the music in the 
Drumsheds ceases.  

4.5.5  At the transport SAG on the 11th February 2019 Broadwick Venues 

Limited were advised they needed to have plans in place to ensure a 

clearance at Tottenham Hale Station (THS) by 01:00. This was based 

on the Licensing objective of Public Safety and Crime and Disorder 

Objective. 

 

4.5.6 01:00 was derived from Transport for London (TFL) data evidencing 
that at other music venues in London the clearance time was usually 
within 2 hours of the main stage closing. An additional half an hour was 
added to this venue to accommodate the distance of THS.   

4.5.7 Based on 25,000 capacity, the projected clearance time at THS for 
egress phase 1 is between 00:15 to 00:30. This is based on a 60% 
mode share at this station. For egress phase 2, increasing to a 70% 
mode share, the clearance time at THS is projected to be 04:30.  

The clearance times have been extensively discussed at the SAG; all 
recognise the success of this will require very good communication and 
delivery of the crowd management plan. 

 

4.5.8 Broadwick Venues Limited are aware that they will need to apply to 
both Enfield and Haringey Council for traffic orders. Both Authorities 
are in discussion to provide enforcement vehicles and staff to deal with 
any breach of the road closure. 

Page 110



9 
Version 2 3000419 

4.5.9 The impact of the road closure on the Friday night will need to be 
discussed at the Event Liaison Team on site for any alterations, within 
the parameters of which it is written, for improvements/amendments for 
the Saturday night. 

 

4.5.10 Meridian Water Station 

The new Meridian Water Station, opposite Glover Drive, is due to be 

fully operational in September 2019.  However, Enfield Council are in 

negotiations with Greater Anglia (GA) to use Field Day as a soft-launch 

for this Station. 

At the time of writing a provisional time table has been provided; all 

parties are waiting for final confirmation. 

 

4.6 Appendix O Ingress and Egress Plan V1.6  

4.6.1 The purpose of this document is to lay out a clear plan for managing 
the arrival and dispersal of attendees to and from local transport hubs, 
and to establish contingency plans for controlling the flow rates and re-
routing crowds when necessary. It is for ingress and egress under non 
emergency conditions.  

 
4.6.2 The plan incorporates a comprehensive barrier plan at Tottenham Hale 

Station in order to manage the event attendees and to still permit the 
“normal background” station use.  

 

4.7 Appendix X Noise Plan V1.1 

 

        4.7.1  Chris Hurst from Three Spires Acoustics Limited has provided a 

comprehensive noise management plan for the event. Mr. Hurst will 

also be present for the duration of Field Day to monitor the noise and 

respond to any complaints.  

 

        4.7.2     The levels have been set at: 

  12:00-23:00 75dB LAeq 15 minute and 90dB LCeq 15 minute 

  23:00 – 03:00 45dB LAeq 15 minute and 65 dB LCeq 15 minute. 

 

5.        Tottenham Hotspurs Stadium (THS) 

Page 111



10 
Version 2 3000419 

5.1 On the 4th June 2018, Haringey Council issued license LN/000020310 to 

Tottenham Hotspur Stadium (THS), 748 High Road, Tottenham, London N17 

0AP  

Condition 5 of this licence under the sub heading Public Safety reads:  
 

THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 

Conditions 5 to 34:  Specific to Regulated Entertainment Events: 

5. The Premises may be used for up to 16 non-football 
Events each calendar year; a maximum of 6 of which 
can be music concerts. 

5.2 At the time the THS licence was granted, neither Haringey Council or THS 

were aware of the Meridian Water meanwhile project and subsequent 

proposal to use the land for regulated entertainment. THS has a capacity of 

62,000. 

5.3 At the time of writing, the SAG understands that the proposed Field Day event 

for 2019 does not clash with any non-football event at THS.  

5.4 The SAG has made their concerns known to Broadwick Venues Limited that 

large scale multiple events with a simultaneous finish times would not be 

acceptable. The reason for this is that both venues seek to use Tottenham 

Hale Station as a primary egress route. The station infrastructure is unable to 

support the egress from two simultaneous large-scale events. 

5.5 The arbitration of this is outstanding and very difficult, however the SAG 

would recommend that this is a matter for Broadwick and THS to agree 

between themselves.  

5.6 The SAG would recommend that in the first instance the resolution of this 

needs to be between THS and Broadwick Venues Limited outside of any 

involvement by Enfield or Haringey Council and respective SAG groups.  

 

6. Planning Permission 

6.1       Planning permissions are outside the scope of the SAG, albeit the group 

would recommend that all necessarily planning permissions are obtained. 

 

7.  Independent Review of the Event Documentation 

7.1 Eric Stuart from Gentain Events, a bespoke Safety Management Company, 

specialising in crowd movement and behaviours in public spaces during all 

phases of crowd movement and including emergency procedures, was 

commissioned by the SAG to undertake a review of all event documentation 

and to carry out a desk top scenario-based exercise on the 24th April 2019. 

Page 112



11 
Version 2 3000419 

Thus, giving third-party oversight and an independence to the desk top 

exercise. 

 

8. Recommendations 

8.1     Debrief meeting scheduled for the 13th June 2019. 

 

8.2     Broadwick Venues Limited and Tottenham Hotspurs Stadium, have in place 

an agreement for the communication; management and arbitration of events 

to avoid any future clash of Field Day and any future event at the Stadium.

   

8.3      Staff from Enfield Council should be present for the duration of events to 

assess compliance with the premises licence.   

 

 

9. Conclusion 

9.1 Whilst the planning and delivery of any event is not without risk, the SAG have 

been consulted regarding the EMP and associated documents. At the time of 

writing the Chair of the SAG is unable to comment if all members of the 

Meridian Water SAG are satisfied with the documentation due to the late 

circulation of the risk assessments and evacuation plans. The capacity 

assessment for the Drumsheds are also outstanding. Broadwick Venues 

Limited have advised this document will be circulated in advance of the 

licensing hearing.  

 

9.2 The Chair of the SAG will provide an update in advance of the 8th May.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



12 
Version 2 3000419 

 

Appendix 1 – Site Plan  

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 - List of Meridian Water SAG members by Organisation 

 

Organisation 

Acoustic Consultant - Three Spires 

British Transport Police  

Emergency Planning - Enfield 

Emergency Planning - Haringey  

Environment Agency 

Event Organiser - Broadwick Live 
Fire Commission  
Haringey - Traffic 

LBE - Building Control 

LBE - EHO ( non noise) 

LBE - Licensing Officer  

Page 114



13 
Version 2 3000419 

LBE - Regeneration 

LBE - Traffic & Transportation  

LBE- EHO (Noise) 

Lee Valley Parks 

London Ambulance 

Police - Central Event Planning 

Police - Central Licensing 

Police - Enfield & Haringey 

Police - Superintendent, Close 
Protection 

Police Central Licensing  

Security - ShowSec 

TFL -  London Underground 

TFL - Buses 
Traffic Management Company - Car 
Park At 

Trains - Arriva 

Trains - Great Anglia 

Waltham Forest - Emergency Planning 

Police - Bronze Command Field Day 

  

Dates of Meridian Water SAG meetings: 

 161018 - Full SAG  

 231018 - Transport Sub SAG  

 231018 - Security Sub SAG  

 071118 - Transport Sub SAG  

 141118 - SAG site visit  

 191118 - SAG site visit (fire; ambulance; Env Health  & SAG Chair)  

 201118 - Full SAG  

 080119 - Transport Sub SAG  

 100119- site visit (fire; central police licensing)  

 150119 – meeting with local & central police licensing to discuss the licence 

application. 

 080219 – Env Health & Licencing Sub SAG 

 110219 – Transport Sub SAG 

 190219 – Full SAG  

 250219- Site visit Gentian Events; SAG Chair; Environmental Heath/Licensing 

Officer 

 010319 – Site visit – Police; Car Park At; Broadwick Live (specifically to look 

at traffic & vehicle mitigation especially around Tottenham Hale Station.  

 070319 – Edmonton Police Station (AU; MG; EZH; EVG; ST; JD; JH; Central 

Police licensing) 

 190319- Full SAG  

Page 115



14 
Version 2 3000419 

 260319 – Site meeting with Hale Village ( EZH; James Dutton; Hale Village) 

 040419 – SAG (Drum sheds) (Police central and local and Fire Brigade) 

 240419 April – Desk top scenario 

 060619 – Proposed full SAG site visit 

 130619 – Debrief Meeting for Field Day 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 3 Field Day ESMP V1.4 (Headings Only) 

Page 116



15 
Version 2 3000419 

 

Page 117



16 
Version 2 3000419 

Page 118



17 
Version 2 3000419 

 

 

 

 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 7Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Annex 8 
 

IP4 – London Fire Brigade Representation 
 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
Your Ref:             WK/218074578 & WK/218074598 
 
Premises:    Drum Sheds / Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6 & 9 Orbital  

Business Park and land to the south, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, 
London, N18 3BY  

 
The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner) is the fire and rescue authority 
for London. The Commissioner is responsible for enforcing the Regulatory Reform 
(Fire Safety) Order 2005 (The Order) in London.  
 
With reference to the application dated 15/03/2019, as shown on the plan provided, 
the application has been examined and the Commissioner will make a 
representation to the Licensing Authority. 
 
The Applicant has been informed, by copy of this letter, of this representation. 
 
The items that are of concern to this authority are detailed below: 
 

 The Commissioner has not received all of the information required and has 
not therefore been able to form a judgement as to whether the public 
safety objective of the Licensing Act has been adequately addressed. 

 

 The applicant has not shown that the number of people to be 
accommodated can be safely evacuated in an emergency. 

 
The representation may be withdrawn if all of the matters detailed above are 
addressed to the satisfaction of the Commissioner. The Commissioner must be 
advised of the completion of the work at least 5 working days before the committee 
hearing date, so that an inspection can be arranged.  
 
This email is without prejudice to the powers of the licensing authority and to any 
requirements or recommendations that may be made by enforcing authorities under 
other legislation. It is also without prejudice to any requirements or recommendations 
that may be made by the Commissioner under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) 
Order 2005 or the Petroleum (Consolidation) Act 1928.  All alterations should comply 
with the appropriate provisions of the current Building Regulations. 
 
If you are dissatisfied in any way with the response given, please send an email to 
FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk, quoting our reference 32/205151/DL  
 
Regards 
London Fire Brigade 
Fire Safety Regulation Admin 
169 Union Street, London, SE1 0LL 
T: Helpdesk 020 8555 1200 x89170  
E: FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk 

Page 127

mailto:FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk
mailto:FSR-AdminSupport@london-fire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 9 
 

IP1  - Resident A Representation 
 

 
I wish to object to the licence application on the grounds that the noise nuisance 
generated by this venue will unreasonably and substantially interfere with the use or 
enjoyment of my home and garden. As I am a person that is sensitive to noise 
pollution (there are many others), it makes my life miserable leading to depression 
and anxiety and it's impact at night is especially unwelcome as my sleep is disturbed.  
 
This application is for 8 am until 6 am the following morning, seven days a week. 
This is an unacceptable amount of time for a person to be subjected to noise 
nuisance. Potentially this nuisance could continue for days on end.  
 
There is very little built environment between the venue and a densely populated 
area of Waltham Forest. The prevailing wind is from the west and carries the sound 
across the river valley and reservoir.  
 
In the past there was a Warehouse music venue on a site very close to this new 
proposal. I was regularly woken by the noise, and it took me some time to establish 
the source, allowing me to make a complaint. Many people in Waltham Forest 
complained about the noise disturbance but were unable to trace the source.  
 
My compromise would be that a license is granted for a limited number of days each 
month and for a trial period of time (not one year!) to see how residents respond. At 
the moment this venture has had no publicity in Waltham Forest. I understand you 
have fulfilled your legal requirement regarding the posting of notices, regrettably 
noise nuisance does not end at the borough boundary.  
 
 
 

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 10a
Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 10bPage 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Annex 10c
P

age 145



P
age 146



P
age 147



P
age 148



Appendix 2 

1 

Requirement/Basis of 
Representation 
(see Letter of 12th April 2019) 

Authority Compliance by 
Applicant  
4640/4578&98 

Representation for application 4640, and for 4578 &98 (unless stated otherwise) 
(a)  

Relevance to Licensing Objectives 
(CD)(PN)(HC)(PS) and (ALL)1 

Other observations by THFC 

1. 
Procedural Requirements 

(17)2

Application is subject to 
compliance with Regulations 

(17(2)) 

Form of Application  
Prescribed form  used  

(54) 
Reg3. 10  

Compliance with Regulations 
required by applicant 
and by Licensing Authority 

Reg. 4 
Reg. 6 

X 
X 

For the Reasons explained below, the Application submitted by the Applicant was 
defective and should not proceed to a Hearing.   The ability for the application to 
be heard at a Committee Hearing is dependent on the requirements in Regulation 
17 having first been met.  

ALL 

The Licensing Act (and Regulations) set out the statutory 
framework with which compliance must be achieved.   
This is to ensure that the Responsible Authorities and 
Interested Parties (and the Licensing Committee) have 
sufficient information to adequately consider the 
application before them.   

Without the application being made in the correct form 
with the correct supporting documents, there can be no 
guarantee that any of the Licensing Objectives will be 
met.  

The applications are seeking late 
licences (operating 22 hours daily) 
for large capacity crowd (10,000 to 
40,000).  One would expect full 
information have been provided to 
the Responsible Authorities and 
interested parties in advance of any 
formal application for permanent 
licences being made.   

THFC4 has no confidence that on the 
scant information provided by the 
Applicant in both applications, the 
Licensing Objectives will be 
promoted.   Without limiting the 
aforesaid, the Applicants have 
completely failed to explain how 
their proposed “Premises” will 
operate safely when a (bowl) Event 
is taking place at Tottenham Hotspur 
Stadium; at Alexandra Palace; at the 
London Stadium and/or at other 
event venues in the locality  

Operating Schedule must 
accompany application 

X X  The Operating Schedule lacks sufficient clarity – see Section 2 of this 
Representation  

ALL 
Due to the paucity of information provided as to how this 
large capacity “venue” will operate there are concerns 
that none of the Licensing Objectives will be promoted  

See comments to the left and 
Section 2 of Representation  

1 CD = Prevention of crime and disorder; PN= Prevention of Public Nuisance; HC = prevention of harm to children; PS – promotion of Public Safety. 
All – means that the matter (and Representation) is relevant to all four Licensing Objectives 

2  All references in brackets are to the relevant section in the Licensing Act 2003 

3 References to Regulations are to the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005. 
4 Tottenham Hotspur Limited and Tottenham Hotspur Football & Athletic Co Ltd 

Annex 10d
P

age 149



Appendix 2 

2 
 

      
Plan in Prescribed Form      
Plan in prescribed form must 
accompany the application  

(17(3)(b))  
The Applicant has 
failed to comply 
with Regulation 
23(3) including 
23(3(a) to 23(d) 

X  
 
The Plan lodged for each application lacks the information required by Regulation 
23 and is illegible.  
 
It provides no details as to which proposed licensable activities are to be 
conducted where in the proposed Premises.  It therefore also fails to comply with 
Regulation 23(3)(d)  
 

ALL 
 
As the plan for each application is illegible, it is 
impossible to see from this how the proposed “Premises” 
could safely be assessed to be used for, or actually used 
for, any licensable activities let alone those involving 
large-scale capacity crowds of between 10,000 and 
40,000.     
 
The Responsible Authorities on receipt of the plans will 
not be able to adequately assess whether the proposed 
“Premises” can be operated safely (not least as they will 
not be able to take measurements from the plan). 
 
For an application of this nature, involving large scale 
audiences, not only should clear plans have been lodged 
of the proposed Premises - but also proposed layout 
plans (showing probable stage positions; crowd-flow 
modelling; medical/first aid points etc).  
 
In view of the locality of the proposed “Premises” and 
particularly its locality to waterways – the Applicant 
should have lodged clear plans showing the position of 
the proposed Premises with reference to the waterways; 
the location of roads and bridges.   Reference should 
have been made (in the Operating Schedule) as to how 
the Applicants will meet the recommendations of the 
Purple Guide – for example in relation to Venue Capacity 
paragraphs (see Appendix 3) 
 

For an application of this nature, 
involving planned large scale 
audiences, not only should clear 
plans have been lodged of the 
proposed “Premises” - but also 
proposed layout plans (showing 
probable stage positions; crowd-flow 
modelling; medical/first aid points 
etc.) for likely Events in the licensed 
space.   
 
One would expect the various layout 
plans to be provided in advance of, 
or certainly with the LIC 25 
application so that they form part of 
the application and the Operating 
Schedule therein.  
 
Such detailed plans (showing what 
licensable activities are likely to take 
place where) are of crucial 
importance particularly where the 
proposed Site has no infrastructure 
in place to meet any of the usual 
requirements – to allow for the safe 
access/egress of crowds (including 
disabled guests); security measures; 
first aid and toilet provisions etc… 
 
No consideration appears to have 
been given in advance of making the 
application to the Event Safety Guide 
(the Purple Guide).    
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

      
Prescribed form of Plan  Reg.23(1) X X The Plan is illegible and fails to show the prescribed information at Regulation 23 

(3)  
 

ALL – see above  See above  

Contents of plan  Reg.23(3) X X See above comments ALL – see above  See above  

                                                           
5 Any bold or underling in this representation is for emphasis only. 

P
age 150



Appendix 2 

3 
 

 
 

 

      
      
Advertising of the 
6Application 

(17(5))     

Newspaper Reg.25(a)     
Site Notices  Reg.25(b) X X  

 
The Site Notices do not appear to have been erected in prominent positions.  In 
particular the Site Notices for application(s) 4578&98 were poorly displayed (see 
photograph at Appendix 3).   Whilst a Site Notice was erected at the entrance to 
the wooded area – there was no Site Notice at the exit to that area – although this 
would have been a logical, obvious place to put one. 
 
The effect of Section 17(5)(a)(ii) is that the advertisements must not only be in the 
prescribed form but they must be advertised “in a manner which is prescribed and 
is likely to bring the application to the attention of persons who live, or are 
involved in a business in the relevant licensing authority area and who are likely to 
be affected by it”.  
 

ALL 
The manner in which the applications have been 
advertised is highly confusing.  Even if the applications 
had come to the attention of local residents and 
businesses, it is highly likely that the residents and 
businesses may have been hampered in lodging 
representations due to the fact that the details of 
applications on the website do not match those 
advertised in the local paper and (partially) on site.   
 
 

 

Information for notices Reg.26(4)     
Advertising by Licensing 
Authority  

S.17(5) 
(aa) 

X X    
 
The Applications as advertised on the website by the Licensing Authority do not 
match the applications advertised in the local press or the Site Notices displayed 
by the Applicants.   The Licensing Authority has advertised three applications 
whereas the Applicant has made two applications  

ALL 
The manner in which the applications have been 
advertised is highly confusing.  Even if the applications 
had come to the attention of local residents and 
businesses, it is highly likely that the residents and 
businesses may have been hampered in lodging 
representations due to the fact that the details of 
applications on the website do not match those 
advertised in the local paper and (partially) on site.   
 

 

      
Determination of a Premises 
Licence application7 

(18)     

      
Application must comply with 
sections 17 and advertising 
requirements (of Applicant 
and LA) 

(18(1) X X    
 
As the Applications have not been made in the correct form (in the sense of 
insufficient and contradictory information being given in the Operating Schedule; 
insufficient advertising of the applications and/or inadequate plans being lodged) 
the Licensing Committee has no jurisdiction to consider the applications at 
Committee.   
 
Section 18 only permits the Licensing Authority to determine any application for 
a Premises licence where the application was received by it in accordance with 
Section 17 and where it is satisfied that the Applicant has fulfilled the 
requirements stipulated by the Regulations. 

ALL 
The manner in which the applications have been 
advertised is highly confusing.  Even if the applications 
had come to the attention of local residents and 
businesses, it is highly likely that the residents and 
businesses may have been hampered in lodging 
representations due to the fact that the details of 
applications on the website do not match those 
advertised in the local paper and (partially) on site.   
 

 

                                                           
6 Reference should also be made to the Revised Guidance to the Act, paragraphs 8.80 to 8.87 
7 Reference should also be made to the Revised Guidance to the Act, section 9  

P
age 151



Appendix 2 

4 
 

 
 

      
 
 
 

     

The Licensing Authority’s 
powers at a Hearing  

(18(3))  Note:  If the Licensing Committee does hear the Applications, it only has the 
powers available to it as set out in section 18(3) LA 2003.    In terms of granting any 
licence subject to conditions, those conditions must be “appropriate” 
 
The conditions proposed by the Applicants are inappropriate for the reasons 
articulated in this Appendix 2.  

ALL 
 
The Operating Schedule set out by the Applicants is 
inadequate and inappropriate for the reasons set out in 
section 2 of this Appendix below.   
 
 

The Operating Schedule set out by 
the Applicants is inadequate and 
inappropriate for the reasons set out 
in section 2 of this Appendix below.   
 
It is our submission that a Licence 
cannot lawfully be issued on the 
basis that there may (or may not) be 
future agreement of fundamental 
terms (relating to the four Licensing 
Objectives) with third parties, which 
may (or may not) then be treated as 
“conditions”.      
 
Such conditions (based on an 
agreement to the Licensing 
Committee to agree with other third 
parties) would fall foul of 
s.18(4)(a)(i).  Such assurances 
(contingent on reaching agreement 
with third parties) do not result in 
enforceable conditions. 
  
The Licensing Authority should only 
grant the Applications if it is entirely 
satisfied (on the information already 
forming part of the Operating 
Schedule) that the Applicant has 
provided evidence to demonstrate 
that it can promote all four Licensing 
Objectives at a large scale event, 
when the emergency services and 
Responsible Authorities may be 
committed to an existing licensed 
event elsewhere, in close proximity.   
  
 
 
 

      
Revised Guidance to 
Licensing Act 2003  

     

Compliance with Guidance  Para.1.16 X Conditions on Premises Licences must be …..precise and enforceable; 
unambiguous and clear; must be tailored to the individual type location and 

ALL 
The information provided by the Applicant in its 
applications (section M) is imprecise; unenforceable; and 

 
Whilst the Applicants have set out 
various steps in section M of their 

P
age 152



Appendix 2 

5 
 

characteristics of the premises and events concerned …..should be capable of 
being met…….. 
 
The conditions proposed by the Applicants are inappropriate for the reasons 
articulated in Appendix 2. 

provides assurances (for example around the future 
involvement of SAG members and the future possible 
agreement of measures) which may or may not be 
capable of being fulfilled.   
 

applications, in most instances those 
steps lack precision and/or refer to 
future discussion/agreements/ 
activities (which may or may not 
actually happen).  For example 
assurances are put forward that 
numerous plans (for example 
relating to Traffic Management; 
Noise Management; Risk 
Assessment; Medical Management) 
will be “devised” or will “define” or 
“detail” the specifics but this does 
not provide any guarantee that the 
plans will a) be prepared to a 
satisfactory standard; b) taking into 
account matters relating to the 
Licensing Objectives; c) take into 
account the views of Interested 
Parties etc….. 
 
For large scale events, THFC are of 
the view that the Applicants should 
have prepared the various plans in 
advance of making their applications 
and should have circulated them to 
the Responsible Authorities.  The 
Plans should have been available for 
inspection to Interested Parties at 
least to the extent that those 
Interested Parties will be impacted 
by the planned large scale events. 
 
 
  

      
 Para 2.7 

to 2.9 
X Licence Holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their 

premises….a number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety 
including the 8 items bulleted in para 2.8.    Applicants should consider when 
making their application which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the 
public safety and demonstrate how they achieve that… 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 
 
 

X  ALL but specifically public safety  
 
 
 

 
See above comments and further 
comments in Section 2 

      
 Para 8.34 X Plans….must be in a format with is “clear and legible in all material aspects” i.e 

they must be accessible and provide sufficient detail for the licensing authority to 
be able to determine the application including the relative size of any features 

 
The plans submitted are illegible and lack any clear 
information (particularly, but not limited to, lack of detail 

 

P
age 153



Appendix 2 

6 
 

relevant to the application.  There is no requirement for the plans to be 
professionally drawn as long as they clearly show all the prescribed information.  

around the external walls of the proposed “Premises”; 
and access/egress from the “Premises”  
 
See comments above in relation to failure to comply with 
Section 17 and Regulation 23 requirements 
  
 

See comments to the left and further 
comments in Section 2 of 
Representation  

 Para 8.41 X In completing an Operating Schedule, Applicants are expected to have regard to 
the statement of licensing policy for their area.  They must also …..demonstrate 
knowledge of their local areas when describing the steps they propose to take to 
promote the licensing objectives.  ……  Applicants are also expected to undertake 
their own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to form the 
content of the application.  
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL  
 
The Operating Schedules fail to take sufficient account of 
the Statement of Licensing Policy (see below) and fail to 
take any account of the fact that the Applicant is 
proposing large scale events in an area of considerable 
congestion, within a “stone’s throw” of large licensed 
Stadia and other Event spaces.  
 

 
 
See comments to the left and further 
comments in Section 2 of 
Representation 

 Para 8.42 
to 8.7  

X These paragraphs set out various expectations of the Applicants prior to making or 
on making any application for a Premises Licence.  These include (in summary 
only): 
 

• Providing sufficient information to demonstrate (when setting out steps 
they propose to take) that they understand the layout of the local area and 
physical environment including crime and disorder hotspots; risks posed to 
the local area by their proposed licensable activities… 
 

• How the Applicants will manage potential risks; 
 

• Through making local enquiries – consider all factors which may be 
relevant to the promotion of the Licensing Objectives 
 

• Providing Licensing Authorities with sufficient information (covering their 
applications) to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are 
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in their area. 
  

The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL  
 
The applications submitted by the Applicants fail to 
demonstrate that they have fulfilled any of the 
expectations set out in these paragraphs of the Guidance.  
Without limiting the aforesaid, the Operating Schedules 
fail to take sufficient account of the Statement of 
Licensing Policy (see below) and fail to take any account 
of the fact that the Applicant is proposing large scale 
events in an area of considerable congestion, within a 
“stone’s throw” of large licensed Stadia and licensed 
event spaces (such as Alexandra Palace) 

See comments to the left and further 
comments in Section 2 of 
Representation 

 Para 8.49 X ….all Operating Schedules should be precise and clear about the measures that are 
proposed to promote each of the Licensing Objectives  
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  

X  ALL  
The Operating Schedules submitted are not precise and 
clear, but largely attempt to shift the responsibilities to 
promote the Licensing Objectives onto other parties 
(particularly members of a SAG).   See further at section 2 
of this Representation  
 
 

See comments to left and further in 
Section 2 of Representation 

 Para 9.39  Any conditions imposed must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach a condition that 

X ALL  
 

THFC are of the view that the steps 
proposed by the Applicants in 
section M of their applications are 

P
age 154



Appendix 2 

7 
 

is merely aspirational….   Any conditions added to the Licence must be those 
imposed at the Hearing or those agreed when a hearing has not been necessary…. 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

It follows from Section 18 LA 2003 and from this 
paragraph in the Guidance that licence conditions can 
only be imposed by the Licensing Committee. A condition 
for third parties (e.g. SAG members) to agree terms to 
comprise a condition at some stage in the future is 
outside the powers of the Licensing Committee.    
 

largely aspirational in the sense that 
the Applicants are stating that they 
will obtain the approval of 
fundamental operational plans from 
third parties (SAG).   Such conditions 
are inappropriate and 
unenforceable, rendering any such 
conditions entirely useless.  See 
Section 2 below  
 
 
 
 

      
Enfield Council, Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

     

Compliance with Policy       
 Para 3.3 X Conditions attached to any Licence will focus on matters within the control of 

individual licensees and in the vicinity of the proposed Premises.  
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL X  
The conditions offered by the 
Applicants are not matters which are 
within their control – they are 
promising matters which the 
Applicants cannot control for 
example obtaining approvals from 
third parties such as SAG members.  
Such conditions are inappropriate 
and unenforceable.   
 

 Para. 8.3 X The Licensing Objectives should be paramount considerations at all times 
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules fails to demonstrate how in 
reality the LOS will be treated and enforced as paramount.  

X  ALL 
 
The Applicants’ operating schedules contain insufficient 
information to demonstrate that they will ensure that the 
promotion of the Licensing Objectives at all times will be 
achieved.    Assurances to enter into discussions and to 
seek third party approval are not sufficient to amount to 
enforceable conditions and thus the Licensing Objectives 
have not been treated as paramount.   See further the 
comments in Section 2 of this Representation  
 
 
 
 

 
 
See comment to the left and in 
Section 2 of this Representation  
 
 
 

 Para. 9.8 X The local authority and Police are under a duty to do all they reasonably can to 
prevent crime an disorder in their area. 
 

X  ALL 
 
See comments to the right.  It follows from the lack of 
approval operational plans that the Local Authority and 
Police are not in a position to meet this duty.  

THFC are of the view that in failing to 
provide sufficient operational  
information to the Police and to the 
various Responsible Authorities  (and 
including information relating to 
approved operational plans in their 
operating schedules) in advance of 
making the formal applications, 
these Authorities cannot fulfil their 

P
age 155



Appendix 2 

8 
 

duty as stipulated in paragraph 9.8 
of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
 
 
 

 Para. 11.1 X An Operating Schedule is submitted with a Licence Application and contains the 
information required by section 17(4).   Among other things, it includes the steps 
that the Applicant proposes to take to promote the Licensing Objectives.   
 
Where a risk to the Licensing Objectives is present, the Council expects applicants 
to specifically address in their operating schedules how they will meet the 
Special Factors for Consideration. 
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules fails to demonstrate how in 
reality the LOS will be treated and enforced as paramount. 

X  ALL 
 
 
See comments to the right and specifically in Section 2 of 
the Representation below.    The Applicants have failed to 
particularise the means by which they will meet the 
Special Factors for Consideration in the Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  These Special Factors go to all four 
Licensing Objectives.   

THFC are of the view that in failing to 
provide sufficient operational  
information to the Police and to the 
various Responsible Authorities  (and 
including information relating to 
approved operational plans in their 
operating schedules) in advance of 
making the formal applications, 
these Authorities cannot fulfil their 
duty as stipulated in paragraph 9.8 
of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
 
 

 Para 12 – 
12.2.1 to 
12.4.7 

X Special Factors for Consideration.  
 
The “means” by which each of the Licensing Objectives will be promoted must be 
detailed in the Operating Schedule.    
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 
 

X  ALL 
 
 
See comments to the right and specifically in Section 2 of 
the Representation below.    The Applicants have failed to 
particularise the means by which they will meet the 
Special Factors for Consideration in the Statement of 
Licensing Policy.  These Special Factors go to all four 
Licensing Objectives.   

THFC are of the view that in failing to 
provide sufficient operational  
information to the Police and to the 
various Responsible Authorities  (and 
including information relating to 
approved operational plans in their 
operating schedules) in advance of 
making the formal applications, 
these Authorities cannot fulfil their 
duty as stipulated in paragraph 9.8 
of the Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
 

 Para.  
12.2.4 

X This paragraph specifically provides that to promote Public Safety, the Applicants 
should provide “the means by which risk to public safety will be ….prevented by 
effective management and operation of the licensed activities including …the 
adequacy of transportation arrangements to ensure that customers may safely 
travel to and from the premises and nuisance is avoided by concentrations of 
people unable to access transport in a timely manner” 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient comprising a standard but 
incomplete list of common measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into enforceable conditions.  
 

X  ALL but specifically public safety  
 
See comments to the right.  It is incumbent on the 
Applicant to satisfy the Licensing Committee and 
Responsible Authorities (and Interested Parties) that it 
could operate a large scale event on any day of the week 
when other large scale licensed events will be taking 
place at other venues which already have the benefit of 
Premises Licences and in some cases GSCs8. 
 
In simple terms the Applicants have completely failed to 
articulate in their application/Operating Schedule how 
they will ensure the safe transportation of between 
10,000 and 40,000 from their proposed “Premises” when 
the local transport infrastructure is already fully utilised 
by licensed events in the vicinity.    

No details have been provided by 
the Applicants as to how they intend 
to run safe events at the proposed 
premises when existing licensed 
events are taking place at 
neighbouring large venues including 
the Stadium; London Stadium; 
Alexandra Palace etc….     
 
Transport Plans relating to the 
operation of Tottenham Hotspur 
Stadium (and no doubt similar plans 
are in place for the operation of 
London Stadium) as part of their 
GSC.  These plans have been 
approved by the Authorities 

                                                           
8 GSC = General Safety Certificate  

P
age 156



Appendix 2 

9 
 

 following considerable consultation 
and planning.   They have been 
approved and adopted and are now 
operational.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
      
2.  
Operating Schedule 
Deficiencies  

     

   X    Regulation 17(4); the Guidance to the Act and Enfield Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy all set out requirements regarding the contents of the Operating 
Schedule.  These requirements are to ensure that the level of detail in the 
Operating Schedule is sufficient to enable the Responsible Authorities to fulfil their 
duties; to enable Interested Parties and/or Other Persons to consider what is 
planned, and ultimately to enable the Licensing Committee to consider whether 
sufficient measures have been offered to ensure that the Licensing Objectives 
(which are of paramount importance) will be promoted if the licence is issued.  
 
The Operating Schedules lodged by the Applicants are deficient as they lack the 
required detail.  For example (but not limited to): 
 
Application for Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6 6a & b: 
 

• The general description of the proposed premises is devoid of detail for 
example it provides no information about the size of the 4 or 5 units; 
where they are positioned in the overall site; whether the proposed 
“Premises” includes any outside space; whether the Units are single-storey 
 

• The assurance that a “detailed plan of each event” will be provided to the 
Responsible Authorities is meaningless – to whom at the Responsible 
Authorities; when will it be provided; what happens if the Responsible 
Authorities are unhappy about the contents of the plan? 
 

• The Application refers to the above Units but promotional materials 
identify different Units – See information at Appendix 3. 
 

• The  Operating Schedule is devoid of any meaningful detail relating to 
each of the following proposed licensable activities: 
 
Plays – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 

X  ALL  
 
General Principles 
 
THFC’s representation in relation to the matters set out 
in this section are essentially on the basis that the 
Applicant has failed to give sufficient detail in its 
Operating Schedule of its intended operation let alone of 
the measures that will be implemented to promote the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
The paucity of information in the Operating Schedule is 
obvious with the Applicant essentially stating that 
because the Units are not fitted out as suitable licensed 
premises (with bar locations; audience spaces; staging; 
lighting; clear access and egress points etc…) all the 
information will follow.   In our view this approach is 
irresponsible and provides no details on which the 
Responsible Authorities or Licensing Committee could be 
satisfied that the planned licensable events will be 
conducted in a manner that promotes the Licensing 
Objectives.  
 
The lack of detail in the Operating Schedule is all the 
more concerning when the Applicants have already 
promoted and sold tickets to a large capacity Event – 
Field Day – in June 2019 (see Appendix 3).    Arranging 
such an Event without first preparing the necessary 
operational plans (including those relating to Noise 
Management; Emergency Contingency Plans; 
Transportation; etc) and entering into full consultation 
with the Responsible Authorities and relevant Other 
Persons (such as THFC and operators of other major 
licensed venues in close proximity), appears incredible.  If 

 

P
age 157



Appendix 2 

10 
 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is given relating to where in the Units the Plays will take 
place; the position of any staging; audience profile/numbers;  

• No information is provided relating to operational details 
 

 
Films  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 

identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units the films will be 

shown; the position of any screens; audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details. 

 
 

Indoor Sporting Events  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• No information about the likely nature of the sport; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units the sport will take 

place; the position of any sporting equipment; audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details 

 
 

Boxing or Wrestling  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 

identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units boxing/wrestling 

make take place;  audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details 

 
 

Live Music – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 indoors daily/9:00 
to 22:30 outdoors daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily indoors for 22 hours a day; 
outdoors for 13.5 hours daily; 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is given relating to where in the Units the activity will be 
conducted; the position of any staging or other demountable structures; 
audience profile/numbers;  

• No information is provided relating to operational details including no 
agreed Noise Management specifics. 

 
 

those plans are in existence, they should have been 
provided as part of the application.    Such plans are all 
the more important where the proposed “Premises” does 
not have the infrastructure (managerial or operational) 
for putting on events involving licensable activities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 158



Appendix 2 

11 
 

Recorded  Music – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 indoors 
daily/9:00 to 22:30 outdoors daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily indoors for 22 hours a day; 
outdoors for 13.5 hours daily; 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is given relating to where in the Units the activity will be 
conducted; the position of any staging or other demountable structures; 
audience profile/numbers;  

• No information is provided relating to operational details including no 
agreed Noise Management specifics. 

 
Dance (and similar activities to music and dance)  – proposed to take place 
from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 

identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units Dance performances 

will take place; the position of any staging; audience profile/numbers;  
• No information is provided relating to operational details or agreed noise 

management measures (if any) 
 

Late Night Refreshment  – proposed to take place daily from 23:00 to 
05:00  
 

• States that the activity indoors and outdoors but no outdoor space is 
identifiable from the plan submitted with the application; 

• No information is provided relating to operational details 
 

 
Sale of Alcohol  – proposed to take place from 08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the activity will take place daily for 22 hours a day; 
• States that sales will be for consumption on and off the Premises; 
• No information is given relating to where in the Units bars will be situated; 
• The likely nature of any on or off sales. 

 
Opening Hours:  08:00 to 06:00 daily: 
 

• States that the Premises will be open daily for 22 hours a day. 
 
 

Section M – Steps to promote the Licensing Objectives is deficient as: 
• The plans listed in Section M(A) (1) are not in existence and assurances to 

provide appropriate plans are insufficient.  If paragraph (1) is intended to 
be a condition on the licence it would be meaningless and unenforceable.   

• M(A)(3) – is unclear as suggests that for some events the capacity will not 
be limited to 9,999 (inclusive of staff and performers); 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 159



Appendix 2 

12 
 

• M(A)(7) – this is vague – the applicant failing to identify numbers of door 
supervisors depending on capacity of event and risk assessment level; who 
will conduct the Risk Assessment; the form of Risk Assessment; the search 
policy that will apply depending on Risk etc… 

• M(A)(9) – The “operational plan” referred to herein does not appear to be 
available; the crowd management plan also appears to be aspirational.  

• M(A)(10) – Transport Options – this fails to demonstrate any 
understanding of the locality and in particular existing pressures on the 
transport infrastructure. 

• M(A)(18) – This suggested condition relating to CCTV is not sufficiently 
precise; 

• M(A)(19) – This suggested condition is vague and unenforceable; it is 
unclear whether a “transport statement” exists but it was not served with 
the application and does not form part of the Operating Schedule.   

• M(A)(22) – Event “Overview” – this suggested condition is vague and 
meaningless.   The Responsible Authorities cannot be expected to manage 
the licensed premises; 

• M(A)(24) – This is a vague and unenforceable condition ; 
• M(A)(26) - This is a vague and unenforceable condition; 
• M(A)(27) to (32) These are vague and unenforceable condition, as they fail 

to identify who is responsible for compliance and/or refer to non-existent 
plans.  

• M(A)(36) This is vague and  unenforceable as no Venue Operational Plan 
has been made available.   

• M(A)(37)  This condition is inappropriate and unenforceable – see general 
principles. 

 
 
 

Application for Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6 6a & b, and Land to the south of 
Units 4, 5, 6, 6a and 6b: 

 
• As this application is virtually identical to the “Units only” application, the 

bullets listed above are repeated in their entirety as applicable to this 
“Festival Licence” application – save that the plan submitted in support of 
this application does include outdoor space. 
 

• In addition: 
 

•  The general description is equally vague.   Mention is made of 
“warehouses” rather than “Units”; again no details are given as to the size 
of the “warehouses” or whether they are one/two storeys; 

• The suggestion that the proposed “Premises” is suitable for 25,000 (let 
alone 40,000) is not supported by information in its Operating Schedule; 

• Again a “detailed layout plan” showing details “will be provided” and this 
will apparently be “agreed through the SAG progress”.  This is entirely 
inappropriate for the reasons set out in section 3 below.   

  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
X  ALL  
 
General Principles 
 
THFC’s representation in relation to the matters set out 
in this section are essentially on the basis that the 
Applicant has failed to give sufficient detail in its 
Operating Schedule of its intended operation let alone of 
the measures that will be implemented to promote the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
In simple terms the Applicant is proposing that it will put 
on festivals and similar events with initially 25,000 people 
but then increasing to 40,000, subject only to obtaining 
approval from a SAG.   For the reasons set out in Section 
3 below, this submission is fundamentally flawed as the 
purpose of a SAG is not to approve events; nor to 

P
age 160



Appendix 2 

13 
 

Section M – Steps to promote the Licensing Objectives is deficient as  
 

• The proposal that “the running of the festival and/or large scale events 
and licensing requirements will be approved by a formal SAG process” is 
inappropriate and unenforceable.   See General Principles and Section 3 
below.  
 

• For the same reasons, it is a fallacy to submit that any “EMSP” or any of 
the Plans listed in M(b)(1(a) to (i) will be subject to “the requirements of 
the Licensing Authority and the Enfield Safety Advisory Group”; In relation 
to the former – the Licensing Authority does not have powers to approve 
or disapprove arrangements after a licence has been granted.  The SAG has 
no authority to approve or disapprove operational plans provided by the 
Applicant.    

 
• M(b)(2) – Again this is inappropriate and/or vague – there being no 

defined SAG “process” and a SAG being only advisory in nature. 
  

• M(b((4)  This proposed condition is valueless as it is based on conditions 
which are in themselves unenforceable; 
 

• M(b)(9) to (13), (18), (19)  are a repetition of the proposed conditions in 
relation to the “Units only” application so the comments made in  
opposition are equally applicable to this application. 
 

• M(b)(22) –The suggested condition regarding consulting with THFC (in view 
of the proximity of Tottenham Hotspur Stadium “to collaboratively 
manage events is vague; meaningless and unenforceable.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• M(b)(23)  – This is a vague and unenforceable condition as it appears the 
the Crowd Management Plan or the Drugs Policy are not yet in existence.  

• M(b)(26) - This is a vague and unenforceable condition 
• M(b)(27) - This is a vague and unenforceable condition as the Safety 

Advisory Group is not in a position to agree  (or disagree) the measures 
proposed by the Applicants. 

• M(b)(28) and (29), (32) to(37) - These proposed steps are vague would not 
be enforceable condition, as they fail to identify who is responsible for 
compliance and/or refer to non-existence plans.  

• M(A)(42) This condition is rendered ineffectual as the Event Management 
and Safety Plan has not been provided  and any EMSP that is developed 

stipulate licensing requirements.  Any SAG is an advisory 
group and it has not powers (and it is not its role) to 
stipulate licensing conditions – that is the role of the 
Licensing Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See above comments  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Tottenham Hotspur Stadium, London Stadium; Alexandra 
Palace and other major venues in close proximity to the 
proposed “Premises” already have the benefit of 
Premises Licences (and in some cases General Safety 
Certification).   The Applicants cannot proffer conditions 
which involve third parties over whom they have no 
control.  It is for the Applicants to satisfy the Licensing 
Committee that they can operate their licensed premises 
without negatively impacting on the community including 
those licensed premises which have had to go through 
the process of obtaining suitable licences for their 
respective operations. 
 
 

P
age 161



Appendix 2 

14 
 

through the SAG as suggested by the Applicants is incapable of being 
“approved” and of being an enforceable condition on the licence.   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
      
      
3. 
Inappropriate Usurpation of 
powers from Licensing 
Authority to SAG  

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(s.4) 
 
 
 
(s.5)  

 Both applications made by the Applicants are devoid of sufficient detail (as set out 
in the Operating Schedules)  to enable the Responsible Authorities and the 
Licensing Committee to properly assess whether the proposed large scale events 
(involving a maximum of 40,000 people) could take place without negatively 
impacting on the Licensing Objectives.   
 
It is the Licensing Committee (or Licensing Authority under delegated powers, 
where applicable) that has the power to grant a licence subject to conditions.   
Conditions cannot be developed by third parties after the event (i.e. at some stage 
in the future post issue of the Licence) and “slotted into” the conditions on the 
Licence.   
 
The Applicants by repeatedly suggesting that various operational and management 
plans will materialise (post issue of a Premises Licence) following the “agreement” 
with SAG are attempting to usurp the function of the Licensing Committee.  It is 
the Licensing Committee that must carry out its functions under the Licensing Act 
2003 with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.   In carrying out its duties 
the Licensing Authority must also have regard to its own Licensing Statement and 
the Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

X  ALL  
 

 

P
age 162



Appendix 2 

15 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

     

      
4.  Inappropriate delegation 
of operational 
responsibilities by Applicant 
to SAG 

     

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  In summary the Applicants are inviting the Licensing Committee to issue two 
licences for ill-defined “Premises”, for large capacity audiences (up to 40,000) on 
assurances that operational and management plans will follow and will be subject 
to the approval of a SAG.   This approach is fundamentally flawed for the reasons 
already set out above. 
 
SAG does not have the power to approve plans or to stipulate that certain steps 
will become licence conditions.   At best, the applications suggest a 
misunderstanding of the powers of a SAG; at worst, they risk being viewed by 
Interested Parties as an attempt to obtain wide-reaching; late licences for large 
capacity events “through the back door”.    
 
SAG’s are advisory and have no legal status.   Further there is a dearth of 
information even about the SAG that the Applicant is proposing be involved, in the 
future, as proposed in its applications. No information has been provided 
concerning the proposed terms of reference for the SAG or who the core 
membership of the SAG is likely to comprise.    No information has been adduced 
to demonstrate that the proposed core member of the SAG have agreed to be part 
of it.  From the scarcity of information provided by the Applicant, there is no 
evidence to demonstrate that they have considered the recommendations in the 
Purple Guide9  (section 25) or similar publication concerning the role of SAGs.   
 
 

X  ALL  
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules 
fails to demonstrate how in reality the LOS will be treated 
and enforced as paramount. 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient 
comprising a standard but incomplete list of common 
measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into 
enforceable conditions.  
 

No disrespect to SAG’s is intended; 
they carry out an incredibly value 
role in providing guidance to event 
operators.   
 
However, it is highly inappropriate to 
advance that operational and/or 
management plans will be approved 
by SAG’s.   The 
ground/venue/“Premises” 
management is responsible for 
formulating their plans.  Where the 
premises do not need to obtain a 
GSC, those plans should, in our view, 
be in existence in advance of any 
Premises Licence being sought.   
 
 
  
 
 

5. Failure to establish that 
the Licensing Objectives will 
be promoted  

     

   Without fully articulated plans supporting the Licensing Objectives having been 
produced in advance of the applications, upon which the Responsible Authorities 
have had time to reflect,   all four licensing objectives will inevitably be negatively 
impacted as a result of the proposed large scale licensable events at the proposed 
“Premises”.    Where there is a lack of infrastructure supporting licensable 
activities the Applicant is under a greater obligation to ensure that its Operating 
Schedules provide a detailed framework – confirming what processes have already 
been developed to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are promoted.   
 
 
 

X  ALL 
 
The scarcity of information in the operating schedules 
fails to demonstrate how in reality the LOS will be treated 
and enforced as paramount. 
 
The steps suggested by the Applicants are insufficient 
comprising a standard but incomplete list of common 
measures without consideration of the locality; other 
major events and/or how the steps can be codified into 
enforceable conditions.  

 
 

                                                           
9 The Purple Guide  - section 25 – Working in a Safety Advisory Group – see also Appendix 3. 

P
age 163



Appendix 2 

16 
 

  
 

P
age 164



Annex 10ePage 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 10f
Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Annex 11 

IP5 - Resident B Representation 

 

I am grateful that as a result of my objections that the 192 will continue to run. 
  
I maintain that there is still a very real prospect that the rail station is not ready. In 
that instance, I do believe that a contingency should be made for a shuttle bus to 
Tottenham Hale. Ashley Rd can be used for pickup, drop off and turn back. 
  
I object to this being a 24hr event with trains stopping around 1pm with no night 
shuttle bus service to Tottenham Hale. 
  
I object to TfL not boosting nearby 24hr buses above 2bph after 1pm when the 
proposed train service is not operating. I propose that the 341, 34 and W3 be 
maintained at 4bph all night during the event and that the W3 be extended to Glover 
Drive for the event to avoid overcrowding. 
  
341 can be boosted to Manor House or Tottenham High Rd only, 34 can be boosted 
from Arnos Grove to Walthamstow only and W9 can be boosted to Wood Green 
only. 
  
I am concerned about how local residents will reach the site from Upper and Lower 
Edmonton by foot. Locals should not be routed via Tottenham Hale and there needs 
to be a special taxi rank for those who do not want to head to Tottenham Hale. 
 

 

______________________________________ 

 
Additional Information received 30/4/2019 
 
The venue website is advertising the 192 as a route to it. This is inappropriate 
because the 192 is presently beyond capacity at most times of the day in peak 
direction.  
 

Page 197



This page is intentionally left blank



100419v5 

Annex 12 
 

IP6 Representation from Esther Hughes, Enfield Safety Advisory Group Chair (SAG) 
 

 

Premises: Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW  

 

And 

 

Land to the south of Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b,Orbital Business Park 

5 Argon Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW 

 

 
 
Dear Ellie, 
 
Please consider this representation on behalf of the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) in respect of the above application   
under the licensing objectives Public Safety and Public Nuisance. 
 
The Chair of the SAG acknowledges that some of the Responsible Authorities, who are stakeholders of the SAG will also submit 
their own representations. 
 
The SAG representation will not contradict any of the representations made by the Responsible Authorities but  seeks to ensure 
that the concerns of all SAG stakeholders are addressed. Furthermore, following legal advice to the SAG, the group have 
proposed some amendments to the wording of conditions. Again, these should not be at the detriment/contradict any proposed 
conditions by the Responsible Authorities, the intention is to strengthen and promote the licensing objectives. The SAG welcome 
further discussions with Broadwick Venues Limited regarding the proposed conditions.  
 
 
Documentation listed below has been provided to the SAG for the Drum Sheds and the Field, essentially based around the use of 
the site for the 7th and 8th June 2019 for Field Day (capacity 25,000). It is important to note that document Appendix M – Transport 
and Pedestrian Management Plan V6.0 is based on the closure of Watermead Way from 20:00 to 05:00. This has been discussed 

P
age 199



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

extensively at the SAG to ensure safety of persons egressing the site. Should this plan alter in a significant way then the SAG 
would need to be consulted which may make result in a different recommendation.  
 

 
 
 
 

 

However, at the time of writing the following documents remain outstanding and therefore contribute to this representation.  

 
i) Emergency Evacuation Plan  

 Absence of detailed egress plans for planned and emergency evacuation of the site. (Public Safety Objective)  

 

P
age 200



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

 
i) Risk Assessments 

 Details of risk assessments (Public Safety Objective) 
 

 
ii) Venue capacity assessment for the warehouses (this document is not to the satisfaction of the London Fire Brigade; and 

will be dealt with by the Fire Brigade and Broadwick Venues Limited outside the comments of this representation)  
 

iii) Noise Level 
 

 Whilst the noise management plan refers to a noise level, the SAG recommend that this is made an explicit 
licence condition. (Public Nuisance Objective) 

 
 
Broadwick Venues Limited have advised the SAG that the emergency evacuation plan and risk assessments will be circulated 
week commencing 8th April 2019. However, this will leave insufficient time for the SAG to consider these in advance of the last 
date for representations being Saturday 13th April 2019. (Effectively the last working day would be the 12th April) 
 
Therefore, the SAG would not wish to be prematurely “agreeing” to a licence without consultation on all the event management 
documents. Should these documents be circulated and agreed in advance of the licencing committee hearing then the SAG would 
seek to withdraw this representation.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, Part 3 Operating Schedule of this licence application refers to capping events at 25,000. Whist the 
SAG is supportive in principle of this, subject to the above documentation being agreed, they wish to draw to the Licensing 
Authorities attention, that the actual application is for 39,999.  
 
The SAG is unable to comment on an event of this scale as there has been no supporting documentation to evidence the safe 
management of events at this capacity.  
 
In order to ensure that the conditions of the licence are enforceable and support the licensing objectives, the SAG make the 

following recommendations regarding amendments to the proposed licence conditions. 

 
 

P
age 201



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

The black text has been taken from the licence application; the blue text is the proposed amendments and/or comments from the 

SAG.  

 

 

1. Licence Application Overall  

 

1.1 All proposed licence conditions have the prefixed word “that” removed.  

 

2. Part 3 Operating Schedule 

 

2.1 Application for 39,999 

 

2.1.1 There is currently no event management documentation that has been submitted to the SAG or as part of the 

licence application to demonstrate support of the licencing objectives for an attendee level of 39,999. The 

SAG are therefore unable to comment on this. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3. Part M 

 

 

Existing Wording and condition number 

on Application  

Proposed wording and condition number 

Part M 

a) General – all four licensing 

The running of the festival and/or events over 25,000 will be subject to consultation 
with the Licensing Authority; Planning Authority; Responsible Authorities and the 
Enfield Safety Advisory Group;  

P
age 202



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

objectives (b, c, d and e) 

 

The running of the festival and/or large-
scale events and licensing requirements 
will be approved by a formal SAG process. 
This process will have an event 
management and safety plan (EMSP) 
which will be agreed through the SAG 
process. This will create additional 
operational conditions which will be 
attached to the premises licence as a result 
of the SAG process.  
 
A detailed layout plan showing positions of 
temporary structures such as stages, bars, 
food concessions, temporary toilet blocks 
and other infrastructure for the event will be 
provided and agreed through the SAG 
process. 
 

 
The documentation to support this will be as per condition 1 b below  
 

Part M b) The prevention of crime and 

disorder 

1. For all events, the premises licence 
holder shall submit the following 
completed documentation bespoke 
to that event that meets the 
requirements of the Licensing 
Authority and the Enfield Safety 
Advisory Group:  

(a)  Events Management and Safety Plan;  
(b)  Traffic Management Plan;  

Reword to: 
 
Having regard to the current edition of the Purple Guide, to Health, Safety and Welfare 
at Music and Other Events, the premises licence holder shall submit a completed 
Event Management Plan, bespoke to the event, to the Licensing Authority and 
the Enfield Safety Advisory Group for consultation purposes. 
 

1. The Event Management plan must include but is not limited to the following;  
2.1Risk Assessment(s); 
2.2Traffic Management Plan:  
2.3 Security/Crowd Management Plan;  
2.4 Noise Management Plan;  
2.5Medical Plan 

P
age 203



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

(c)  Security/Crowd Management Plan;  
(d)  Noise Management Plan;  
(e)  Risk Assessment(s);  
(f)  Drugs Policy;  
(g)  Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy;  
(h)  Medical Management Plan;  
(i)  Any other associated documentation.  
 

2.6 Alcohol and Drugs Policy 
2.7 Youth and Vulnerable Persons Policy which will include;   
 

2.7.1 Customer intoxication through drink and or drugs;  
2.7.2 Ejection of vulnerable persons;  
2.7.3 Refusal of entry to vulnerable persons;  
2.7.4 The use of advertising materials directing customers who feel  

vulnerable to a member of staff.  
 

      2.8 Venue Capacity Assessment  
2.9 Any other associated/relevant documentation. 

 
 

 

 Add new condition  

 

Requirements within all the documentation set out in Condition 2 (NB: this is the 

relevant condition number) will form additional conditions on this premises licence 

which will be observed and complied with at all times the licence is in force. 

 

 Add new condition  

 
All documentation, monitoring procedures, registers and records required by the 
conditions of this licence must be kept for one year and be made available at the 
premises upon request by any of the Responsible Authorities.  

 
2 The event will be subject to the full Enfield 

Safety Advisory Group process. 
Remove as covered by Condition M a. 
 

3 All documentation, monitoring 
procedures, registers and records 
required by the conditions of this 

Remove as would be new condition above 
 

P
age 204



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

licence must be made available at the 
premises to the police and authorised 
officers of the council and should be 
kept for at least one year.  

 

4 Requirements to or affecting any of the 
Licensing Objectives set out in the 
Licensing Act 2003 contained within all 
the documentation set out in Conditions 
1 and 2 creating the Event 
Management and Safety Plan will form 
additional conditions on the premises 
licence which will be observed and 
complied with.  

 

Delete as detailed in condition  above.  
 

5 That all staff will be given training in 
relation to the Licensing Act 2003 and 
the following specific areas; Licensing 
Act 2003 objectives and awareness, 
management systems and processes to 
enforce the premises licence 
conditions, Challenge 25 and the 
responsible retail of alcohol, warning 
and eviction (guidelines and 
procedures), conflict management and 
maintaining all required records and 
registers.  

 

Retain this condition 
 

6 That clearly legible signage shall be 
prominently displayed where it can 
easily be seen and read by customers 
at all exits / entrances at the premises 
and in all external areas of the premises 

Reword to: 
 
That clearly legible signage shall be prominently displayed where it can easily be seen 
and read by customers at all exits / entrances at the premises requesting  that 
customers leave the premises in a quiet and orderly manner with respect for local 

P
age 205



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

requesting to the effect that customers 
leave the premises in a quiet and 
orderly manner with respect for local 
residents.  
 

residents.  
 

7 That a register will be maintained at the 
main entrance to the premises showing 
the names, addresses and up to date 
contact details including mobile phone 
contact numbers for the Licensee and 
other members of the management 
team who are on duty. 
 

Retain this condition 
 

8 That no alcohol will be brought in to the 
premises by any customers at any time.  
 

Retain this condition 
 

9 That any event held at the premises will 
be risk assessed and a suitable and 
sufficient number of male and female 
door supervisors will be employed at 
the premises in accordance with the 
risk assessment. A search policy will be 
implemented in line with the risk 
assessment.  
 

Reword to: 
 

 
There must be a minimum number of SIA door supervisors to the ratio of xx ration to 
be provided in agreement with the Police.  
 

10 The Licensee will only permit the sale of 
alcohol for consumption off the premises 
where the alcohol is a specialist product, or 
a gift in part of a corporate event. For 
events which are promotional events, 
sealed bottles of alcohol may be part of a 
gift for people attending the event and 
customers will be allowed to leave with 
those sealed containers. This will be 

Retain this condition 
 

P
age 206



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

enforced by security confiscating open 
vessels on exit points.   

 

11 The Crowd Management Plan dealing 
with the dispersal and egress of guests will 
be in operation for every event held at the 
premise. 
 

Remove as already contained in condition 1  
 

12 That promotional literature and tickets 
will contain information regarding transport 
options and shall request that persons 
leave the area quietly.  

 
 

Remove – this takes place when non licensable activities  are taking place; this is a 
good idea but should be in EMP as unenforceable. 
 

13 That SIA security staff and/or stewards 
to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons 
where necessary to leave the site quietly. 

 
 

Retain this condition 

14 The incident and event log shall be kept 
on the premises and completed on each 
occasion an incident or event as listed in a-
g below occurs:  

 
(a) All crimes reported to the site;  
(b) All ejections of patrons;  
(c) Any complaints received;  
(d) Any incidents of disorder;  
(e) Any faults in the CCTV system;  
(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or 

emergency service.  
(g) Any other incident or event that 

impacts upon the promotion 
of the Licensing Objectives 

Retain this condition 
 

P
age 207



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

within the Licensing Act 2003.  
 

15 The incident book / incident recording 
system shall record the time, date, location 
and description of each incident, the 
printed and signed name of the person 
reporting the incident and any action taken 
in respect of the incident. The incident 
book / incident recording system shall be 
available / be accessible at the premises at 
all times that the premises are in use in 
accordance with this licence and shall be 
made available to officers of the council, 
police or fire brigade on request.  
 

 

Reword to: 
 

The incident book / incident recording system shall record the time, date, location and 
description of each incident, the printed and signed name of the person reporting the 
incident and any action taken in respect of the incident.  
 

16 That a written record is kept of all staff 
authorised to sell alcohol; this staff record 
is to contain the full name, home address, 
date of birth and national insurance 
number of each person so authorised. The 
staff record is to be kept on the licensed 
premises and made available for inspection 
by the Licensing Authority, Trading 
Standards or the Police as soon as 
reasonably practicable.  

 
 

Reword to: 
 

A written record shall be kept of all staff authorised to sell alcohol; this staff record is to 
contain their full name.  
 

17 That SIA security staff and/or stewards 
to be briefed to monitor and remind patrons 
where necessary to leave the area quietly. 
 

 

Remove as repeated in existing conditions 
 

P
age 208



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

18 A digital CCTV system must be installed 
in the premises complying with the 
following criteria:  

- Cameras must be sited to 
observe customer entrance and 
exit doors both inside and 
outside, the bars and floor areas. 

- Where practical be capable of 
visually confirming the nature of 
the crime committed.  

- Provide a linked record of the 
date, time and place of any 
image.  

- Provide good quality images 
during opening times.  

- Have the recording device 
located in a secure area or 
locked cabinet.  

- Have a monitor to review images 
and recorded picture quality.  

- Be regularly maintained to 
ensure continuous quality of 
image capture and retention.  

- Have signage displayed in the 
customer area to advise that 
CCTV is in operation. 

Reword to: 

A digital CCTV system must be installed in the premises complying with the following criteria: 
(a) Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both inside and outside, 

the alcohol displays and floor areas. 
(b) Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders of 

all people entering the premises i.e. capable of identification.  
(c) Cameras viewing till areas must capture frames not less then 50% of screen.  
(d) Cameras overlooking floor areas should be wide angled to give an overview of the 

premises.  
(e) Cameras must capture a minimum of 16 frames per second. 
(f) Be capable of visually confirming the nature of the crime committed. 
(g) Provide a linked record of the date, time and place of any image. 
(h) Provide good quality images – colour during opening times. 
(i) Operate under existing light levels within and outside the premises. 
(j) Have the recording device located in a secure area or locked cabinet. 
(k) Have a monitor to review images and recorded picture quality. 
(l) Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture and retention. 
(m) Have signage displayed in the customer area to advise that CCTV is in operation. 
(n) Digital images must be kept for 31 days. 
(o) Police will have access to images at any reasonable time. 
(p) The equipment must have a suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that the 

police can make an evidential copy of the data they require. This data should be in the 
native file format, to ensure that no image quality is lost when making the copy. If this 
format is non-standard (i.e. manufacturer proprietary) then the manufacturer should 
supply the replay software to ensure that the video on the CD can be replayed by the 
police or authorised officer of the Council on a standard computer. Copies must be 
made available to the Police or an authorised officer of the Council on request. 

 

P
age 209



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

- Digital images must be kept for 
31 days.  

- The police and authorised 
officers of the council will have 
access to images upon request 

- The equipment must have a 
suitable export method, e.g. 
CD/DVD writer so that the police 
or authorised officers of the 
council can make an evidential 
copy of the data when they 
require. 

- All cameras shall record 
constantly during all hours the 
premises are open to the public 
or to a section of the public 
permitted access for corporate or 
private events. 

- There must be a member of staff 
on site who can operate the 
CCTV when requested. 

 

19 That all information contained in the 
transport statement submitted to Enfield 
Council on application for this licence will 
be implemented by the premises licence 
holder. A copy of the transport statement 
shall be kept at the premises and be made 

Remove as contained in condition 1 the TTO is a public document anyway 

 

P
age 210



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

available to council or police officers on 
request.  

 
 

20 A last entry policy will be in place 
stopping guests from entering the site past 
1:00am. 
 

Retain this condition 
 
 

21 The sale of alcohol will cease one hour 
prior to the site closing for events with a 
run-time to 06:00am. This will allow a one 
hour wind down unless agreed in advance 
with the responsible authorities.  
 

Do the police make any amendment to this ? 
 

22Prior to the organisation of any festival 
event; the premises licence holder shall 
have regard to the close proximity of the 
White Hart Lane Stadium and shall consult 
with Tottenham Hotspur Limited (premises 
licence holder) to collaboratively manage 
events that take place on any day a 
Football Association, Premier League or 
UEFA football match takes place at White 
Hart Lane Stadium and any other large-
scale simultaneous events.  

 
 

Remove as unenforceable. This will need to be dealt with by Broadwick and THS 
outside of the licensing process.  
 

23 The Crowd Management Plan  shall 
detail action to be taken by staff on 
the discovery of drugs on a person 
within the premises and will be in 
line with the premises Drugs Policy.  
 
 

Remove as detailed in condition 1. 
 
 

P
age 211



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

24 A personal licence holder shall be 
present on the premises and supervise the 
sale of alcohol, throughout the permitted 
hours for the sale of alcohol.  
 

Retain this condition 
 

 Add new condition: 
 
For non corporate music led events photo identification of all persons, including staff 
are passed through the system prior to being permitted entry to the premises. The 
details recorded on the system should be retained for at least 31 days and made 
available to police upon reasonable request for the provision of preventing and 
detecting crime and identifying suspects and witnesses.  
 
Or similar as per any request from the Police 
 

Part M c) Public safety 
 

 

25 That unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the Licensing Authority, details of any 
proposed use and storage of lasers, 
special effects, fireworks or pyrotechnics 
shall be detailed in advance and reflected 
in the Event Management and Safety Plan. 

 
 

Remove as this would be contained in Condition 1 and duplicated by other legislation  
 

26 That a medical plan shall be devised in 
respect of the premises and a copy of the 
medical plan shall be available / be 
accessible at the premises at all times that 
the premises are in operation. The medical 
plan shall be made immediately available 
to council or police officers on request. 
First aid cover and facilities appropriate to 
any event must be provided in accordance 

Remove as this would be contained in Condition 1 
 

P
age 212



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

with the medical plan. 
 

 

27 The Licensee will ensure adequate 
means of escape to meet the capacity for 
any event, including any required 
infrastructure, for example, bridges, 
emergency exits are agreed with the Safety 
Advisory Group and are in place prior to 
the premises being open.  
 

Remove as this would be contained in Condition 1 
 

28 The security/crowd management plan 
will define the procedure and process for 
managing the numbers of people in each 
area to ensure that capacity is not 
exceeded. 

 
 

Remove as this would be contained in Condition 1 
 

29 The Youth and Vulnerable Persons 
Policy shall detail actions to be taken by 
staff upon identification of customer 
vulnerability and shall include but not be 
limited to:  
 

(a)  Customer intoxication through 
drink and or drugs;  

(b)  Ejection of vulnerable persons;  
(c)  Refusal of entry to vulnerable 

persons;  
(d)  The use of advertising materials 
directing customers who feel 
vulnerable a member of staff.  

 
  

Remove as would be contained in Condition 1 

P
age 213



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

 

30 All staff shall receive training that will 
assist them in identifying customer 
vulnerability and shall make interventions 
in accordance with the written Youth and 
Vulnerable Persons Policy. 

 
 

Remove as would be contained in Condition 1 
 

31 The incident and event log shall be kept 
on the premises and completed on each 
occasion an incident or event as listed 
below occurs:  
 

(a)  All crimes reported to the event;  
(b)  All ejections of patrons;  
(c)  Any complaints received;  
(d)  Any incidents of disorder;  
(e)  Any faults in the CCTV system;  
(f)  Any visit by a relevant authority 
or emergency service.  
(g)  Any other incident or event that 
impacts upon the promotion of the 
Licensing Objectives within the 
Licensing Act 2003.  

 
 

Reword to:  

The incident and event log shall be kept on the premises and completed on each 
occasion an incident or event as listed in a-g below occurs:  

 
(a) All crimes reported to the site;  
(b) All ejections of patrons;  
(c) Any complaints received;  
(d)  Any incidents of disorder;  
(e) Any faults in the CCTV system;  
(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

Any other incident or event that impacts upon the promotion of the Licensing 
Objectives within the Licensing Act 2003 

32 That any substantial queues formed 
within and outside the premises 
shall be supervised by event staff 
where appropriate. Such supervision 
shall be aimed at preventing 
disorder and discouraging anti-
social behaviour. 

 

Remove as would be contained in Condition 1. 
 

P
age 214



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

33 That in the event of an emergency, 
music will cease and safety 
announcements will be relayed to 
attendees to a suitable non-powered back-
up system will be in place.  
 

Retain 
 

 Add New Condition 
 

Defer to the Police for any additional condition regarding provision of Shuttle buses . 
 

Part M d) The prevention of public 
nuisance 
 

 

34That a comprehensive Noise 
Management Plan shall be devised and 
reflected as an Appendix to the Event 
Management and Safety Plan in respect of 
the premises and a copy of the Noise 
Management Plan shall be accessible at 
the premises at all times that the premises 
are in operation. The Noise Management 
Plan shall be made immediately available 
to council or police officers on request. 
That the licensee will ensure that the 
premises Noise Management Plan is 
adhered to at all times.  

 
 

Remove as would be contained in Condition 1. 
 

P
age 215



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

35That all relevant staff working at the 
premises shall be trained in the content of 
the Noise Management Plan and be aware 
of their responsibilities and duties under it. 
Records of relevant training shall be kept 
with the Noise Management Plan.  
 

 

Remove as would be contained in Condition 1. 
 

36That a telephone number and/or email 
address should be made available on 
relevant websites for any noise complaints. 
Any noise complaints should be logged 
and investigated with written records of the 
details available to view by the Local 
Authority. Should any noise complaints be 
received, and if noise levels are above 
those specified  in the licence conditions, 
action should be taken to reduce the levels 
at the noise source.  
 

Retain condition  

37 That permitted sound levels shall be 
specified in the contract conditions with 
hirers of the premises to ensure sound 
levels are maintained within the limits in 
order to reduce the risk of disturbance. 
Further, during a function in the premises, 
sample noise measurements shall be 
made by a designated person with an 
approved sound level meter to ensure that 
the levels are not being breached. 
Immediate action will be taken to reduce 
levels if this should arise.  

 
 

Remove – Remove as would be contained in Condition 1. 
 

P
age 216



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

38Signs shall be prominently displayed on 
the exit doors advising customers that the 
premises are in a Public Space Protection 
Order Area (or similar) and that alcohol 
should not be taken off the premises and 
consumed in the street. These notices shall 
be positioned at eye level and in a location 
where they can be read by those leaving 
the premises.  

 

Retain this condition 

 Add new condition  
Any amplified sound arising from the Drumsheds and the Field shall not exceed 75dB LAeq 15 min and 
90dB LCeq 15 min measured 1 metre from the boundary of any residential property between the hours of 
09:00 – 23:00 and shall not exceed 45dB LAeq 15 min and 65dB LCeq 15 min measured 1 metre from the 
boundary of any residential property between the hours of 23:00 – 09:00. 
 

Part M e) The protection of children from 
harm 
 

 

39That a challenge 25 scheme shall be 
maintained at the premises requiring that 
staff selling alcohol request that any 
customer who looks under 25 years old, 
and who is attempting to purchase alcohol, 
provides valid photographic identification 
proving that the customer is at least 18 
years old.  

 
 

Retain this condition 

40Clearly legible signs shall be prominently 
displayed stating to the effect that a 
challenge 25 policy is in operation at the 
premises, that customers may be asked to 
provide proof of age and stating what the 

Retain this condition 

P
age 217



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

acceptable forms of proof of age are.  
 

41That suitable records are kept of all 
refused sales of age restricted products.  

 
 

Reword to  
 
A record of refused sales shall be kept on the premises and completed when 
necessary. 
 

42The operational procedure of all bars will 
adhere to the Event Management and 
Safety Plan. 
 
 

 

Remove – Remove as would be contained in Condition 1. 
 

 Add new condition  
 
All training relating to the sale of alcohol and the times and conditions of the 
premises licence shall be documented and records kept at the premises.  
 

 
 

 

The SAG will continue to work with Broadwick Venues Limited who have been very accommodating to suggestions and proposals 
to date. We wish to continue this good working relationship. 

 
 
.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 218



Festival Licence 100419 v 7 18:30 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Kind Regards 

Esther Hughes 
Team Leader – Consumer Protection 
Chair – Enfield SAG 

 

P
age 219



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex 13 
 

IP7 – LB Haringey Representation 
 

Broadwick Venues Limited FESTIVAL Licence Application 
 
Haringey Licensing Authority make representation against this application on the 
following matters which impact on the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime 
& disorder, public safety and the prevention of public nuisance.  
 
The application for the festival site is still seeking 39,999 capacity without 
demonstrating how this egress and contingency planning for this capacity will be 
met, the SAG does not have the powers to increase the capacity on a licence. There 
is insufficient information supplied at present to consider a 39,999 capacity and we 
would not advise the LSC to agree to unknown /undefined plans at this stage.  The 
capacity should be capped at 25,000 as this figure has been demonstrated to be 
significant in allowing for clearance of the Tottenham Hale transport hub by midnight. 
 
The application in general makes overarching statements but does not give definitive 
steps/conditions of what is proposed to be set in place to meet the four licensing 
objectives. Haringey are therefore proposing the following conditions: 
 
 

 A comprehensive and satisfactory traffic management plan (TMP), including 
full details of ingress and egress management, parking restrictions and 
enforcement, taxi pick up and drop off positions must be agreed by the SAG 1 
month prior to the large event.  

 The Traffic Order must detail the required restrictions and timings for the 
closure of Watermead Way for the egress of the major events. This is 
because we believe that the only safe way to the public to use Public 
transport is the road closure ( Public Safety)    

           This must be agreed by MPS, LB Haringey, London Borough of Enfield, TFL 
(as traffic authority and for Underground and Buses) and GTR . Without the 
agreement of all parties to the TMP one month before the event, the event cannot 
take place.  
 

 Sufficient and appropriately briefed and trained staff must be deployed to 

manage queues at all transport hubs significantly affected by each event. The 

locations and timings of these deployments to be agreed with the SAG. ( 

Prevention of Public Nuisance and Public Safety) 

 

 Sufficient barriers to be agreed with the SAG must be provided in order to 
facilitate a safe queuing environment and deliver patrons to the stations at a 
rate that the stations can deal with.  

 

 The full cost of the TMP, including the TMO, staffing and barrier costs to be 

met by the organiser/promoter.  

 

Page 221



 Implementation, management and enforcement of the TMP and TMO must be 

by adequately trained stewards.  

 

 Any ingress and egress route is to avoid any path that will take the event 

crowd through the residential streets in Haringey this is to include the Hale 

Village area. (prevention of public nuisance) 

 
Emergency plans 
No information has been submitted that provides and overview of the emergency 
procedure management plan for the site.  
 
Alcohol timings 
The application is seeking the ability to sell alcohol from 8am- 6am (possibly to 7am 
at the start of BST), whilst we understand that the applicants wish to have as much 
leeway as possible in the operation of the site , we feel that alcohol sales for such 
excessive hours has the potential to lead to anti social behaviour and would urge the 
LSC to reduce the hours sought or to condition sales cease 1 hour  prior to the end 
of any event not just those running to 6am as the application is requesting.  
 
Condition to avoid Spurs clash 
 
It is critical that events are not held at the same time at both the Spurs Stadium and 

Meridian Walk as this could result in strain on the limited transport 
infrastructure in the area. We therefore propose the following condition: No 
large/major event to be held at Meridian Waters on days when  

Tottenham Hotspur is in use for a major event such as a concert/festival/NFL or late 
start football match.  

 
Noise Management 
 
Information provided to residents and businesses 2 weeks prior to the event must 
include a synopsis of information about the event including dates and times based 
upon the Premises Licence  conditions. Information on how it is intended residents 
will be protected from excessive noise and details of a dedicated and live complaints 
telephone line, relevant traffic management information that could affect business, 
road closure etc. The Haringey Licensing team will provide/agree a list of roads 
within a reasonable distance from the event space specifying the required 
distribution list.  
 
A draft of the letter to residents and businesses must be provided to the SAG no 
later than 4 weeks prior to the event. 
 
Regards 
Haringey Licensing Authority. 

 

Page 222



Annex 14 
 

IP8 – Resident C Representation 
 
 
I wish register my objections on two counts.  
Firstly the prevention of public nuisance due to the noise from the preposed venue 
being close to residential areas.  
Secondly on the grounds of public safety due to the the large amount of people 
spilling out of the preposed venue adjacent to a busy main road with very few 
transport links in the area.  
  
 

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



Devonshire House 
38 York Place 
Leeds 
LSl 2ED 

33 Cavendish Square 
London 
Wl0PW 

Rotterdam House lnfo@woodswhur.co.uk 
116 Quayside www.woodswhur.co.uk 
Newcastle Upon Tyne 
NEl 3DY Tel: 0113 234 3055 

woodswhur All correspondence should be sent to our Leeds office 

Ellie Green 
Principal Licensing Officer 
Enfield Council 

By Email Only 

Dear Ellie 

Our ref PW/EH/VEN00l-2-5/4098 

Your ref 

26 April 2019 

Re: Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, 

London, N18 3BW; and 
Land to the South of Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, Edmonton, 
London, N18 3BW 

I write with reference to the above applications for the Festival Licence and the Events Licence. In your 
email dated 16th May 2019, you have referred to three reference numbers for the applications: 

• RefWK.218074598 for the Festival Licence.
• RefWK.218074578 for the Festival Licence.
• Ref WK.21807 4640 for the Events Licence.

I am writing to clarify our client's position on each of these applications. 

Ref WK218074598 Ref WK218074578 

This is the recently submitted application for the Festival Licence. 

Our client has given further consideration to the application. 

To ease the task before the Sub-Committee our applicant will limit the application in two respects: 

• The application will be simply for the annual holding of the Field Day festival.
• A limit on capacity to 25,000 people.

If granted, this will enable the first Field Day event to be staged with a capacity of 25,000 people. Any 
variation to the premises licence thereafter, for example to increase the number or capacity of subsequent 
events, would need to be subject to an application and public consultation, informed by the experience of 
the first Field Day event. We trust that this will be helpful to the Sub-Committee in its consideration of the 
matter. 

Directors: Patrick M Whur. Andrew J Woods. Consultant: Colin Manchester 

Woods Whur 2014 Limited is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Reoulation Authority. SRA No: 613288. Woods Whur 2014 Limited Is a limited company incorporated in England and Wales 
with registered number 8973858. Woods Whur 2014 Limited Is registered at Devonshire House, 38 York Place, Leeds, LSl ZED. VAT No: 187 289 453 

Annex 17
Page 225



Page 226



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date:  23rd April 2019 

Report of 

Head of Planning 

Contact Officer: 

Josleen Ray 

Ward:  

Edmonton Green 

Ref:  19/00632/FUL Category: Major 

LOCATION:   Meridian Works, Units 4, 5, 6, 9 And 9A and adjacent land at Orbital Business Park, 
5 Argon Road,  Edmonton, N18 3BW 

PROPOSAL:  Use of buildings and adjacent land to host the Field Day 2019 music festival on 7th-9th 
June 2019 for up to 25,000 visitors.  Festival opening times 7th/8th June 12pm-3am, 8th/9th June 12pm-
3am with no outdoor performances after 10:30pm on both days. Associated works to the adjacent 
land. 

Applicant Name & Address: 
Broadwick Ventures Limited  

Agent Name & Address: 
Knights plc 
The Brampton 
Newcastle-under-Lyme 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That, subject to the receipt of satisfactory ecological survey results, the Head of Development 
Management/Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to 
conditions and add any additional planning conditions necessary to secure appropriate mitigation 
as well as make any minor amendments to the wording of the conditions drafted in Part 1 of this 
report. 

Annex 16Page 227



 
Ref: 19/00632/FUL    LOCATION:  Meridian Works, Units 4, 5, 6, 9 And 9A And Adjacent Land At
 

 

 
 

  

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey 
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and 
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.    
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820 

Scale 1:1250 North 

 

Page 228



1.0 Recommendation  
 

1.1  Planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to  conditions. 
   
 

1. The development to which this permission relates solely to the Field Day 
festival event on the weekend of 7-9th June 2019 and following the  event 
the application site shall revert to its former use.  

 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of S.51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

 
2. All equipment and paraphenalia associated with the event shall be 

removed from the land and buildings no later than 23rd June 2019 after the 
event. 

 
3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with 

the following approved plans and documents (This condition will need 
updating to reflect the final drawings and documents). 

 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
4  Prior to the commencement of development a statement confirming that 

the site has been capped in accordance with the approved details 
pertaining to application 18/04914/RE4 shall be submitted to and agreed in 
wiriting by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall provide evidence that 
the conditions of that permission have been satisfied and that the use of 
the land would pose no risk to human health. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any further risk to the water 
environment by managing any ongoing contamination issues and 
completing all necessary long-term remediation measures. This is in line 
with paragraph 170 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 
CP32 of the Core Strategy and Policies DMD64 and DMD66 of the 
Development Management Document 
 

5 The development hereby permitted shall not commence until the open land 
to the south of the buildings has been capped in accordance with the 
planning permission 18/04914/RE4. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the site does not pose any risks to human health. 

 
6 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, the applicant 

shall submit details to the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate how their 
proposed oil storage arrangements comply with the Control of Pollution (Oil 
Storage) (England) Regulations 2001.  The development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 
 

Page 229



Reason: To ensure the activity does not have any adverse impacts on the 
water quality of the Lee Navigation. 

 
7 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, Water and 

Waste Management Plans shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority and implemented as agreed. 
 
Reason: To ensure the activity does not have any adverse impacts on the 
water quality of the Lee Navigation. 

 
8 Prior to the commencement of development hereby permitted, a lighting 

plan including lux levels shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority and implemented as agreed. 
 
Reason: To ensure the proposed activity does not have any adverse 
impacts on the ecology of the Lee Navigation or Pymmes Brook. 

 
9 The use of supports, including marquee pegs, using penetrative methods 

shall not be carried out other than with the written consent of the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with the Environemnt Agency.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: Supports, including marquee pegs, using penetrative methods can 
result in risks to groundwater from, for example, the risk of mobilising 
conatmination and creating preferential pathways.  Groundwater is 
particularly sensitive in this location because the proposed development 
site is within Source Protection Zone 2 and is located upon Secondary 
Aquifier A. 

 
10 No infiltration surface water drainage into the ground is permitted other than 

with the written consent of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 
the Environment Agency.  Any proposals for such systems must be 
supported by an assessment of the risks to controlled waters.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.   
 
Reason:The previous use of the proposed development site as a chemicals 
site linked to gas manufacture presents a high risk of contamination that 
could be mobilised by surface water infiltration from the proposed 
sustainable drainage system (SUDS).  This could lead to pollution of 
controlled waters. 
 

11 The music event hereby approved shall not take place before 12pm on the 
7th June 2019 or after 3am on the 8th June, or between 3am-12pm on the 
8th June or after 3am on the 9th June except for site and event set-up/ clear-
up. 
 

12 No outdoor performances are permitted after 10:30pm on the 7th or 8th June 
2019. 

 

Page 230



Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby residents. 
 

13 The event shall comply with the limits set out in the noise management 
plan.  

 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby residents. 

 

14 The maximum number of patrons attending the event shall not exceed 
25,000 (this excludes staff, security, marshals and performers). 

 

Reason: To ensure the event does not have significant adverse effects on 
the capacity of local roads and the transport network as well as the 
amenities of nearby residents and businesses.  

 

15 The site shall be enclosed around its perimeter in accordance with the plans 
hereby approved and accessed only in accordance with the approved 
points of entry/ egress. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the movement of people is managed safely. 

 
16 Prior to the event a litter and plastic waste minimisation strategy shall be 

submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  The 
strategy shall detail how litter will be cleared from the site and the adjoining 
watercourses during and after the event and include the timescale within 
which the post-event clean-up will take place.  The clearance of litter shall 
then be carried out in accordance with these approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure the site and surrounding areas are left in a satisfactory 
state and to limit the impact on the sensitive ecological receptors of the 
Pymmes Brook and River Lee. 

 
17 The site shall not be used for the purposes hereby approved until  evidence 

has been submitted to demonstrate that suitable access to the site has 
been agreed with any third party land owners and such access 
arrangements provide for the protection and mitigation of any ecological 
assets. 
 
Reason: To ensure suitable access to the site is provided. 

 
18 Prior to the event details of safe and convenient vehicle drop off facilities, 

including for taxis and private vehicles shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be available 
for the duration of the event. 
 
Reason: To minimise disruption to the local highway network and 
disturbance to adjoining businesses and residents. 

 

Page 231



19 Prior to the event, final details of the ingress and egress plan shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  This 
shall include a plan showing alternative routes for users impacted by any 
highway closures required to facilitate the event.  The management of the 
event shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

  
Reason: To ensure safe and convenient access is provided to the event 
and disruption to adjoining sites is minimised. 

 
20 Prior to the event details of the details of the methodology for undertaking 

the parking surveys before and during the event  and the extent of survey 
area shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The surveys shall be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved details and the results provided to the Local Planning Authority 
on completion.  

 
Reason: To monitor the impacts of the use on local roads and on street 
parking. 
 

21 Prior to the event details of appropriate and secure cycle parking facilities 
shall be provided in a location and at a level agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the 
approved details and maintained for the duration of the event. 
 
Reason: To ensure appropriate facilities are provided and to ensure access 
is available for all modes.  

 
 

  
 
  
 

 
2.0  Note for Members 
 
2.1  The application has been brought to the Planning Committee because the proposal 

is for a Major meanwhile development in the Meridian Water regeneration area.  The 
site is also within Council ownership. 

 
2.2 Members are also advised that the event is subject to an application for a premises 

license  under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

 
3.0  Summary of Reasons for Recommendation 
 
3.1 The report seeks approval for the use of land and buildings within the Meridian Water 

regeneration area for a 2-day musical festival event, Field Day, on 7th-9th June 2019.  
The site falls within a parcel of land earmarked for redevelopment as part of Phase 
2 of the Meridian Water development which is currently at pre-application discussion 
stage with the LPA.  The event would be held in existing warehouse buildings and 

Page 232



adjoining land directly to the south, previously used for industrial processes.  The 
land and buildings are non-designated employment land and are currently vacant.  
The proposed event would be for 2 days only with the site being vacated following 
the event with no permanent structures or interventions retained.  Approval has 
already been granted for the capping of the land included within the application site 
to contain existing contaminants.  This work is required to any meanwhile use 
commencing. 

 
  
3.2  The reasons for recommending approval of this application are: 
 

i) The proposals for a meanwhile use on vacant land prior to the implementation 
of the wider regeneration of Meridian Water will attract visitors to the borough, 
entertainment for local people, generate income and provide jobs. 
 

ii) The proposed temporary use would not prejudice the future use of the site for 
employment, business or residential-led mixed use purposes either as a stand-
alone site or as part of the phase 2 parcel of land.  
 

iii) The measures to be put in place to manage the flow of people and traffic to 
and from the event would ensure the proposal would be acceptable in terms of 
highway and pedestrian safety and traffic generation.  

 
iv) The development would not result in any demonstrable harm to visual or 

residential amenity, ecology or flood risk.  
  
 
 
4.0  Site and Surroundings 
 
4.1  The application site lies within the Orbital Business Park and a mixed industrial and 

retail area.  It is bounded by Ravensdale Retail Park to the north, the Lee River 
Navigation and tow path to the east, Tottenham Marshes Nature Reserve to the 
south and Pymmes Brook and Ikea retail store to the west. 

 
4.2 The site includes units 4, 5, 6, 9 and 9a of the Business Park currently vacant 

purpose-built warehouse buildings previously used for a variety of storage and 
distribution uses falling within B8 class use.  Units 4, 5 and 6 comprise 3 rectangular 
buildings with a combined floor area of approximately 6,500sqm.  Units 9 and 9a 
have a total floor area of approximately 1,500sqm.  The adjoining warehouse 
buildings are currently occupied and in use again for uses falling within B2 and B8, 
appropriate to the industrial nature of the business park. 

 
4.3 The site also includes the vacant land to the south of the buildings which has an area 

of approximately 4.3 hectares. It is vacant and comprises vegetation: bushes, trees 
and low-lying scrub but was previously known as Leeside Chemical Works and 
processed gasworks waste. The site was also used for soil screening and concrete 
crushing.  

 

Page 233



4.4  Whilst the site is located within the Orbital Business Park,  it does not fall within the 
Strategic Industrial Land designation. The site lies predominately in Flood Zone 2 
with the land to the north eastern corner of the site within Flood Zone 3. The site also 
falls within the Lea Valley West Bank Archaeological Priority Area. The site is located 
next to the River Lea, which is a priority habitat as per the NPPF, and at this location 
is part of the Lea Valley Site of Metropolitan Importance for Nature Conservation 
(SMINC). 

 
 
5.0  Proposal 
 
5.1  Permission is sought for the use of land and buildings for a 2-day music festival in 

June this year.  The festival, known as Field Day, has been held in London for over 
10 years, most recently in Brockwell Park and prior to that Victoria Park.  This year 
it is proposed to operate both within the buildings and also outside on the adjacent 
land to the south.  The use of land alone for such an event would not normally require 
planning permission due to the permitted development rights afforded to the 
temporary use of land under Class B, Part 4 of the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015. However, as the festival 
would also operate within the warehouse buildings, for which the aforementioned 
rights do not apply, planning permission is required for the 2-day event. 

 
5.2 The proposed opening hours for the event are from 12.00 midday on Friday 7 June 

to 3.00 am on Saturday 8 June and from 12.00 midday on Saturday 8 June to 3.00am 
on Sunday 9 June. No performances will take place outside the buildings after 
10.30pm. The event will accommodate a maximum of 25,000 people. The evening 
part of the event (within the buildings beyond 10.30 and until 3.00am) is only open 
to people who are already on site. The last entry time for the event is 8pm. 

 
5.3 Given the historic uses on the site the land is subject to contamination.  In order to 

ensure the site is suitable for meanwhile uses and safe for use by the general public, 
the vacant land will be capped (covered with a 400mm layer of material to prevent 
contaminants releasing from the ground, with an additional layer of aggregate and 
topsoil).  A perimeter track and stage area within the north western corner of the site 
constructed out of crushed tarmac would also be provided.  Planning approval for 
this work was consented in March (see relevant planning history below) and will be 
carried out prior to the use of the site for the proposed event subject of this 
application.  

 
5.4 Within this application limited physical works are proposed to the site itself to 

facilitate the event.  This includes the installation of natural turf over the capping layer 
to provide a more suitable surface for attendees of the event.  In addition, an area of 
the site in the north east corner of the site adjoining the River Lee which lies in Flood 
Zone 3, not subject to capping, is proposed to be covered in a membrane with a 
temporary deck above to enable access over part of the land.  This is required for 
access between the buildings and the field and acts as a thoroughfare rather than a 
sitting out area. 

 
5.4 Various temporary structures are required for the event.  These include an external 

stage, gates, fencing and lighting.  These are temporary structures that are required 

Page 234



for the event only and will be removed following the event.  The principal point of 
access for attendees of the event will be in the south western corner of the site over 
an existing Bailey Bridge over Pymmes Brook.  For those attendees arriving through 
Tottenham Hail station the main routes to the site will be through a stewarded route 
through Tottenham Marshes or along Watermead Way/ Meridian Way.   For those 
approaching from Meridian Water station, a pedestrian route along Leeside Road 
will be provided.  

 
 

 
 Figure 1 – Ingress Plan showing access into the site across an existing bridge over the 

Pymmes Brook and the routes from Meridian Water Station and Tottenham Marshes.  

Page 235



 

 
 Figure 2 – Detailed Site Layout plan showing the entry point into the site from the bridge over 

Pymmes Brook and the emergency exit points (shaded in green) from the site onto 
Tottenham Marshes. 

 
 
 
6.0  Relevant Planning History 
 
6.1  18/04914/RE4 – Capping of the site with a maximum of 400mm material across the 

existing ground levels of the site.  Granted 20/03/19. 
 
6.2 19/01067/CND – Details submitted pursuant to 18/04914/RE4 for the monitoring and 

maintenance plan (5) in relation to the capping of the site with a maximum of 400mm 
material across the existing ground levels of the site. Granted 28/03/19. 

 
6.3 19/01068/CND – Details submitted pursuant to 18/04914/RE4 for the Sustainable 

Drainage Strategy (7) in relation to the capping of the site with a maximum of 400mm 
material across the existing ground levels of the site. Granted 03/04/19.   

 
6.4  18/04932/SCOP - Request under Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning 

(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 (as amended) for an EIA 
Scoping Opinion for Meridian Water Phase 2 for an outline planning application for 
a residential led mixed-use development of approximately 2000 homes and Meridian 
Water Strategic Infrastructure Works including roads, bridges, remediation, 
earthworks, utilities and flood attenuation works. – Response issued 15th February 
2019.  

  
 
Wider Meridian Water Site 

 
6.5  16/01197/RE3 – Development of Phase 1 of Meridian Water comprising up to 725 

residential units, new station building, platforms and associated interchange and 
drop-off facilities including a pedestrian link across the railway, a maximum of 950 

Page 236



sqm retail (A1/A2/A3), floorspace, a maximum of 600 sqm of community (D1)  
floorspace, a maximum of 750 sqm of leisure (D2) floorspace, associated site 
infrastructure works including ground and remediation works, roads, cycle-ways and 
footpaths, utility works above and below ground, surface water drainage works, 
energy centre and associated plant, public open space and childrens play areas, and 
various temporary meantime uses without structures (landscaping and open space). 
OUTLINE APPLICATION - ACCESS ONLY.  An Environmental Statement, including 
a non-technical summary, also accompanies the planning application in accordance 
with the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2011 (as amended by the 2015 Regulations). – Granted 10/07/2017 – 
works have commenced on implementing the station which is expected to be 
complete in Summer 2019. 

 
6.6 The new station building approved under this permission is now almost complete 

with a planned opening in May 2019. 
 
7.0   Consultation 
 
7.1   Statutory and Non-Statutory Consultees 
   

Environment Agency 
 

7.1.1 Groundwater Protection:  
No objection subject to the imposition of recommended conditions concerning 
groundwater protection and restrictions on penetrative methods including 
infiltration drainage to limit the risk of mobilising contamination. 

 
7.1.2 Flood Risk: 

The development is located within 8m of the main rivers Pymmes Brook and Lee 
Navigation, and within fluvial Flood Zones 2 and 3a.  A Flood Risk Assessment 
has been submitted with the application and based on this and the emergency 
flood response plan also submitted there are no objections on flood risk grounds. 

 
  Environmental Health 
 
7.1.3 A comprehensive noise management plan has been submitted that addresses all 

the likely noise issues.  Noise levels have been agreed that will control the level of 
noise outbreak from the event both during daytime and night time.  The noise levels 
agreed specifically control low frequency content of the noise spectrum as well as 
having a general noise level to meet.  Noise at night is further controlled by the fact 
that the music will be inside existing buildings. 

 
7.1.4 In terms of ground contamination there is only a low risk to site users from 

contamination and it is proposed to put down a capping layer which will separate 
any contamination from people attending the event.  There are no concerns 
regarding air quality. 

  
  Canal and River Trust 
 

Page 237



7.1.5 No objections subject to conditions to ensure measures are in place to protect the 
water quality of the Lee Navigation and the ecology of the waterway corridor.  
Measures to include prevention of litter should also be in place. 

 
 Officer response: 
 Recommended conditions concerning waste management, litter and lighting have 

been imposed. 
 
 Natural England 
 
7.1.6 No objections subject to appropriate mitigation being secured to protect the Lee 

Valley SPA and associated SSSI.  Mitigation should include a waste management 
plan for the site and agreement with the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 
(LVRPA) with regards to the entry and exit through their land which is managed 
under a Higher Level Stewardship Agreement for the benefit of biodiversity.   

  
Officer Response: 
Conditions have been imposed to ensure that the special ecological value of 
sensitive adjoining areas are protected.  This includes requiring details of lighting 
associated with the use to ensure that the levels are appropriate and spill onto 
adjoining sensitive receptors is deflected. A waste management plan as well as 
site clean-up details are also required as a condition of the permission.  
 
The applicant is in the process of entering into an agreement with LVRPA which 
will provide terms for costs and any remediation of land required within the 
LVPRA’s jurisdiction.  A condition has been imposed to ensure suitable 
arrangements are in lace prior to the event with third party land owners.  

  
 
 London Borough of Haringey 
 
7.1.7 The planning permission for Tottenham Hotspur permits 8 major events per year 

and it cannot be guaranteed that the date proposed will not clash with these 
approved major events.  This has serious implications for transport capacity and 
safety in the area.  The Transport Assessment identifies that 60% of festival 
patrons would travel to Tottenham Hale Station which is expected to receive 
between 6,000 and 13,000 people travelling to a major event at Tottenham Hotspur 
Stadium.   

 
 Officer Response: 
 
 The planning representative for Tottenham Hotspur has verbally confirmed that 

there are currently no planned events at the Stadium on the date of the Field Day 
event 2019.  The capacity of Tottenham Hale is a matter for Transport for London 
to advise on and officers will update Members on their response at the meeting. 

 
 Following the initial consultation response the Transport Management Plan was 

updated with further information provided on mode share projections.  LB Haringey 
were reconsulted on the application from 25/03/19-08/04/19.  No further comments 
have been received at the time of writing the report. 

Page 238



 
7.1.8 The main pedestrian route to the festival would be through Tottenham Marshes 

which is a Site of Importance for Nature Conservation.  This will result in damage 
to the ecology of this area and is a risk for public safety. 

 
 Officer Response: 
 
 The applicant is in discussion with the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 

regarding access through their land and entering into an agreement to ensure its 
ecological value is safeguarded as detailed in para 7.1.6 above.    The route 
through the marshes will be unlit and only be possible up until 8pm.  When leaving 
the event, patrons will be directed towards Watermead Way and will not be 
permitted to leave through the marshes. 

 
The safety of the routes will be managed through the licencing procedure and 
further information on this aspect can be found in section 9 of this report and in 
particular the section entitled Pedestrian Access. 

 
7.1.9 The Festival cannot be permitted unless guarantees are in place to ensure there 

is no clash with a Tottenham Hotspur Major Event and mitigation is provided to 
protect the Ecology of the Marshes and ensure public safety. 

 
 Officer Response: 
 See section 9 and comments on Pedestrian Access for further information. 
 
 London Fire Brigade 
 
7.1.10 Insufficient information provided in relation to access and facilities for fire fighters. 
 
 Officer Response: 
 Further information was provided from the applicant in an email dated 21/03/19 in 

response to the comments from the Fire Brigade which included details of where 
the information on emergency access routes could be found within the submitted 
documentation.  The applicant also confirmed that a pump appliance can be 
facilitated access via the perimeter road on the site. 

 
 A reconsultation with all consultees was carried out from 25/03/19-08/04/19 to 

provide an opportunity for amended and additional information to be considered 
(including the aforementioned email).  No further comments have been received 
from the Fire Brigade in relation to this reconsultation.    

 
 Metropolitan Police 
 
7.1.11 No comments received. 
 
 Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 
 
7.1.12 No comments received. 
 
 SUDS officer 

Page 239



 
7.1.13 No objections. 
 
 Traffic and Transport 
 
7.1.14 No objections subject to conditions.  
 
  Environmental Health 
 
7.1.15 No objection to the application.  There is unlikely to be a negative environmental 

impact.  In particular there are no concerns regarding air quality, noise or 
contaminated land.  A comprehensive noise management plan has been provided 
that addresses all the likely noise issues.  Noise levels have been agreed that will 
control outbreak from the event both daytime and at night.  The noise levels agreed 
specifically control low frequency content of the noise spectrum as well as having 
a general noise level to meet.  Noise at night is further controlled by the fact that 
the music will be inside existing buildings. 

 
7.1.16 In terms of ground contamination it is proposed to put down a capping layer, which 

will separate any contamination from the people attending the event thereby 
ensuring there is no risk to human health. 

 
   
  Ecological Consultant  
 
7.1.17 The Ecological Consultant has advised: 
 

Bats -  Most of the buildings on site are unsuitable to host roosting bats. However, 
the applicant’s ecology report identifies a very low risk in building 9a and therefore 
further clarification has been sought on the works they are proposing to address 
this. 
 
Nesting birds – The applicants ecology report identifies that the buildings provide 
suitable habitat for nesting birds. The Council’s Ecological Consultant has also 
identified that the buildings are suitable for use by nesting Black Redstarts, one of 
the rarest breeding birds in the UK and listed on Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act. Surveys need to be undertaken to establish if there are nesting 
birds present and agree an appropriate mitigation strategy. The survey season for 
Black Redstarts is between April and July. Surveys are planned and it is anticipated 
that the first 2/3 surveys will be undertaken in advance of the Planning Committee 
meeting with an interim report available for the meeting. Officers will provide an 
update on the findings at the meeting.  
 
Lighting and litter – conditions recommended requiring details of propose lighting 
and litter clearance strategy to safeguard the adjoining river corridor.  

 
 
  
 Inland Waterway Association  
 

Page 240



7.1.18 No objections to the proposals but support the Canal and River Trust in calling for 
specific provisions for clearing litter and debris after the event, from the adjacent 
Lee Navigation.  The canal towpath is not mentioned in the options for access to 
the site, but seems likely to be heavily used by festival goers. 

 
 Officer response: 
 The provisions concerning litter and debris have been secured via planning 

condition.  Access to the event will be carefully stewarded by event staff and 
patrons will be directed towards the routes agreed through the licencing process 
in the interest of public safety.   

 
 Transport for London (TfL) 
 
7.1.19 Transport for London have been consulted on the planning application but a  

response had not been received at the time of report writing.  Comments are 
expected to be received by 17th April and officers will provide Members with their 
comments at the Meeting. 

 
   
 
7.2   Public:  
 
7.2.1  Consultation letters were sent to 50 adjoining and nearby occupiers. Site notices 

were posted on Leeside Road, Kimberley Road and Ladysmith Road and a press 
notice was published in the local paper. One email has been received from a 
resident in London Borough of Waltham Forest which included comments on both 
planning and licencing aspects of the event.  The planning related comments are 
summarised below: 

 
• Clarification requested over the potential number of people at the venue; 
• Further information requested on the steps that will be taken to mitigate 

noise nuisance and whether the response will be immediate; 
• Query over maximum noise levels and how the Council will ensure these 

limits are adhered to; 
• Waltham Forest residents should be notified of development proposals in 

the Meridian Water area given its proximity to built up residential areas in 
this borough; 

 
Officer Response: 
The clarifications requested were provided by direct reply to the resident.  
Maximum noise levels have been agreed with the Council’s Noise Officer 
through the Noise Management Plan submitted with the application.  Any noise 
complaints can be made to the Council through the usual out of hours number 
and this can be communicated to on-site officers who can check noise levels 
and liaise with the Event Liaison Team if required. 
 
As the London Borough of Waltham Forest does not directly adjoin the site 
there is no statutory requirement to send a notification of the planning 

Page 241



application.  However, the application has been advertised on site and in the 
press and is publicly available to view. 

 
8.0  Relevant Planning Policies  
 
8.1  London Plan (2016)  
 

Policy 2.14 - Areas for regeneration 
Policy 2.16 - Strategic outer London development centres 
Policy 4.1 – Developing London’s economy 
Policy 5.3 – Sustainable design and construction 
Policy 5.12 - Flood Risk Management 
Policy 5.21 - Contaminated Land 
Policy 6.3 - Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity 
Policy 6.13 – Parking 
Policy 7.15 – Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes 
Policy 7.19 – Biodiversity and access to nature 
Policy 7.21 - Trees and Woodland 

 
8.2  Core Strategy (2010) 
 

Core Policy 24 - The Road Network 
Core Policy 27 – Freight  
Core Policy 28 - Managing Flood Risk through Development 
Core Policy 29 - Flood management infrastructure 
Core Policy 31 - Built and landscape heritage 
Core Policy 32 - Pollution 
Core Policy 36 - Biodiversity 
Core Policy 37 - Central Leeside 
Core Policy 38 - Meridian Water 

 
8.3  Development Management Document (2014)  
 

DMD22 – Loss of Employment outside Designated Areas 
DMD34 – Evening Economy 
DMD47 - Access, New Roads and Servicing  
DMD48 – Transport Assessments 
DMD57 - Responsible Sourcing of Materials, Waste Minimisation and Green 

Procurement 
DMD59 - Avoiding and Reducing Flood Risk 
DMD61 - Managing Surface Water 
DMD62 – Flood Control and Mitigation Measures 
DMD63 - Protection and improvement of watercourses and flood defences 
DMD64 - Pollution control and assessment 
DMD66 - Land contamination and instability 
DMD68 – Noise 
DMD69 – Light Pollution 
DMD75 – Waterways  
DMD78 -  Nature conservation 
DMD79 - Ecological Enhancements 

Page 242



DMD80 - Trees on development sites 
DMD81 - Landscaping  
 

8.4 Draft London Plan (2018) 
 
 A draft London Plan was published on 29 November 2017 for consultation 

purposes with a deadline for consultation of 2 March 2018.  The Examination in 
Public commenced on 15th January 2019 and is currently on going. The draft plan 
is a material consideration in determining applications but is likely to carry little 
weight until after its examination.    Of relevance are: 

 
 Policy E4 Land for industry, logistics and services to support London’s economic 

function 
 Policy E7 Intensification, co-location and substitution of land for industry, logistics 

and services to support London’s economic function 
 Policy HC5 Supporting London’s culture and creative industries 
 
8.5  Other Policy 
 

National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)  
National Planning Practice Guidance 2016 (NPPG) 
Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework (July 2013) 
Edmonton Leeside Area Action Plan (Proposed Submission – January 2017) 
Meridian Water Master Plan (July 2013) 
Draft London Plan (2018) 

 
 

9.0  Analysis 
 
9.1  This report sets out an analysis of the issues that arise from the proposals in the 

light of adopted strategic and local planning policies. The main issues are 
considered as follows: 

 
• Principle of development and land use 
• Impact on adjoining occupiers and neighbouring residents including noise 
• Traffic, transport and access  
• Biodiversity and nature conservation 
• Contamination  
• Flood risk 

 
9.2 It is important to note that the site is also subject to a New Premises Licence 

Application under the Licensing Act 2003.  The considerations under the Licencing 
Act differ from those under the Planning Act and are largely related to public safety 
matters as listed below: 

 
• Prevention of crime and disorder; 
• Prevention of public nuisance; 
• Public safety; 
• Protection of children from harm. 

Page 243



 
9.3  As part of the licensing process a Safety Advisory Group (SAG) has been 

established that acts as a consultee on the licensing application.  This group 
includes representatives from Transport for London, the Metropolitan Police, the 
London Fire Brigade and Council services including Transport and Environmental 
Health. 

 
9.4 Should the event go ahead once relevant consents are in place, an Event Liaison 

Team will be established for the festival itself which will include similar 
representatives as on the SAG.  This will ensure that the event is managed safely 
and that any adjustments to the management arrangements can be made at the 
time of the event based on unforeseen impacts or events. 

 
9.5 The planning application does not and cannot duplicate the considerations of the 

Licensing Act in terms of event management and public safety.  Whilst the impacts 
on and capacity of the local and strategic highway for example is a planning 
consideration, the management of the event at the time is not a matter for the 
planning application.   

 
  
 Principle and Land Use 
 
9.6  Meridian Water is a major regeneration area within the Upper Lee Valley 

Opportunity Area as identified in the London Plan and Enfield Core Strategy.  It is 
expected to deliver up to 5000 new homes,1,500 jobs as well as a mix of other 
uses and infrastructure (CP 37 and 38).  Part of the opportunity area is designated 
as Strategic Industrial Land (SIL) which affords the highest of protection from 
change of use to non-industrial uses.  The site itself is non-designated employment 
land surrounded by a mix of industrial uses falling within B1c, B2 and B8 uses 
within an established industrial estate.  

 
   
9.7 Local Policy (DMD22) and London Plan Policy (4.4) seeks to safeguard the stock 

of industrial land.  These policies resist the loss or reduction of undesignated 
employment land unless it can be demonstrated that the site is no longer suitable 
and viable for continued employment use.  Proposals which meet these exceptions 
will only be acceptable if they do not compromise the operating conditions for other 
employment uses or the potential future of neighbouring employment sites.  
Notwithstanding these considerations, the site is also part of a wider regeneration 
area which will be comprehensively redeveloped for a mix of business and non-
business uses.  

 
9.8 The site is currently vacant and given its position within the Opportunity Area is 

considered an opportune site for temporary use whilst the longer-term regeneration 
ambitions are realised.  Temporary or meanwhile uses can animate sites, create 
jobs, attract visitors and keep sites secure from fly tipping and anti-social behaviour 
in the intervening period before development. 

 
9.9 As the proposed use of the site for the festival is for a short-term temporary period, 

it is not considered to prejudice the use of the land for future employment use or 

Page 244



for a mixed-use development including employment space that may come forward 
as part of a wider parcel of land within the Meridian Water area.   

 
9.10 The applicant has estimated that the period of setting up the event, hosting and 

vacating is anticipated to run from 24th May – 17th June.  No intrusive works are 
proposed to the buildings that would prevent them being used after the event for 
industrial purposes and all temporary facilities and structures associated with the 
event will be removed.  A condition has been imposed to ensure that the site is 
vacated and any structures and equipment are removed following the event within 
a reasonable time period. 

 
9.11 The vacant land to the south will have been capped in accordance with the 

planning approval to ensure it is suitable for the meanwhile uses proposed and 
would not pose a risk to human health.  The capping is a temporary measure to 
allow the site to be used in the intervening period prior to a more comprehensive 
redevelopment for which full remediation of the site will be required.  The works 
proposed within this application include the provision of natural grass over the 
capping layer to provide a more appropriate surface for attendees of the event.  
While this work would not be reversed, it would not preclude future use of the site 
for employment purposes and it ultimately increases the flexibility of the land for 
meanwhile uses.  

 
9.12 The adjoining warehouse buildings on the Orbital Business Park are still in active 

use.  These are largely used for storage purposes. However, there is a construction 
training facility within unit 2 and there are offices and a public access gym in units 
7 and 7a.  Whilst the festival, given its scale, will cause disruption on the weekend 
of the event, given its limited duration, it is not considered to prejudice the 
continued use of the adjoining sites for employment purposes.  Any disruption 
would be of a temporary and short-term nature and could be planned for given the 
advanced notice of the event.  Several road closures will be in place to control 
access to the event however access for business users to these adjoining 
businesses and those to the south of Leeside Road would not be disrupted and 
should they wish to continue operations at the time of the event there is nothing to 
preclude them doing so, although it is acknowledged that there will a much greater 
level of activity at the site and in surrounding areas. 

 
9.13 As stated above, the site lies within the Council’s priority regeneration area which 

is anticipated to be subject to mixed use redevelopment providing new homes and 
businesses.  The proposed temporary use of this site for the event will not prejudice 
the longer-term aspirations for the regeneration of the wider area in accordance 
with Local Plan policies CP37 and CP38. 

 
Impact on Neighbouring Occupiers 

9.14  The nearest residential units are located approximately 500m to the west of the 
site on Kimberley Road. Ikea, Tesco, Meridian Way and the railway line are 
situated between the application site and the nearest residential units. To the south 
east of the site across Banbury Reservoir lie residential properties in the borough 

Page 245



of Waltham Forest and to the south industrial premises within the London Borough 
of Haringey. 

 
9.15  The main potential impacts from the event on residents are likely to be from noise 

outbreak and general disruption from the number of people using local roads and 
public transport facilities to attend the event.   

 
9.16  A noise management plan has been submitted with the application which controls 

the level of noise outbreak from both outdoor and indoor music.  The levels have 
been agreed with the Council’s noise officer to ensure that the level of noise, whilst 
may be audible above background noise levels from residential properties 
surrounding the site, will not be of a disruptive or detrimental nature.  Different 
levels have also been agreed for daytime and night time music to take account of 
neighbouring amenity and the reduction in background noise levels. 

 
9.17 A condition has been imposed to ensure that the noise management plan 

submitted with the application is adhered to at the time of the event.  The 
management plan has also been submitted to support the licensing application.  
Should the event go ahead with both the planning permission and licence granted, 
any complaints concerning noise received by the Council’s out of hours service will 
be directed to on-site noise officers who can verify the noise levels and compliance 
with the approved noise management plan.  Council officers will be able to liaise 
with the Event Liaison Team should any breaches of noise levels take place.  With 
these controls and measures in place, the proposal is considered to have an 
acceptable impact on neighbouring residents. 

 
9.18  Given the scale of the event, with up to 25,000 patrons, there will be a marked 

increase in the use of local transport services and local roads to access the site.  
This may cause some disruption to users of these services and streets at the time 
of the main entry and exit from the event.  However, the impact will be limited in 
duration and mitigation measures including management of vehicle drop off and 
pick up and dedicated pedestrian routes with managed pedestrian flows, will 
ensure any disruption is minimised and for a temporary period is not considered to 
have significant harmful impacts. 

 
9.19 The directly adjoining businesses were notified of the planning application by letter 

of the proposals.  No responses have been received at the time of report writing.  
Whilst it is anticipated there may some short-term disruption to business operations 
within the business park this will be short-term and can be planned for given 
advance warning of the event.  There will be no ongoing prejudice to the continued 
operation of adjoining businesses as a result of the proposals. 

 
  
 Traffic, Transport and Access 

 Trip Generation 
 
9.19 The information submitted within the Transport Assessment (TA) states that the 

majority of people entering the site will be on foot and that direct vehicle 

Page 246



movements are unlikely to be significant in the context of the local strategic 
highway network.   

 
9.20 The applicant has indicated there will be a phased entry by visitors and phased 

egress albeit with 2 peaks at 22:30-00:30 and 03:00 to reflect the end of the main 
‘day’ and ‘night’ events programme.   

 
9.21 The mode share projections used to inform the TA are based on ticket sales and 

a customer survey.  On the basis of this information it is forecast that the majority 
of visitors will utilise public transport for the main part of their journey.  The 
information provided shows that this will put a strain on existing infrastructure, in 
particular Tottenham Hale Underground Station which is expected to be used by 
60% of patrons to leave the area.   

 
9.22 It is expected that the peak egress from the site will be following the end of the 

outdoor performances between 22:30-00:30.  The estimated clearance of people 
through Tottenham Hale underground station is projected between 00:15-00:30.  
25% are anticipated to use National Rail Services to leave the area.  Based on 
current timetable information it is projected that in a best-case scenario up to 
4,000 attendees could clear through Tottenham Hale on Friday 7th June and 
6,000 on Saturday 8th June up until service closures at 23:38 on the 7th and 00:17 
on the 8th.  After this time, attendees will need to enter the underground. 

 
9.23 In order to ease the strain on Tottenham Hale National Rail and Underground 

Services it is anticipated that services from the New Meridian Water Station can 
also be utilised from those attending the event.  The new station is due to open 
on May 19th and is much closer to the site than Tottenham Hale.  Based on 
provisional timetables provided by Greater Anglia services from Meridian Water 
could clear 8,500 people by 00:30 on the 7th and 7,000 by 00:30 on the 8th.  The 
applicant is also in discussion with Greater Anglia regarding the provision of a 
special festival shuttle service that would route directly to Stratford and not stop 
at Tottenham Hale.   Regular mainline services would stop at Tottenham Hale. 

 
9.24 Following the last performances within the warehouse buildings the 2nd egress 

phase would be from 03:00 when no National Rail services would be available.  
Therefore, those using public transport, estimated at 70% (3,500) of those 
attending the night time performances, would need to access London 
Underground services from Tottenham Hale.  It is anticipated that in a best-case 
scenario people from Field Day would clear through the station by 4:30am.  

 
9.25 Overall, whilst there are details to be finalised and there remains some concern 

about the impact of the event on the local transport network, particularly at 
Tottenham Hale station, this is balanced against the fact that this permission will 
relate to a single event, which is taking place over a relatively short time period 
and the extensive planning that has been undertaken to ensure that negative 
impacts are mitigated as far as possible. This includes the potential provision of a 
dedicated special shuttle service from Meridian Water and details in the 
submission which outline people management involving holding crowds and 
pulsing dispersal so as not to overcrowd the various transport nodes.    

 

Page 247



 Transport Network Disruption 
 
9.26 Temporary traffic management arrangements are proposed on a number of 

roads and at several junctions.  The details of this are being dealt with through 
the licencing process in agreement with the Council’s Highway Services Team.  
However, it is noted that these arrangements include the closure of Meridian 
Way/ Watermead Way to ensure safe pedestrian access is provided from 
Tottenham Hale to the site and to restrict private cars and drop off activity taking 
place other than in designated areas.  

 
9.27 These arrangements will have a significant impact on people using the local 

highway network so the applicant’s information campaign and signage proposed 
are welcome.  Whilst this disruption will be significant, it should be noted that it 
will mainly be during off-peak periods. 

 
 Vehicular Access 
 
9.28 The proposed vehicular access points are acceptable as they utilise existing 

accesses which are sized for the type of vehicles servicing the site.  The most 
significant volume of vehicle access will be for large vehicles during set up and 
dismantling of the event. This is of a similar magnitude to a large development so 
should not have a significant impact on the existing highway network in the area 
which is characterised by primary and secondary routes. It should also be noted 
that any disruption will be short term. 

9.29 The main private car trips will be during the event, with taxis and similar vehicles 
dropping people off.  Draft plans for this have been shared with the Council’s 
Highways Services which show this activity to be accommodated on the Ikea site.  
Whilst the final details of this will be agreed through the licensing application a 
condition has been imposed to ensure safe and convenient drop-off facilities are 
provided.  Given the remote nature of the site, this activity is considered to have 
a minimal impact on local residents.  

9.30 The applicant has also taken into consideration the needs of local businesses, 
many of which operate 24 hours a day, and it is noted that measures will be put 
in place to minimise disruption, including for the local bus garages.  These 
include managed closures involving staffed road closures/ barriers and access 
management arrangements with the affected parties to ensure access by 
operational businesses is still maintained. 

 Car Parking  
 
9.31 There is no visitor parking proposed on site and it has been confirmed that 

parking controls in local roads will not be in place for the duration of the event. 
Despite the projections of a low proportion of attendees using cars to access the 
event this does raise potential issues about overspill parking which could have a 
significant impact on the local highway network and the amenity of residents.   

Page 248



9.32 The current projections provided by the applicant based on previous events 
suggest that 5% of attendees (1,250) would use Private car/ walk or use buses to 
get to the event.  However, it is also acknowledged that previously the event has 
taken place in more central areas better served by public transport and greater 
on-street parking controls and therefore the number of those using private car to 
access the event is largely unknown on a site of this nature.  Notwithstanding 
this, given the nature of the event, and despite its less central location, it is still 
anticipated that private car use will be low. 

9.33 In order to monitor the impact of the event on local roads should future and 
potentially more regular events be proposed at the site, or further Field Day 
events be proposed annually yet in a meanwhile context, on-street parking 
surveys are required to take place (full details of which are to be agreed with the 
Council’s Highway Team) before, during and after the event.  This will inform any 
future event type meanwhile uses at the site and any necessary mitigation that 
may be required. 

 
Cycle Parking 
 

9.34  No details of cycle parking facilities have yet been provided. The applicant is 
waiting on the results of their customer survey to inform the likely demand for 
such facilities. An update will be provided at the meeting.  
 
Pedestrian access 
 

9.35 Pedestrian points of access to the site will be provided along the southern 
boundary with Tottenham Marshes and from an existing bridge over the Pymmes 
Brook accessed from Leeside Way.  The points of access are considered 
acceptable for those patrons arriving from both Tottenham Hale and Meridian 
Water Station/ local bus services and streets. 

 
9.36 An ingress/ egress plan has been submitted with the application to provide 

further information on the management of pedestrians on the selected routes 
including the provision of event staff/ stewards.  Whilst the safety of the routes 
including width, lighting and surfacing are a matter for the licencing process, the 
applicant has confirmed that the ingress will be spread over several hours and 
naturally staggered by the rate at which trains pull into Tottenham Hale and 
Meridian Water. Furthermore, the proposed routes have been walked with 
Highways, the MET Police and the chair of the SAG, to ensure that the 
responsible authorities are satisfied with the safety of these arrangements. 

 
Biodiversity and Nature Conservation  

 
9.37 The site is in close proximity to the Pymmes Brook and the River Lee Navigation 

which are important ecological corridors.  Policy DMD78 states that development 
that has a direct or indirect negative impact upon important ecological assets will 
only be permitted where the harm cannot reasonably be avoided, and it has been 
demonstrated that appropriate mitigation can address the harm caused.  

 

Page 249



9.38 The application is accompanied by an ecological report which identifies that 
building 9a has a small amount of suitable habitat for individual roosting bats.  A 
further survey is therefore required to confirm the presence or absence of bat 
roosts in the location identified.  This survey has not been completed at the time of 
writing the report but an update from the applicant is expected prior to the meeting. 
Members will be updated on the findings.  

 
9.39 The site is considered to contain potential nesting sites for Black Redstarts as this 

species tends to nest in structures or on naturally occurring ledges common to 
large industrial/ warehouse buildings.  Black Redstarts are one of the rarest 
breeding birds in the UK and as such are listed in Schedule 1 of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981.  This makes it an offence to disturb this species while 
nesting, or at or near a nest containing eggs or young or to disturb the dependent 
young of such a bird. 

 
9.40 A survey for breeding black redstarts is therefore required to be carried out to 

establish whether they are nesting in the buildings.  This survey work could not 
commence until April, the beginning of the nesting season, and as such an update 
to Members will need to be provided at the meeting.  The surveys will be 
undertaken by a licenced surveyor on behalf of the applicant and will include 4 
visits between April and May.  Two of these visits will take place prior to the 
committee meeting and an interim report will be provided to Members at this 
meeting on the findings to date. 

 
9.41 In addition to black redstarts, the buildings have the potential to be used by nesting 

birds and as such their presence will also need to be established at the same time 
as the other survey work. 

 
9.42 Given the outstanding survey work required in relation to nature conservation and 

protected species, officers are seeking delegated authority to approve the 
application following receipt of satisfactory evidence that the proposal would not 
disturb or have a negative impact on protected species or ecological assets. 

 
9.43 The site is located next to the River Lea which is a priority habitat and at this 

location is part of the SMINC.  In order to ensure that the proposal does not have 
any adverse impacts on the ecological value or character of the SMINC or of the 
ecological corridor of Pymmes Brook lighting levels will need to be carefully 
controlled.  The applicant has confirmed that deflectors will be used to avoid light 
spillage onto these sensitive areas and a condition has been imposed to require 
full details of the position, lux levels and deflectors of the lights used for the event. 

 
9.44 The adjoining watercourses are also at risk of microplastic pollution and pollution 

from litter and waste.  In order to reduce the risks of this a condition has been 
imposed to require a waste minimisation strategy is provided and adhered to as 
well as a clean up operation which includes the adjoining waterways. 

 
Contamination 
 

9.45 The site is subject to contamination which poses a potential risk to human health.  
A condition has been imposed to ensure the previously approved capping material 

Page 250



be installed prior to the use of the site for the event.  This provides an interim 
solution to allow for the short term meanwhile use of the site without impacting on 
human health. The full remediation of the site would be undertaken as part of the 
longer-term redevelopment of the site. 

 
9.46 The Council’s contaminated land officer has confirmed that the approved capping 

material would be sufficient to protect human health and ensure no source pathway 
receptor linkages. 

 
9.47 The EA have been consulted and have raised no objections to the use of the site 

for the intended purpose subject to conditions to ensure source pathways are not 
introduced by temporary structures and their fixings.   

 
9.48 With the attachment of the suggested conditions, the proposal would be in 

accordance with Policy DMD64 of the Development Management Documents 
which sets out that planning permission will only be permitted if pollution and the 
risk of pollution is prevented, or minimised and mitigated during all phases of 
development.  

 
 

Flood Risk and SuDS 
 
9.49 Policy DMD59 states that new development must avoid and reduce the risk of 

flooding, and not increase the risk elsewhere. Policy DMD61 states that a Drainage 
Strategy will be required for all development to demonstrate how proposed 
measures manage surface water as close to its source as possible and follow the 
drainage hierarchy in the London Plan. 

 
9.50  The application site falls within Flood Zones 2 and 3 and is therefore considered 

to have a high to medium probability of flooding. The site is also at risk of surface 
water flooding.  

 
9.51 The site currently consists of made ground. However, as previously outlined, the 

land will be capped prior to the event to ensure existing contaminants do not pose 
a risk to human health. The approved capping material would be free draining with 
infiltration characteristics similar to or more permeable than the existing made 
ground on the site. These details were considered as part of application where it 
was demonstrated that surface water run-off would continue to infiltrate into the 
ground with no uplift in the rates of storm water runoff. The supporting information 
also stated that even during the most severe event modelled, the proportion of the 
capped area that could be inundated is very small and maximum flood depths 
would be shallow.  

 
9.52 This application includes the provision for natural turf to be provided above the 

capping material to make the use of the site more amenable to visitors.  This will 
not impact on the drainage properties discussed above and will not increase 
surface flooding at the site. 

 
9.53 The Environment Agency were consulted on the scheme and raised no concerns 

in terms of flood risk. The EA acknowledged that a flood risk activity permit will be 

Page 251



required for any proposed works in, under, over or within 8 metres of the top of the 
bank of the River Lee.  

 
9.54 A Flood Evacuation Plan has been submitted with the application in 

acknowledgement that the proposed use of the site is more vulnerable to the 
impacts of flooding.  This plan demonstrates that suitable evacuation routes across 
the Pymmes Brook exist and would be accessible in the event of a flood.  Free 
access between the buildings and the field would ensure attendees in the buildings 
could safely exit the buildings and access the flood evacuation routes across the 
Brook.   Meridian Water station is the main destination for people evacuating the 
site but other options for dispersal exist should this be subject to the same flood 
event and this would be managed by event stewards. 

 
 
10.0  Conclusion 
 
10.1. The use of the site for the purposes proposed will not undermine the longer-term 

regeneration proposals for the area and in the meantime will provide a beneficial use 
of the site. It is recognised that the use could have some short-term disruptive 
impacts on the local area. These are to be managed and mitigated through the 
planning conditions recommended. Members are reminded that a Premises License 
Application has also been submitted and this will deal with issues largely related to 
public safety.    Accordingly, it is considered that the use of the site for the Field Day 
event can be supported. 

 
 10.2 There remain a number of outstanding issues that have not been completely 

resolved at the time of report writing - the ecological surveys need to be completed 
to inform any mitigation measures that might be required and further information is 
needed on the proposals for cycle parking at the event. In addition, discussions are 
on-going with the applicant and the statutory consultees regarding the precise 
wording of conditions as required by legislation and guidance, which may 
necessitate minor changes to those presently drafted. Given this, Members are 
asked to grant delegated authority to the Head of Development 
Management/Planning Decisions Manager to grant planning permission subject to 
conditions largely as drafted in Section 1 of this report, with the authority to add 
any additional planning conditions necessary to secure appropriate mitigation 
arising from the ecological surveys, as well as make any minor amendments to the 
wording of the conditions following completion of the on-going discussions.  

 
 
 

Page 252



Grass Grass

Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 17Page 259



This page is intentionally left blank



Broadwick Venues Limited 

Meridian Water, Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon Road, 
Edmonton, London, N18 3BW; and 

Land to the South of Units 4, 5, 6, 6a&b, Orbital Business Park, 5 Argon 
Road, Edmonton, London, N18 3BW 

8th May 2019 

___________________________________ 

Index  
___________________________________ 

Tab Documents Page No. 

1. Philip Kolvin QC Submissions 1-10

2. Schedule of Conditions 11-16

3. Witness Statement of James Dutton 17-19

4. Layout Plan 20 

5. Transport Management Plan 21-97

6. Noise Management Plan 98-137

7. Emergency Evacuation Plan 138-169

8. Photographs of Field Day Festival 170-184

Annex 18Page 261



 

Page 262



Annex 19Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



Page 391



Page 392



Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



Page 405



Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



Page 413



Page 414



Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



Page 439



Page 440



Page 441



Page 442



Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Page 452



Page 453



Page 454



Annex 20a 
  
Dear Madam 
  
Meridian Water Applications (recently renamed “Drumsheds” and “Festival” 
Licence applications) 
Hearing:  8 May 2019 
   
Further information relating to THFC’s Representations, for inclusion in 
Agenda Papers: 
 
 
Further to our clients’ considerable Representations against the issue of the 
applications sought by the Applicant (relating to land owned by Enfield Council) 
relating to the meanwhile use of the Units and Land at Meridian Water (pre-
development), we now provide some further information in support of those 
Representations for inclusion in the Agenda papers.  
  
Please note that as at today’s date, we have received no further specifics from the 
Applicants relating to their licensing applications (including no further information 
relating to the brief Operating Schedules contained in their LIC 2 application forms), 
although we note that the Applicants continue to advertise their “Field Day 2019” 
Event as though its Premises Licence has already been granted (see copy 
photographs taken in Enfield High St this last weekend).  This “ploughing on 
regardless” attitude of the Applicants continues to demonstrate  (in our view) that 
they have little or no regard for the serious concerns  of the objectors or indeed for 
the role of the Licensing Committee members (in carrying out its duty under section 
4(1) of the 2003 Act).  
  
Accordingly our clients maintain their full objections to the issue of the new Licences, 
as they have genuine concerns that all four licensing objectives will be seriously 
compromised if the Applicants are permitted to conduct licensable activities at the 
proposed venue when Events (which are already licensed) will already be taking 
place at the Stadium.   

  
THFC Stadium Events: 
In relation to Tottenham Hotspur Stadium Events – in very broad terms – during 
every calendar year – the Stadium will be used for the following “Major Events” i.e. 
events in the Stadium bowl which will involve between 10,000 and 62,000 
spectators: 
  

1. In the 10 months of the football season (so mid-July to mid-May): 

a. Pre-season matches/international tournaments at home during July 
and August; 

b. Premier League home matches will be held mid-August to early May   
c. FA Cup home matches; 
d. Carabao Cup home matches; 
e. UEFA Champions League and/or Europa League home matches. 

  

Page 455



How many home matches are held during a season of course depends on 
how well the team is playing/how far in the particular competition it succeeds 
and/or the fixtures list, but typically, looking at the team’s performance over 
the last 3 years, an estimate of 30 matches per season at home is entirely 
realistic (see attached fixtures list for 2017/2018 by way of example). 
 
It is of fundamental importance to appreciate that THFC is obligated to honour 
its contractual obligations with the Premier League/Sky/BT etc… and thus its 
obligations are “set in stone” during the football season.  
  

2. Additional sporting events – so for example for 2019/20 (and for a number 
of future years) - various rugby fixtures will be played at the Stadium 
(involving Saracens and other clubs).  Rugby events will take place (in all 
likelihood) in the international breaks of the club football season (e.g. 
November and/or March of each year) or during the football off-season (e.g. 
May/June).  

3. For NFL Games – the Club is contracted to host a minimum of two games for 
the next ten years with the first two games recently announced for 6 and 13 
October; it is possible that up to 8 NFL games per season will be played in 
future years.  This agreement will last for a minimum of a further 9 years. 
  

4. Other non-football association major Events – a total of 16 is permitted per 
annum (inclusive of 6 music concert events).   
  

5. Music Concert Events – The Stadium is licensed (and has planning 
permission) to hold up to 6 music concerts in the “Bowl” per annum.   These 
concerts will (in all likelihood) take place in the period from late May (from 
around 20th onwards) up to (and possibly including) the first weekend in July, 
each year.  Although the aim is usually for concerts to be held at the 
weekend,  they may be held during the week – much depends on the 
availability of the particular performer. 

  
Further, as the Stadium offers one of the most advanced facilities of its kind in the 
World, it comprises part of the UK’s nationally-important sports infrastructure and will 
consequently be a candidate host stadium for a whole variety of international 
sporting events in future years some for which it has already bid for, and could 
include UEFA Club Competition Finals, European Club Rugby Finals, International 
Rugby World Cup Finals, Global eSports Finals as well as the major events such as 
the Summer Olympics, FIFA World Cup and UEFA European Championships etc…  
  
2019/2020 and Beyond: 
Thus looking at the attached calendar (for 2019/2020)  (providing the broad “picture” 
only)  – it is clearly obvious that the Stadium (through its existing authorisations 
including under its existing Premises Licence (granted in 2018)) will be operational to 
a high degree in terms of Events – leaving only a very small “window” – probably in 
mid-July each year (when the pitch is being renovated) – when it is possible (but not 
certain) that a Major Event in the Stadium Bowl will not be happening.    When 
printing the attached calendar, please ensure that it is printed in colour so that it 
makes sense. 

Page 456



  
Summer Events at the Stadium in 2020: 
By way of additional information, our clients have confirmed that for each weekend 
between Saturday 23 May 2020 and 27 June 2020,  music concerts (or other non-
football Events) are already booked (in the sense that commercial agreements have 
been made) and in all likelihood, the HOTs and final contracts for those Events will 
be finalised imminently.  Indeed for the weekend of 6th and 13 June 2020, in the 
unlikely event that the commercial agreement with the “first pencil” Event is not 
finalised, THFC already has two music concerts in reserve.  It is therefore beyond 
doubt that if the Applicants were permitted to conduct licensable activities at the 
proposed venue on the same day that the concerts at the Stadium were taking place, 
the transport infrastructure would not be able to accommodate the Meridian Water 
crowd on top of the existing Stadium’s audience of c 55,000.        
  
Park Lane Square: 
Further, the Committee should be reminded that the 62,000 capacity Stadium is not 
the only licensed venue within the newly developed Tottenham 
Hotspur/Northumberland Park Regeneration.  Park Lane Square – a large area of 
open space in front of the south side of the Stadium – is already fully licensed (under 
the Licensing Act 2003) authorising “Major” Events (and other licensed occasions) 
under Premises Licence LN/000020260 (issued in June 2018), permitting large 
capacity audiences.  
  
Additional information: 
We also consider the attached letter from THFC (Richard Serra, Head of Planning) in 
relation to the recent application for planning consent for the use of the Units/Land of 
18 April 2019, to be of relevance to the Applicant’s applications and our clients’ 
Representations.  
 
This letter contains relevant information in opposition to the licensing applications 
(under the LA 2003) and we consider provides a very useful and clear analysis of the 
issues relevant to the Licensing Objectives in the context of the Applicant’s 
applications (both under the Planning regime but also under the Licensing regime 
under the 2003 Act).  

  
We would be grateful therefore if this email and the attachments can be 
included in the Agenda Papers, along with our client’s detailed Representation 
of 12 April 2019 with Appendices, (and its earlier representation of 23 January 
2019) ready for the Hearing on 8 May. 
  
Representation at the Hearing next week: 
We confirm that our clients have instructed Gerald Gourier QC to represent them at 
the Hearing on 8 May; it is still anticipated that Mr Serra and Mr Thorpe will be 
present to answer questions and/or to elaborate on any details contains in THFC’s 
Representations (including on the information provided in this email and the 
attachments to it). 
 
Kindly confirm safe receipt of the above and the three attachments. 
  
Yours sincerely   

Page 457



Sue Dowling 
Partner  
Employment; Business Immigration; Venue Licensing  
For and on behalf of Blandy & Blandy LLP 
D:  0118 951 6822  |  T: 0118 951 6927|  W: www.blandy.co.uk 

 
 
Please Note:  Since drafting this email, we have received an email (with 
attachments) from the Applicants’ solicitors this afternoon; the above may 
therefore be subject to change once we have had the opportunity to consider 
the information provided. 
 

Page 458

www.blandy.co.uk
https://www.linkedin.com/company/blandy-&-blandy-llp
https://twitter.com/BlandyBlandyLLP


July 2019 - June 2020 

July 2019 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31 

August 2019 

No. S M T W T F S 

31 1 2 3 

32 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

33 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

34 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

35 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

September 2019 

No. S M T W T F S 

36 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

37 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

38 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

39 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

40 29 30 

October 2019 

No. S M T W T F 

40 1 2 3 4 

41 6 7 8 9 10 11 

42 13 14 15 16 17 18 

43 20 21 22 23 24 25 

44 27 28 29 30 31 

November 2019 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

December 2019 

No. S M T W T F S 

49 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

50 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

51 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

52 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

1 29 30 31 

January 2020 

No. S M T W T F S 

1 1 2 3 4 

2 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

3 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

4 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

5 26 27 28 29 30 31 

February 2020 

No. S M T W T F 

5 

6 2 3 4 5 6 7 

7 9 10 11 12 13 14 

8 16 17 18 19 20 21 

9 23 24 25 26 27 28 

March 2020 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

April 2020 

No. S M T W T F S 

14 1 2 3 4 

15 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

16 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

17 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

18 26 27 28 29 30 

May 2020 

No. S M T W T F S 

18 1 2 

19 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

20 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

21 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

22 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

23 31 

June 2020 

No. S M T W T F 

23 1 2 3 4 5 

24 7 8 9 10 11 12 

25 14 15 16 17 18 19 

26 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 

CalendarVIP.com 

Key: 

Football Season (including Rugby) 

Music (and other Events) 

NFL 

Annex 20bPage 459

http://www.calendarvip.com/july-2019-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/august-2019-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/september-2019-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/october-2019-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/november-2019-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/december-2019-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/january-2020-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/february-2020-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/march-2020-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/april-2020-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/may-2020-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/june-2020-calendar.html
http://www.calendarvip.com/


This page is intentionally left blank



Ms	Josleen	Ray	
Principal	Planning	Officer	(Strategic	Projects)	
Development	Management	
Regeneration	&	Environment	Department	
Enfield	Council	
Silver	Street	
EN1	3XE	

18	April	2019	

By	email	

Dear	Ms	Ray	

Application	by	Broadwick	Ventures	Limited	Ref:	19/00632/FUL	
Meridian	Works,	Units	4,	5,	6,	9	And	9A	And	Adjacent	Land	At	Orbital	Business	Park	5	Argon	Road	
Edmonton	N18	3BW	

This	letter	comprises	representations	by	Tottenham	Hotspur	Football	&	Athletic	Co.	Ltd.	(“the	Club”)	
in	respect	of	the	above	planning	application.		The	Club	has	separately	made	representations	(via	its	
licensing	 solicitors,	 Blandy	 &	 Blandy)	 in	 respect	 of	 three	 related	 licence	 applications	 and	 will	 be	
appearing	at	the	forthcoming	Hearing	on	8	May	2019.	

The	Club	notes	that	whereas	the	licence	applications	relate	to	repeated	use	of	the	application	site,	the	
planning	application	relates	specifically	to	the	Field	Day	2019	music	festival	on	7-9	June	2019.		These	
representations	are	differentiated	accordingly.	

Context	of	Representations	

The	Club	has	recently	opened	the	Tottenham	Hotspur	Stadium	–	the	centrepiece	and	second	phase	of	
a	£1bn	Northumberland	Development	Project	(“NDP”)	investment	in	north	Tottenham	on	the	site	it	
has	occupied	since	1899.	

The	new	stadium	is	only	1.5km	from	the	application	site.	

In	addition	to	the	new	stadium,	the	Club	has	already	completed	a	7,500m2	Sainsbury’s	store	and	the	
London	Academy	of	Excellence	Tottenham	(an	academically	selective	16-19	free	school	sponsored	by	
the	Club	and	leading	independent	schools	including	Highgate	School).			

The	Club	has	so	far	created	over	2,500	jobs	(FTE)	through	its	investment	in	north	Tottenham	and	will	
shortly	be	commencing	 the	third	phase	of	NDP	comprising	a	180	bed	hotel;	extreme/urban	sports	
hub;	585	homes;	community	health	facility;	and	3,500m2	of	commercial/community	space.	

The	NDP	benefits	from	a	site-specific	allocation	(NT7)	in	the	adopted	Tottenham	Area	Action	Plan	and	
is	 also	 the	 catalyst	 for	 the	 regeneration	 of	 the	 adjoining	 NT3	 (Northumberland	 Park	 North);	 NT4	
(Northumberland	 Park);	 and	 NT5	 (High	 Road	West),	 upon	 which	 rests	 the	 cumulative	 delivery	 of	
approximately	4,200	new	homes;	10,200m2	of	commercial/industrial	uses;	21,100m2	of	town	centre	
uses.		The	new	stadium	is	therefore	inextricably	linked	with	the	regeneration	of	the	area	around	it,	
which	still	includes	one	of	the	most	deprived	Wards	in	London	(Northumberland	Park).	

Annex 20cPage 461



The	62,000	seat	new	stadium	has	been	designed	primarily	as	the	Club’s	new	home,	but	also	as	a	multi-
use	venue	in	order	to	bring	year	round	activity	and	inward	investment	to	the	area.		The	TAAP	states	
at	2.37:	
	

“In	 North	 Tottenham,	 there	 is	 a	 need	 to	 realise	 the	 investment	 being	 made	 by	
Tottenham	Hotspur	FC	on	their	stadium	site	as	a	catalyst	for	wider	change,	ensuring	
this	area	becomes	a	hub	of	activity	throughout	the	week	and	not	just	on	matchdays.		
This	can	be	achieved	by	establishing	the	location	as	a	premier	leisure	destination	for	
London…”	

The	 stadium	 therefore	 benefits	 from	 a	 planning	 permission	 and	 premises	 licence	 that	 allows	 for	
unlimited	football	matches;	up	to	six	concerts;	and	up	to	ten	non-concert	major	events	(a	major	event	
being	10,000	spectators	or	more	for	the	purposes	of	the	stadium	planning	permission).	
	
The	Club	is	a	founding	and	ever-present	member	of	the	English	Premier	League	since	its	formation	in	
1992/93.		The	Premier	League	is	currently	broadcast	to	4.7bn	people	across	212	territories	and	the	
Club’s	 presence	 therefore	 provides	 the	 wider	 area	 of	 Tottenham	 with	 a	 truly	 global	 profile	 and	
showcase	for	inward	investment.			
	
The	Club’s	progress	this	season	to	the	semi-final	stages	of	the	UEFA	Champion’s	League	will	mean	that	
on	30	April,	the	new	stadium	will	host	one	of	the	highest	profile	club	football	matches	ever	staged	in	
London.	
	
Television	 broadcast	 and	 competition	 requirements	 are	 now	 such	 that	 the	 Club	 may	 be	 playing	
competitive	 first	 team	 fixtures	 on	 any	 of	 the	 seven	 days	 during	 a	week	 throughout	 the	 domestic	
season	(typically	from	the	second	week	in	August	through	to	the	second	week	in	May	the	following	
calendar	 year).	 	 This	 excludes	 the	pre-season	warm-up	games	 that	normally	 take	place	 in	 the	 last	
couple	of	weeks	of	July.	
	
The	Club	also	holds	a	ten-year	contract	with	the	NFL	to	stage	a	minimum	of	two	NFL	regular	season	
American	football	games	each	year.		On	17	April	(yesterday),	the	Club	and	the	NFL	announced	the	first	
two	games	at	the	new	stadium:	Chicago	Bears	at	Oakland	Raiders	on	Sunday	6	October	and	Carolina	
Panthers	at	Tampa	Bay	Buccaneers	a	week	later	on	Sunday	13	October.	

Furthermore,	the	Club	is	also	currently	contracted	to	host	a	number	of	concerts	and	other	non-concert	
major	events	from	23	May	to	27	June	2020.		By	virtue	of	the	stadium	planning	permission	and	premises	
licence	and	subject	to	the	granting	of	an	annual	safety	certificate,	the	Club	is	therefore	at	liberty	to	
host	all	of	these	events	and	indeed	will	be	doing	so	with	full	planning	policy	support.	

Nevertheless,	 as	 a	 nearby	 regeneration	 area	 that	 will	 both	 benefit	 from	 and	 underpin	 the	 Club’s	
investment	in	north	Tottenham,	the	Club	supports	Meridian	Water	in	principle	and	Enfield	Council’s	
efforts	to	attract	new	investment	to	the	area.		The	Club	also	recognises	that	meanwhile	uses	can	be	
an	effective	means	of	raising	the	profile	of	an	area	ahead	of	permanent	redevelopment.	

Representations	

The	Club	has	been	working	with	its	local	authority	and	transport	partners	(which	include	both	Haringey	
Enfield	 Councils;	 Transport	 for	 London;	 Arriva	 Rail	 Limited;	 Abellio	Greater	 Anglia;	 and	 the	 British	
Transport	Police)	to	devise	and	then	implement	a	stadium	transport	strategy	that	will	allow	the	full	
capacity	events	at	the	new	stadium	to	be	staged	on	both	weeknights	and	weekends.			

	

Page 462



That	strategy	has	been	successfully	tested	through	two	test	events	on	24	and	30	March	and	three	
subsequent,	 full	capacity	 football	matches	on	3,	9	and	13	April	2019.	 	The	games	on	3	and	9	April	
(Crystal	Palace	and	Manchester	City)	were	19:45	and	20:00	kick-offs	respectively.	 	The	Club	and	its	
transport	partners	now	have	a	good	understanding	of	the	impact	of	forward	and	return	traffic	on	the	
local	area	and	the	four	stations	during	both	weeknight	and	weekend	scenarios.	

The	new	stadium	transport	strategy	is	based	upon	extensive	and	validated	travel	demand	forecasting	
and	survey	information	over	ten	years.		In	addition	to	optimising	the	use	of	the	four	stations	serving	
the	new	stadium	(Seven	Sisters,	Tottenham	Hale,	White	Hart	Lane	and	Northumberland	Park),	 the	
strategy	 utilises	 a	 range	 of	 additional	 Club-sponsored	 transport	 services	 such	 as	 shuttle	 buses	 to	
Tottenham	Hale,	Wood	Green	and	Alexandra	Palace	stations;	as	well	as	a	raft	of	mitigation	measures,	
including	extensive	fan	and	background	user	travel	demand	management	(in	conjunction	with	TfL);	
strategic	 and	 local	 traffic	 diversions;	 extensive	Major	 Event	Day	CPZ;	 and	attraction	and	 retention	
measures	within	the	stadium	itself.	

Whilst	 the	 strategy	 makes	 full	 use	 of	 recently	 upgraded	 Victoria	 line;	 Piccadilly	 line;	 London	
Overground;	Abellio	Greater	Anglia;	and	Great	Northern	services,	there	is	only	finite	public	transport	
capacity	available.		That	capacity	will	not	increase	until	redevelopment	works	at	White	Hart	Lane	and	
Tottenham	Hale	stations	have	been	completed;	new	higher	capacity	rolling	stock	has	been	introduced	
on	 the	 London	Overground	 line;	 and	 the	West	 Anglia	Mainline	 STAR	 project	 facilitates	 additional	
stopping	services	at	Northumberland	Park	and	Meridian	Water	stations.	

It	is	abundantly	clear	that	there	is	insufficient	public	transport	capacity	to	facilitate	an	event	with	
25,000	patrons	at	the	application	site	at	the	same	time	as	a	full	bowl	event	is	taking	place	at	the	
new	Tottenham	Hotspur	Stadium.		Furthermore,	that	position	will	not	change	post	the	completion	
of	all	of	the	public	transport	improvements	listed	above.		

As	correctly	stated	in	the	Committee	report,	the	Club	does	not	currently	have	any	major	events	(i.e.	
over	10,000	spectators)	scheduled	for	the	7	to	9	June	2019	coinciding	with	the	Field	Day	2019	music	
festival.			

However,	even	absent	any	major	events	at	the	new	stadium,	it	is	not	clear	from	the	application	how	
the	 applicant	 can	 cater	 for	 25,000	 patrons	 –	 particularly	 in	 the	 return	 traffic	 given	 the	 proposed	
finishing	times	of	the	event.		Specifically:	

• Access	to	the	platforms	at	Meridian	Water	station	will	need	careful	management	to	avoid	over-
crowding.	There	will	need	to	be	a	queue	location	reservoir	for	the	station	which	does	not	
interfere	with	the	onward	route	towards	Tottenham	Hale	LUL	station.	
	

• The	vast	majority	of	the	attendees	will	wish	to	travel	southbound	from	Meridian	Water	station	
and	westbound	from	Tottenham	Hale	station.		The	last	scheduled	southbound	train	from	
Meridian	Water	to	London	Liverpool	Street	leaves	at	00.17	on	Sunday	morning.		This	is	a	
Stansted	Express	service	which	is	likely	to	be	busy	with	background	users.		The	last	scheduled	
southbound	train	from	Meridian	Water	to	Stratford	leaves	at	22.56	on	the	Saturday	evening.		
Abellio	Greater	Anglia	will	need	to	provide	a	large	number	of	additional	train	services.	

	
• Tottenham	Hale	LUL	station	is	a	30	minute	walk	from	the	concert	venue	ignoring	the	time	taken	

to	egress	the	concert	site	itself.		With	a	22:30	finish,	no	attendees	would	reach	Tottenham	Hale	
before	23:00.		The	train	frequency	for	the	Saturday	night	event	is	14	trains	from	23:00	to	
midnight;	9	trains	from	midnight	to	01:00;	and	then	6	trains	per	hour	throughout	the	night,	i.e.	

Page 463



night	train	services.		The	combined	AGA	and	LUL	train	frequency	towards	Central	London	would	
need	to	increase	from	35	services	to	some	60-65	services	between	23:00	and	01:00.	

	
• The	ingress	capacity	at	Tottenham	Hale	is	restricted	by	the	LUL	construction	site	hoardings,	the	

current	temporary	LUL	station	access	and	the	station	vertical	circulation	(an	escalator	and	
central	stair).	The	platform	access	capacity	is	some	150	passengers	per	minute.	On	occasions	this	
ingress	capacity	will	be	required	for	interchange	from	AGA	trains	towards	the	Victoria	Line.	

	
• The	LUL	train	frequency	will	need	considerable	enhancement	from	23:00	onwards.	At	20	trains	

per	hour	only	450	passengers	could	board	each	train.	

The	Club	therefore	shares	officers’	concerns	(Committee	report	paras.	9.21)	that:		

“…the	strain	on	existing	infrastructure,	in	particular	on	Tottenham	Hale	Underground	
Station,	which	is	expected	to	be	used	by	60%	of	patrons	to	leave	the	area.”	

The	Committee	report	concludes	in	respect	of	transport	at	9.25	that:	

“Overall,	whilst	there	are	details	to	be	finalised	and	there	remains	some	concern	about	
the	impact	of	the	event	on	the	local	transport	network,	particularly	at	Tottenham	Hale	
Station,	 this	 is	balanced	against	 the	 fact	 that	 this	permission	will	 relate	 to	a	single	
event,	 which	 is	 taking	 place	 over	 a	 relatively	 short	 time	 period	 and	 the	 extensive	
planning	that	has	been	undertaken	to	ensure	that	negative	impacts	are	mitigated	as	
far	as	possible.”	

In	 the	absence	of	key	 timetabling/service	 information	 to	confirm	that	sufficient	public	 transport	
capacity	 exists	 and	 crucially,	 in	 the	 absence	 of	 express	 support	 from	 Transport	 for	 London;	 the	
British	Transport	Police;	and	 the	Metropolitan	Police,	 the	Club	 cannot	 share	 this	 conclusion	and	
must	therefore	object	to	the	application.	

The	Club	would	ordinarily	wish	to	make	representations	in	good	time,	but	notes	that	despite	being	
the	operator	of	a	62,000	capacity	stadium	a	mile	away	from	the	application	site,	was	not	originally	
notified	of	the	application	and	did	not	become	aware	of	it	until	the	end	of	March.		We	trust	therefore	
that	Planning	Committee	will	still	give	due	consideration	to	these	representations.	
	
Yours	faithfully	

	
	
	

Richard	Serra	MRICS	MRTPI		
Head	of	Planning	
	
	
Mr	Vincent	Lacovara	–	Head	of	Planning,	Enfield	Council	
Mr	Peter	George	–	Programme	Director	(Meridian	Water),	Enfield	Council	
	
Tottenham Hotspur Football & 
Athletic Co Ltd 
Lilywhite House, 782 High Road,  
Tottenham, London N17 OBX 
Registered Number: 57186 England 

Telephone: +44 (0)344 499 5000 
Facsimile:   +44 (0)20 8365 5175 
tottenhamhotspur.com 

	

Page 464



Annex 20d 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 465



This page is intentionally left blank



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 789 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 13 MARCH 2019 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT (Chair) George Savva MBE, Anne Brown and Maria 

Alexandrou 
 
ABSENT  

 
OFFICERS: Ellie Green (Principal Licensing Officer), Charlotte Palmer 

(Senior Licensing Enforcement Officer), Antonia Makanjuola 
(Legal Services Representative), Jane Creer (Democratic 
Services) 

  
Also Attending: Mr Michael Kirby (Designated Premises Supervisor), Ms 

Karen Cochrane (Flint Bishop Solicitors) and representative of 
Star Pubs and Bars Ltd - on behalf of the applicant 
Mr and Mrs Nolan - Interested Parties (IP2) 
 

 
1009   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 
Councillor Savva as Chair welcomed all those present and explained the 
order of the meeting. 
 
 
1010   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
1011   
HOP POLES PUBLIC HOUSE, 320 BAKER STREET, ENFIELD, EN1 3LH  
(REPORT NO 201)  
 
 
RECEIVED the application made by Star Pubs & Bars Limited for the 
premises situated at The Hop Poles Public House, 320 Baker Street, Enfield, 
EN1 3LH for a Variation of a Premises Licence (LN/200502201). 
 
NOTED 
 

Page 467 Agenda Item 5



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 790 - 

1. The introductory statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, 
including: 
a. The application was for variation of a premises licence held by Star 

Pubs & Bars Ltd for the Hop Poles public house. 
b. The pub was located in a mixed commercial parade on a busy road 

and with surrounding residential properties. 
c. The pub had been operating since before 2005. 
d. The application sought extension of hours for licensable activities until 

02:00 latest at weekends: this would be an extra two hours for alcohol 
sales and music, and an additional one hour during the week. This 
would equate to a reduction in part as the pub was currently able to 
open 24 hours a day. 

e. A number of representations had been received: from the Police, the 
Licensing Authority and three others referred to as IP1 to IP3, who 
were local residents. There was also a representation in support 
received from IP4, who was also a local resident. 

f. The parties had not been able to reach agreement on all conditions or 
hours sought. 

g. Mediation had continued between the applicant and the Licensing 
Authority and the Police, and details of the hours sought were set out 
on page 1 of the supplementary agenda pack. 

h. The Responsible Authorities made representation on Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder; Protection of Children from Harm; and Prevention 
of Public Nuisance. The residents making representation against the 
application objected to it in its entirety, as set out in Annexes 5 to 7. 

i. The representation in support was set out in Annex 8. 
j. The Licensing Authority had received more representations, but these 

had either been invalid or out of time or no further information brought 
forward, but they had still been brought to the attention of the applicant 
for information. 

k. The final list of conditions agreed were set out in the supplementary 
agenda pack. Conditions 1 to 16 were agreed by all parties. Conditions 
17 to 22 were not yet agreed, in addition to consideration of the final 
hours. 

l. Representatives of the Police sent apologies they were unable to 
attend the hearing, but had nothing further to add to the written 
representations. 

m. IP1, IP3 and IP4 were not in attendance, but equal consideration 
should be given to representations in writing or provided orally today. 

 
2. The statement of Charlotte Palmer, Licensing Enforcement Officer, 

including: 
a. She was pleased to see some conditions agreed, and times specified. 
b. The Licensing Authority agreed to the start times, but recommended a 

terminal hour of 01:00 rather than 02:00. 
c. This premises was not located in a town centre. There were many 

residential properties in the surrounding area. Operating until 02:00 
may be detrimental to local residents: there were concerns they could 

Page 468



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 791 - 

be disturbed by people leaving and arriving at a time when ambient 
noise levels were generally lower. If the pub was open later it was also 
likely it may attract more customers. 

d. Introduction of door supervisors was welcomed, but they would only be 
able to control people immediately outside the pub and not in nearby 
residential streets. 

e. Residents could be affected by music at this venue, especially during 
warmer months of the year. There were concerns about noise escaping 
from the pub. Officer observations had shown that loud music was 
audible outside, from the pub if not the function room, but there was 
potential for noise escape from older windows and from the door. 
Reminders had been given about the need for sound checks, but there 
had been no evidence this was done during the inspection. Officers 
had not yet followed up this inspection as many conditions were being 
amended, but there would be a re-inspection in due course. Concerns 
about lack of compliance with the licence had lowered officers’ 
confidence in those managing the pub. 

f. Condition 8 in respect of operation of music equipment was included on 
the current licence, but was not being offered now. The applicant was 
not willing to accept the request for a noise limiter at this stage. The 
Licensing Authority believed that noise concerns could be mitigated by 
suggested additional conditions 19 to 22 in the supplementary agenda 
pack. 

g. On the advice of the Enforcement Team, the applicant submitted a 
number of Temporary Event Notices (TENs) towards the end of 2018 to 
temporarily extend hours, but it was noted that any live music events 
held during the period ended at 00:00, so had not provided any 
evidence to assist in making an informed decision. That there had been 
no complaints from local residents during that time was not meaningful. 

h. In respect of the age verification condition, officers considered this was 
now covered by the mandatory condition. The Council promoted ‘Think 
25’, but the pub would be able to use ‘Think 21’ instead, though officers 
considered their suggested condition to be more suitable. 

i. The Licensing Authority continued to object to a terminal hour of 02:00 
on Friday and Saturday, and recommended 01:00. 

j. If extended hours were granted, the Licensing Authority would also 
recommend the last entry time to be amended to one hour prior to 
closing. 

 
3. Charlotte Palmer on behalf of the Licensing Authority responded to 

questions including the following: 
a. In response to the Chair’s queries regarding the starting hours for 

licensable activities sought by the Licensing Authority, it was advised 
that the pub currently had permission for 24 hour opening from the old 
legislation. The Licensing Authority would like hours to be specified, but 
the main issue was the terminal hour late at night. It was also 
confirmed that the previous licence holder had applied for a reduced 

Page 469



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 792 - 

terminal hour as they had not wanted to employ door staff, and that this 
had not been as a result of a licence review. 
 

4. The statement of Mr and Mrs Nolan, IP2, including: 
a. They lived in Canonbury Road, within sight and earshot of the Hop 

Poles pub. This application for live music until 02:00 and closing time of 
02:30 in the residential area was completely unacceptable. 

b. The pub was a very old building with no double glazing, and noise 
could escape. 

c. At the moment, no one patrolled outside to check sound levels. 
d. Customers loitered outside the pub smoking and drinking and this 

created a noise nuisance. 
e. Residents did not believe that anything would change in the way the 

pub operated, but that things would get worse as the hours would be 
longer. 

 
5. The statement of Karen Cochrane, Flint Bishop Solicitors, on behalf of the 

applicant, including: 
a. She confirmed that the premises licence holder Star Pubs and Bars Ltd 

owned the freehold and had a lease agreement with the tenant Mr 
Kirby (also the Designated Premises Supervisor) and his business 
partner Mr Battersby who had been there since April 2017. 

b. The variation application would tidy up the licence. 
c. The TENs which were granted in 2018 would have been helpful if they 

had been used, to show the steps proposed to manage later events 
and to supply actual evidence. Unfortunately, Mr Kirby’s business 
partner was undergoing treatment for cancer and the premises had not 
been in a position to put in steps to hold later events, such as 
recruitment of door staff. This was an opportunity missed, but there had 
been more pressing matters. 

d. The variation application would include set opening hours, which would 
also assist in preventing poker playing into the early hours. 

e. A significant number of conditions had been agreed, and the 
Responsible Authorities were thanked for their assistance. 

f. The points of dispute centred largely on the hours. This hearing had 
provided a further opportunity for discussion with her clients, and it was 
now suggested that live music should end by 00:00 daily, including 
weekends as this was considered more appropriate. 

g. In the light of this amendment, the proposed conditions 19 to 22 
relating to noise mitigation would not be proportionate if music was to 
cease at 00:00.  

h. There had not been evidence that noise from music had been a 
particular problem. Issues in November related to building works in the 
function room leading to a band and equipment where they should not 
normally be situated. 

i. The applicant was seeking flexibility to open and trade later at 
weekends, until 02:00. However, the pub would not be wishing to open 
until 02:00 at every opportunity. For the majority of weekends a 

Page 470



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 793 - 

terminal hour of 01:00 would be sufficient, but there may be occasions 
when later opening would be required. 

j. A Police search had found no records of concerns relating to the pub. 
k. It was considered that the conditions offered would ensure that the 

licensing objectives were promoted, especially the condition in respect 
of door staff. 

l. Concerns raised had been speculative, but the client had listened and 
had acknowledged that live music may not be appropriate. Significant 
efforts were being made to ensure that noise did not emanate from the 
venue, including installing carpet in the function room, changing the 
curtains and blocking vents. The venue would also start to offer food. 
All responsibilities were being taken seriously. Records had been 
brought for inspection today, and were all up to date. 

m. Conditions would ensure that all the licensing objectives were 
promoted. If there were any issues, there was always an option to 
review the licence. 

n. It was good to see there had been a representation in support of the 
application. Pubs were an asset to an area and local businesses 
should be supported. Striking an appropriate balance was important, 
and stopping music at 00:00 but trading later would be a sensible way 
forward. 

o. This pub attracted an older crowd rather than youngsters. The 
proposed refurbishment and introduction of a food offer would make 
the venue more pleasant and improve the area. 

p. In respect of conditions, it was not considered sensible or appropriate 
to insist on a noise limiter.  

q. The premises currently operated ‘Challenge 21’ and it worked well and 
they wished to carry this on. This should not be an issue as this fitted 
with the wording of Condition 18a. Officers confirmed that it was not 
necessary to specify the type of ID which was accepted, but that having 
posters on display was important in defusing potential issues. 

r. The last entry should be one hour before close. 
s. Currently, recorded music was permitted 24 hours. It was suggested 

this should finish 02:00 latest. 
 

6. The applicant’s representatives responded to questions including the 
following: 
a. The Chair queried the practical implications and cost of installing a 

noise limiter. It was advised that this equipment could be very 
expensive, but it would also not be appropriate if live music was to be 
stopped by 00:00. 

b. In response to Councillor Alexandrou’s queries, it was confirmed that 
transformative refurbishment works were planned, including internal 
and external double glazing, and replacement of fire doors. 

c. The Chair asked about the likely number of times the venue would wish 
to trade to 02:00 per year. It was advised that later hours would only be 
used on certain occasions, such as a pre-booked party or a late 

Page 471



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 794 - 

sporting event. The expectation would be that the pub would routinely 
staff up to 01:00, and would not regularly expect to operate to 02:00.  

d. In response to further queries from officers, the applicant gave 
agreement to an additional licence condition that written notice would 
be given to the Licensing Authority on the occasions when the pub 
planned to use the later hours. Appropriate text for this condition was 
prepared by the Principal Licensing Officer and this was agreed by all 
parties. 

e. Licensing Authority officers were concerned that equipment would no 
longer be required to be connected to a sound system under the 
control of the venue, and queried what control would be exercised over 
the volume of the music. It was advised that sound levels would be 
monitored when the bands set up. The sound would be set at a suitable 
level. Staff would also make noise checks outside: these were already 
in place and being done regularly. The Business Manager held bi-
monthly meetings with licensees to ensure that all licence conditions 
were adhered to. Visits were also made to the pub as a customer. In 
response to the Chair, it was advised that the applicant would be 
prepared to install a noise limiter if required. 

f. In response to further questions about ensuring that customers left the 
venue quietly and did not cause problems to residents, it was 
confirmed that door supervisors were being put in place for this control. 
The door staff would also know whether sound was escaping, and they 
would remind people to leave quietly. Any decision should be based on 
evidence, and this was not a noisy or troublesome pub. The customers 
were generally older at this venue, and more respectful. 

g. The Interested Parties advised that they had not been disturbed by 
music, but there had been issues with customers standing outside the 
pub door by the street corner, which caused a big noise disturbance at 
weekends. It was advised that there was also a garden to the rear 
which was closed at 23:00, but the designated smoking area was 
outside at the front. Customers were not permitted to take drinks 
outside after 23:00, which would dissuade loitering. It was also hoped 
that door staff would monitor the situation. The applicant had noted the 
points made. 

h. In response to queries from Interested Parties whether there would be 
a limit on the number of occasions the pub traded late, it was advised 
that a limit would not be stipulated, but the Licensing Authority must be 
informed of every pre-planned event. The applicant confirmed that later 
hours would not be regularly used and their expressed intention had 
been recorded today. If there were problems with this premises this 
licence could be reviewed and the licence holders brought back before 
the committee. 

 
7. The closing statement of Ellie Green, Principal Licensing Officer, that 

having heard and read all representations from all parties, it was for the 
Licensing Sub Committee to consider if the application was appropriate 

Page 472



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 795 - 

and in support of the licensing objectives, and take such steps as set out in 
para 7.3 of the officers’ report. 

 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. In accordance with the principles of Section 100(a) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting 
for this item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 
The Panel retired, with the legal representative and committee 
administrator, to consider the application further and then the meeting 
reconvened in public. 
 

2. The Chairman made the following statement: 
 

“Having carefully considered all the written representations and listened 
to the oral submissions throughout the course of the hearing, the 
Licensing Sub-Committee (LSC) concluded that the applicant for The 
Hop Poles demonstrated steps for the full promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
The LSC was mindful of the London Borough of Enfield’s Licensing 
Policy Statement and statutory guidance in respect of premises located 
in or immediately adjacent to residential areas and the impact that even 
the relatively modest increase in the hours sought for licensable 
activities could have in terms, primarily on public nuisance, but also the 
potential for crime and disorder. 
 
The LSC was persuaded that the Premises Licence Holder has been 
proactive in his approach to responsible operation. 
 
Therefore the LSC agrees to the following: 
 

The Licensing Sub-Committee RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED 
IN FULL AS AMENDED AT THE HEARING as follows: 
 

Activity General Times Pre-Planned Event Times (to be 
notified in writing to Licensing team 

7 days before event) 

Opening hours Sunday to Thursday 08:00 to 00:30 
 
Friday and Saturday 08:00 to 01:30 
 
 

Sunday to Thursday 08:00 to 00:30 
 
Friday and Saturday 08:00 to 02:30 

Supply of 
Alcohol 
(on and off) 

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 – 00:00 
 
Friday and Saturday 10:00 – 01:00 

Sunday to Thursday 10:00 – 00:00 
 
Friday and Saturday 10:00 – 02:00 

Page 473



 

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - 13.3.2019 

 

- 796 - 

Recorded Music  Sunday to Thursday 09.00 to 00:00 
 
Friday and Saturday 09:00 to 01:00 

Sunday to Thursday 09.00 to 00:00 
 
Friday and Saturday 09:00 to 02:00 

Live Music Daily 09:00 – 00:00 
 

Daily 09:00 – 00:00 
 

Performance of 
Dance 

Sunday to Thursday 09.00 to 00:00 
 
Friday and Saturday 09:00 to 01:00 

Sunday to Thursday 09.00 to 00:00  
 
Friday and Saturday 09:00 to 02:00 

Late Night 
Refreshment  

Sunday to Thursday 23:00 – 23:30 
 
Friday to Saturday 23:00 – 00:30 

Sunday to Thursday 23:00 – 23:30 
 
Friday to Saturday 23:00 – 00:30 

 
Conditions (in accordance with Revised Conditions in LSC 
Supplementary report – Annex 11): 

 
(i) Conditions 1 to 16, which are not disputed, 
(ii) AND Condition 18a, and Condition 17 in respect of last entry time one 

hour before closing to encompass general hours and pre-planned 
events, and additional Condition below: 
 
The premises licence holder shall inform the Licensing Team, in 
writing, of their intention to use their extended hours, at least seven 
days before any such event. 
 

3. The Licensing Sub-Committee resolved that the application be granted 
in full as amended at the meeting and conditions as set out above. 

 
 
1012   
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
 
RECEIVED the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 12 September 
2018. 
 
AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 12 September 2018 
as a correct record. 
 
 
 
 

Page 474


	Agenda
	3 THE OCCASIONAL HALF, 66 - 77 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N13 4TD  (Report No. 226) - To Commence at 09:30
	2. Annex 1 - Area Plan
	3. Annex 2 - Current Licence
	Part A – Premises Licence
	Annex 4 – Plans

	Part B – Premises Licence summary

	4. Annex 3 - Application Form
	5. Annex 4 - IP Representations combined
	IP1 Rep
	IP2 Rep
	IP3 Rep

	1. LSC Supplementary Report Occasional Half
	2. Annex 5 - Evidence Bundle

	4 BROADWICK VENUES LTD, MERIDIAN WATER, UNIT 4-6B ORBITAL BUSINESS PARK, & LAND TO THE SOUTH OF UNITS 4-6B, ORBITAL BUSINESS PARK, 5 ARGON ROAD, EDMONTON, N18 3BW  (Report No. 227) - To commence at 11:00
	2. Annex 1 - Meridian Project Overview
	3. Annex 2 - Local Area Maps
	4. Annex 3 - Property Information Explanation
	5. Annex 4 - Application
	6. Annex 5 - Plan
	7. Annex 6 - SAG Report
	8. Annex 7 - IP2 - Police Rep Festival
	9. Annex 8 - IP4 - London Fire Brigade Rep
	10. Annex 9 - IP1 - Resident A Representation
	11. Annex 10a IP3 - TH rep - covering letter
	12. Annex 10b - IP3 - TH Representation Append
	13. Annex 10c - IP3 - TH Additions to Appendix 1
	14. Annex 10d - IP3 - TH APPENDIX 2 FINAL 12TH APRIL 2019 pdf
	15. Annex 10e - IP3 - TH Appendix 3 to Representati
	16. Annex 10f - IP3 - TH original rep 230119
	17. Annex 11 - IP5 - Resident B Representation
	18. Annex 12 - IP6 SAG Rep
	19. Annex 13 - IP7 - Haringey Rep
	20. Annex 14 - IP8 - Resident C Rep
	21. Annex 15 - Applicant Letter to Enfield Council 26.4.19
	22. Annex 16 - Planning Committee Report
	1.1  Planning permission be deemed to be GRANTED subject to  conditions.

	23. Annex 17 - Covering Letter 30.4.19
	24. Annex 18 - Index for hearing bundle
	25. Annex 19 - Hearing Bundle
	26. Annex 20a-IP3-Tottenham Hotspurs Additional Rep Covering Email
	27. Annex 20b - IP3 - TH Events Calendar
	28. Annex 20c - IP3 - THFC Representation (18-04-19) Planning
	29. Annex 20d - IP3 - TH Field day poster from Alex Thorpe email da

	5 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS



